FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT
Payless Car Rental System, Inc.
379 Interpace Parkway
Parsippany, NJ 07054
(973) 496-5000
Shari.Asarch@avisbudget.com
www.PaylessCar.com

CAR RENTAL

A Payless Franchise is a business of renting automobiles, without drivers, to the general public, for
periods of 180 days or less under the Payless Trademarks.

The total investment necessary to begin operation of a Payless Car Rental franchised business is from
$605,500625,500 to $1,588,400. This includes an initial franchise fee of up to $36;60650,000
($25;66045,000 plus an additional $5,000) for a territory with a population of 55,000.

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of your franchise agreement and other
information in plain English. Read this disclosure document and all accompanying agreements carefully.
Y ou must receive the disclosure document at least 14 calendar days before you sign a binding agreement
with, or make any payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise
sale or grant. Note, however, that no government agency has verified the information contained in
this document.

You may wish to receive your disclosure document in another format that is more convenient for you.
To discuss the availability of disclosures in different formats, contact Ms. Shari Asarch in the Franchise
Operations Department at 379 Interpace Parkway, Parsippany, New Jersey 07054, by telephone at (973)
496-8885 or via email at Shari.Asarch(@avisbudget.com.

The terms of your contract will govern your franchise relationship. Don’t rely on the disclosure
document alone to understand your contract. Read all of your contracts carefully. Show your contract
and this disclosure document to an advisor, like a lawyer or accountant.

Buying a franchise is a complex investment. The information in this disclosure document can help you
make up your mind. More information on franchising, such as “A Consumer’s Guide to Buying a
Franchise,” which can help you understand how to use this disclosure document is available from the
Federal Trade Commission. You can contact the FTC at 1-877-FTC-HELP or by writing to the FTC at
600 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W., Washington, DC 20580. You can also visit the FTC’s home page at
www.ftc.gov for additional information. Call your state agency or visit your public library for other
sources of information on franchising.

There may also be laws on franchising in your state. Ask your state agencies about them.

Issuance Date: April 2930, 2624
2025
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How to Use This Franchise Disclosure Document

Here are some questions you may be asking about buying a franchise and tips on how to find more
information:

QUESTION WHERE TO FIND INFORMATION

How much can I earn? Item 19 may give you information about outlet sales, costs,
profits or losses. You should also try to obtain this
information from others, like current and former
franchisees. You can find their names and contact
information in Item 20 or Exhibit E.

How much will I need to invest? Items 5 and 6 list fees you will be paying to the
franchisor or at the franchisor’s direction. Item 7 lists
the initial investment to open. Item 8 describes the
suppliers you must use.

Does the franchisor have the financial | Item 21 or Exhibit G includes financial statements.

ability to provide support to my Review these statements carefully.

business?

Is the franchise system stable, Item 20 summarizes the recent history of the number of
growing, or shrinking? company-owned and franchised outlets.

Will my business be the only Payless | Item 12 and the “territory” provisions in the franchise
Car Rental business in my area? agreement describe whether the franchisor and other
franchisees can compete with you.

Does the franchisor have a troubled Items 3 and 4 tell you whether the franchisor or its

legal history? management have been involved in material litigation or
bankruptcy proceedings.

What’s it like to be a Payless

franchisee? Item 20 or Exhibit E lists current and former
franchisees. You can contact them to ask about their
experiences.

What else should I know? These questions are only a few things you should look

for. Review all 23 Items and all Exhibits in this disclosure
document to better understand this franchise opportunity.
See the table of contents.
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What You Need To Know About Franchising Generally

Continuing responsibility to pay fees. You may have to pay royalties and other fees even if you are
losing money.

Business model can change. The franchise agreement may allow the franchisor to change its manuals

and business model without your consent. These changes may require you to make additional investments
in your franchise business or may harm your franchise business.

Supplier restrictions. You may have to buy or lease items from the franchisor or a limited group of

suppliers the franchisor designates. These items may be more expensive than similar items you could buy
on your own.

Operating restrictions. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a similar business
during the term of the franchise. There are usually other restrictions. Some examples may include
controlling your location, your access to customers, what you sell, how you market, and your hours of
operation.

Competition from franchisor. Even if the franchise agreement grants you a territory, the franchisor may
have the right to compete with you in your territory.

Renewal. Your franchise agreement may not permit you to renew. Even if it does, you may have to
sign a new agreement with different terms and conditions in order to continue to operate your franchise
business.

When your franchise ends. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a similar
business after your franchise ends even if you still have obligations to your landlord or other creditors.

Some States Require Registration

Your state may have a franchise law, or other law, that requires franchisors to register before
offering or selling franchises in the state. Registration does not mean that the state recommends the
franchise or has verified the information in this document. To find out if your state has a registration
requirement, or to contact your state, use the agency information in Exhibit A.

Your state also may have laws that require special disclosures or amendments be made to your

franchise agreement. If so, you should check the State Specific Addenda. See the Table of Contents for
the location of the State Specific Addenda.
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Special Risks to Consider About This Franchise
Certain states require that the following risk(s) be highlighted:

1. Out-of-State Dispute Resolution. The franchise agreement requires you to resolve
disputes with the franchisor by mediation, arbitration and/or litigation only in New Jersey.
Out-of-state mediation, arbitration, or litigation may force you to accept a less favorable
settlement for disputes. It may also cost more to mediate, arbitrate, or litigate with the
franchisor in New Jersey than in your own state.

2. Financial Condition. The Franchisor’s financial condition as reflected in its financial
statements (see Item 21) calls into question the Franchisor’s financial ability to provide
services and support to you.

3. Sales Performance Required. You must maintain minimum sales performance levels.
Your inability to maintain these levels may results in loss of any territorial rights you are
granted, termination of your franchise, and loss of your investment.

Certain states may require other risks to be highlighted. Check the “State Specific Addenda”
(if any) to see whether your state requires other risks to be highlighted.
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NOTICE REQUIRED BY STATE OF MICHIGAN

THE STATE OF MICHIGAN PROHIBITS CERTAIN UNFAIR PROVISIONS THAT ARE
SOMETIMES IN FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS. IF ANY OF THE FOLLOWING PROVISIONS ARE
IN THESE FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS, THE PROVISIONS ARE VOID AND CANNOT BE
ENFORCED AGAINST YOU.

Each of the following provisions is void and unenforceable if contained in any documents
relating to a franchise:

(a) A prohibition on the right of a franchisee to join an association of franchisees.

(b) A requirement that a franchisee assent to a release, assignment, novation, waiver, or
estoppel that deprives a franchisee of rights and protections provided in this act. This shall not preclude a
franchisee, after entering into a franchise agreement, from settling any and all claims.

(c) A provision that permits a franchisor to terminate a franchise prior to the expiration of its
term except for good cause. Good cause shall include the failure of the franchisee to comply with any
lawful provision of the franchise agreement and to cure such failure after being given written notice
thereof and a reasonable opportunity, which in no event need be more than 30 days, to cure such failure.

(d) A provision that permits a franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise without fairly
compensating the franchisee by repurchase or other means for the fair market value at the time of
expiration of the franchisee’s inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and furnishings. Personalized
materials that have no value to the franchisor and inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and
furnishings not reasonably required in the conduct of the franchise business are not subject to
compensation. This subsection applies only if: (i) the term of the franchise is less than five years and (ii)
the franchisee is prohibited by the franchise or other agreement from continuing to conduct substantially
the same business under another trademark, service mark, trade name, logotype, advertising, or other
commercial symbol in the same area subsequent to the expiration of the franchise or the franchisee does
not receive at least six months advance notice of franchisor’s intent not to renew the franchise.

(e) A provision that permits the franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise on terms generally
available to other franchisees of the same class or type under similar circumstances. This section does not
require a renewal provision.

® A provision requiring that arbitration or litigation be conducted outside this state. This

shall not preclude the franchisee from entering into an agreement, at the time of arbitration, to conduct
arbitration at a location outside this state.

THIS MICHIGAN NOTICE APPLIES ONLY TO FRANCHISEES WHO ARE RESIDENTS OF
MICHIGAN OR LOCATE THEIR FRANCHISES IN MICHIGAN.
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(2) A provision which permits a franchisor to refuse to permit a transfer of ownership of a
franchise, except for good cause. This subdivision does not prevent a franchisor from exercising a right
of first refusal to purchase the franchise. Good cause shall include, but is not limited to:

(1) The failure of the proposed transferee to meet the franchisor’s then current
reasonable qualifications or standards.

(1) The fact that the proposed transferee is a competitor of the franchisor or
subfranchisor.

(ii1) The unwillingness of the proposed transferee to agree in writing to comply with
all lawful obligations.

(iv) The failure of the franchisee or proposed transferee to pay any sums owing to the
franchisor or to cure any default in the franchise agreement existing at the time of the proposed transfer.

(h) A provision that requires the franchisee to resell to the franchisor items that are not
uniquely identified with the franchisor. This subdivision does not prohibit a provision that grants to a
franchisor a right of first refusal to purchase the assets of a franchise on the same terms and conditions as
a bona fide third party willing and able to purchase those assets, nor does this subdivision prohibit a
provision that grants the franchisor the right to acquire the assets of a franchise for the market or
appraised value of such assets if the franchisee has breached the lawful provisions of the franchise
agreement and has failed to cure the breach in the manner provided in subdivision (c).

(1) A provision that permits the franchisor to directly or indirectly convey, assign, or
otherwise transfer its obligations to fulfill contractual obligations to the franchisee unless provision has
been made for providing the required contractual services.

The fact that there is a notice of this offering on file with the attorney general does not constitute
approval, recommendation, or endorsement by the attorney general.

Any questions regarding this notice should be directed to the Department of Attorney General, State of

Michigan, Consumer Protection Division, G. Mennen Williams Building, 1% Floor, Lansing, Michigan 48913,
telephone (517) 373-7117.

SHH3H2227571131122.29



I‘CAR RENTAL

ITEM 2 BUSINESS EXPERIENCE

ITEM 3 LITIGATION

ITEM 4 BANKRUPTCY

ITEM 5 INITIAL FEES

ITEM 6 OTHER FEES

ITEM 9 FRANCHISEE’S OBLIGATIONS

ITEM 10 FINANCING

TRAINING

ITEM 12 TERRITORY

ITEM 13 TRADEMARKS

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PAGE
ITEM 1 THE FRANCHISOR, AND ANY PARENTS, PREDECESSORS, AND AFFILIATES ... 1
5
6
10
10
11
ITEM 7 ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT . 20
ITEM 8 RESTRICTIONS ON SOURCES OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES 22
24
28

ITEM 11 FRANCHISOR’S ASSISTANCE, ADVERTISING, COMPUTER SYSTEMS, AND
28
52
55
56

ITEM 14 PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS, AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION

ITEM 15 OBLIGATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE ACTUAL OPERATION OF THE FRANCHISE

BUSINESS 56
ITEM 16 RESTRICTIONS ON WHAT THE FRANCHISEE MAY SELL 57
ITEM 17 RENEWAL, TERMINATION, TRANSFER, AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION 58
ITEM 18 PUBLIC FIGURES 62
ITEM 19 FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATIONS 62
ITEM 20 OUTLETS AND FRANCHISEE INFORMATION 63
ITEM 21 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 68
ITEM 22 CONTRACTS 68
ITEM 23 RECEIPT End of FDD

S7H3H22.27571131122.29



g o w >

™

L

M

EXHIBITS
List of Agencies/Agents For Service of Process
Disclosures Regarding Americans with Disabilities Act
FTC Consent Order regarding Budget Rent-A-Car System Inc.
Confidentiality Agreement
List of Franchisees
Franchisees Who Have Left the System
Financial Statements
Form of License Agreement and exhibits
SBA Addendum
Rental System Agreement
Intercity Rules and Regulations
State Addenda to FDD and License Agreement
General Release

Manual of Table of Contents

N Receipts For Disclosure Document

S7H3H22.27571131122.29



ITEM 1

THE FRANCHISOR, AND ANY PARENTS, PREDECESSORS, AND AFFILIATES

To simplify the language in this disclosure document, “we,” “us,” or “Payless” means Payless
Car Rental System, Inc., the franchisor. “You” means the individual, corporation, limited liability
company, partnership or other entity who buys the franchise. If the franchisee will operate through a
corporation, limited liability company, partnership or other entity, “you” also includes the franchisee’s
Owners or partners.

The Franchisor: Payless Car Rental System, Inc.

We are a Florida corporation incorporated on September 26, 2001 with a principal place of
business at 379 Interpace Parkway, Parsippany, New Jersey 07054. The names and addresses of our
agents for service of process can be found in Exhibit A to this disclosure document.

Payless does business under the names “Payless Car Rental,” “Payless Truck Rental,” “Payless
Car Rental System,” “Payless,” and other trademarks, service marks, trade names, logos, and commercial
symbols that are owned by us or our affiliates and used (or developed and used in the future) in
connection with Payless vehicle rental businesses (“Marks™). Payless has offered franchises under the
names ‘“Payless” and “Payless Car Rental” since September 26, 2001. From February 1978 through
September 26, 2001, our parent company Payless Car Rental, Inc., formerly known as Avalon Global
Group, Inc., offered franchises under the Payless name and service marks. Except as described above, we
have not conducted business in any other line of business or offered franchises in any other lines.

Our Parent Companies: Avis Budget Group, Inc. and Payless Car Rental, Inc.

Payless is a wholly owned subsidiary of Payless Car Rental, Inc. (“PCR”), formerly known as
Avalon Global Group, Inc., which in turn, is an indirect subsidiary of Avis Budget Group, Inc. (“ABG”),
formerly known as Cendant Corporation (“Cendant”). ABG’s principal business address is 379 Interpace
Parkway, Parsippany, New Jersey 07054. ABG acquired PCR, Payless and Payless’ affiliates in July
2013.

PCR is a Nevada corporation, originally incorporated in Delaware in July 1971, and
reincorporated in Nevada on February 24, 1978. PCR offered vehicle rental franchises under the marks
“Payless,” “Payless Car Rental,” “Payless Car Rental System,” “Payless Truck Rental,” and
“Holiday-Payless Rent A Car” from 1971 until September 2001. PCR transferred all Payless Car Rental
franchise agreements and related business assets to Payless on September 26, 2001.

During the period of 1991-92, PCR also offered franchises for lodging businesses under the name
“Payless International Hotels, Inns & Resorts.” PCR resumed this business through a new subsidiary,
Payless Lodging, Inc., from 2002 through 2006 in a format that did not include franchising.

PCR does not currently offer franchises in any business. PCR’s principal business address is 379
Interpace Parkway, Parsippany, New Jersey 07054.

Our Affiliates

Payless is an affiliate of Orlin, Inc. (“Orlin™), a Florida corporation incorporated on April 26,
2000; Atlin, Inc. (“Atlin”), a Florida corporation incorporated on April 14, 2003 and revived on June 6,
2011; and L&S Vehicle Leasing, Inc., a Florida corporation incorporated on April 18, 2002. L&S
Vehicle Leasing, Inc. leases cars to the corporate outlets operated by the affiliates and joint ventures of
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Payless. The principal business address for Orlin, Atlin, and L&S Vehicle Leasing, Inc. is the same as
ours.

Payless operates Payless company-owned car rental businesses throughout the United States
directly, and through the following affiliates: Flomco, Inc. (“Flomco™), a wholly owned subsidiary of
Orlin that is a Florida corporation incorporated on March 22, 2002; LAS Rentals, LLC, a wholly owned
subsidiary of Orlin that is a Florida limited liability company organized on July 29, 2004; PCR Venture
of Denver LLC, a Delaware limited liability company; PCR Venture of Phoenix LLC, a Delaware limited
liability company; NoCal Rentals, Inc. (“NoCal Rentals™), a California corporation incorporated on
September 21, 2010; ABQ Rentals, Inc., a New Mexico corporation incorporated on February 21, 2011;
and Seatac Rentals, Inc. (“Seatac Rentals™), a Washington corporation incorporated on May 26, 2011.
The principal business address for each of these affiliates is the same as ours.

PCR Venture of Denver owns and operates a Payless company-owned car rental business in
Denver, Colorado. PCR Venture of Phoenix owns and operates a Payless company-owned car rental
business in Phoenix, Arizona. Both PCR Venture of Denver and PCR Venture of Phoenix have been
subsidiaries of Orlin and Atlin since June 2011. Before June 2011, both companies were operated as
joint ventures between Orlin and a company owned by a third party.

We do not plan to enter into new joint venture relationships for the operation of car rental
businesses in the future.

Affiliates Through Payless Acquisition by ABG

Payless’ other affiliates include Avis Budget Car Rental, LLC (“ABCR”), Avis Rent A Car
System, LLC (“Avis”), Budget Rent A Car System, Inc. (“Budget”), and Wizard Services, Inc. (“WSI”).
ABCR, by itself and through its subsidiaries, including WSI, provides rental system and reservation
services to Payless franchisees under the Rental System Agreement (Exhibit I) (see Items 6, 8, and 11).
The business address for both WSI and ABCR is 379 Interpace Parkway, Parsippany, New Jersey 07054.
You must also utilize the Wizard System, a computerized rental and reservations system (“Wizard”) for
all your locations under agreements you must execute with ABCR (see Items 6, 8, 11, and 16.)

Avis and Budget are both wholly owned subsidiaries of ABCR, which, in turn, is a subsidiary of
ABG. ABCR, formerly known as Cendant Car Rental Group, Inc. incorporated in Delaware on April 29,
1996, and then converted to a limited liability company on January 9, 2006. ABCR’s principal business
address is 379 Interpace Parkway, Parsippany, New Jersey 07054. ABCR is wholly owned by Cendant
Finance Holding Company, LLC (“CFHC”), a Delaware limited liability company. CFHC owns
franchising subsidiaries (the “Affiliates”) and is a wholly owned subsidiary of ABG, (formerly known as
Cendant), a Delaware corporation created on December 17, 1997, through the merger of CUC
International, Inc. (“CUC”) and HFS, Inc. (“HFS”). In the merger, HFS merged with and into CUC with
CUC surviving and changing its name to Cendant. CUC incorporated in Delaware on August 1, 1974,
and HFS incorporated in Delaware on May 15, 1990. Cendant changed its name to Avis Budget Group,
Inc. on September 1, 2006.

Avis by itself and through its subsidiaries, offers and grants franchises in the car rental industry.
Avis offers and supports franchises for, and its subsidiaries operate, businesses that rent vehicles without
drivers to the general public under the “Avis Rent A Car” name. Avis has operated vehicle rental
business under the “Avis Rent A Car” name since 1946. Avis licenses the Avis® name, marks and
vehicle rental system. Avis’ right to use and license the name and marks associated with its system
derives from its license agreement with affiliate Wizard, Co., Inc., the owner of all Avis marks. ABCR
provides certain reservation and rental agreement processing services to Avis locations. Avis’ principal
business address is the same as our address. Avis has offered licenses or franchises since 1946 and had
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approximately +:8601,900 domestic vehicle rental outlets (of which +;69+1,714 were company-owned
and +69186 were franchised) as of December 31, 26232024.

Budget offers, sells, and supports franchises for, and together with its subsidiaries operate,
businesses that rent vehicles without drivers to the general public under the “Budget Rent A Car” name.
Budget has operated vehicle rental businesses under the name “Budget Rent A Car” name since
November 22, 2002. Prior to that, Budget’s predecessors operated and franchised vehicle rental
businesses since 1958. ABCR provides reservation and data processing services to Budget locations.
Budget offers car rental services at company-owned and franchised locations. Budget franchisees are
also permitted to sell used vehicles under Budget’s proprietary marks. Budget’s principal business
address is the same as our address. Budget has been franchising car rental services since 1960 through
various predecessors and had approximately +3341,371 domestic vehicle rental outlets (of which
+3571,197 were company-owned and +77174 were franchised) as of December 31, 26232024.

In 2011, ABG acquired Avis Europe PLC (now known as “Avis Budget EMEA, Limited” or
“Avis Europe”). Avis Europe and subsidiaries operated a similar car rental business and has been
franchising car rental services. Avis EMEA had approximately +9592,017 vehicle rental outlets (of
which +796794 were company-owned and 691,223 were franchised) as of December 31, 20232024.
Budget EMEA had approximately +3891,375 vehicle rental outlets (of which 692689 were
company-owned and 697686 were franchised) as of December 31, 26232024.

Except as described above, neither Payless nor any of Payless’ affiliates has ever operated
another vehicle rental business or offered franchises in any other line of business.

The Payless Franchise

Payless franchises the right to own and operate a business under Payless’ Proprietary Marks (as
defined below) (a “Payless Franchise”) to rent automobiles, without drivers, to the general public, for
periods of 180 days or less, under various trademarks, trade names, and service marks that Payless owns
and licenses to you to use, including “Payless” (collectively, “Proprietary Marks”), and that uses
uniform operating methods distinctively associated with Payless’ Proprietary Marks, which Bud Payless
get may periodically supplement and modify (the “System”). (In this disclosure document, the word
“including” means “for example.”) A network of mutually interdependent vehicle rental businesses
operating under the “Payless” name, including those that Payless, its subsidiaries and affiliates, and its
franchisees operate (collectively, the “Network™), promotes the System.

While using Payless’ Proprietary Marks, Payless Franchises also perform various services
associated with the car rental industry and identified in the Payless License Agreement, including the sale
of loss damage waivers. Subject to Payless’ approval, Payless Franchises may, and if Payless requires,
must, in addition to renting vehicles, sell or rent to vehicle rental customers certain products and services
directly related to the vehicle rental business, such as optional insurance services, loss damage waivers,
refueling services, child seats, navigational devices, portable XM radios, and tire chains. Your Payless
Franchise must offer all the products and services that Payless requires for your Payless Franchise, and
may not offer any products and services that Payless has not authorized. Except where permitted by
Payless pursuant to the Payless Used Car Sales Addendum to the Payless License Agreement (Exhibit E
to the Payless License Agreement), you are not authorized to sell used vehicles using Payless’
Proprietary Marks.

You must participate in the “Corporate Rate Program,” with regard to National Accounts (See
Art. VI of Exhibit H), as such accounts are designated by Payless from time to time. The Corporate
Rate Program is a program offering corporate customers special rates and benefits in return for the
volume of rental car business that they provide to the Network. You must also utilize the Wizard System,
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a computerized rental and reservations system (‘““Wizard”) for all your locations under agreements you
must execute with ABCR (see Items 6, 8, 11, and 16.)

Payless Franchises compete with all other businesses that rent vehicles to business and leisure
customers including our affiliates. In the United States, the car rental industry includes regional, national,
and international chains, and local, independent stores, which operate predominantly in non-airport
locations. The market that a Payless Franchise services is developed in some areas and developing in
others. The market depends on the population of a given market area and the number of similar
businesses operating in a particular area. Market demand in some areas may be seasonal.

Our business activities are devoted exclusively to those described in this disclosure document.

Regulations Specific to the Vehicle Rental Industry

The vehicle rental and leasing businesses are regulated by federal and state laws as well as
municipal and local regulation. Tax laws, bond and business licensing requirements, and vehicle
registration fees may affect your business. Other laws and regulations that may affect your business
include:

a. Minimum financial responsibility laws. All states establish minimum financial responsibility
requirements for you as the owner of the vehicles to be rented, which include the types and proofs of
financial responsibility that you must maintain for the benefit of third parties injured or damages
caused by the use of your owned vehicles.

b. Damage waiver laws. Many states regulate the sale of collision damage waivers. The typical statute
requires vehicle rental companies to disclose the optional nature of the waiver on the front of the
rental agreement form. Some statutes also regulate the content of the waiver and its exclusions. We
distribute to our licensees the required disclosure materials.

c. Limitation on amounts recoverable from renters. A few states limit the amount and/or type of
damages that you may recover from renters who damage your vehicles.

d. Sale of insurance. Nearly all states regulate the sale of optional insurance products sold by vehicle
rental companies. Most of these laws require you to obtain an inexpensive limited insurance license
that permits you to sell insurance products that are part of the rental transaction. A few states exempt
you from licensing requirements.

e. State age discrimination laws. At least 2 states (Michigan and New York) prohibit rental companies
from refusing to rent to persons 18 years or older.

f.  General regulation of vehicle rental operations. Your state may require you to obtain a permit to
operate as a vehicle rental company and otherwise regulate vehicle rental operations.

g. National Association of Attorneys General (“NAAG”) Guidelines. The NAAG Guidelines cover
certain aspects of the vehicle rental industry, such as price advertising, disclosure of damage waiver
and loss damage waiver provisions, and rate structures (what is includable in the rates).

h. Privacy laws. To the extent that you offer insurance, the privacy provisions of the
Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act may be applicable.

i. Americans with Disabilities Act. This statute, and federal regulations issued under the statute,
requires car rental companies to make “reasonable” accommodations to permit persons with
disabilities to drive rental vehicles. Reasonable accommodations include making hand controls

4
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available for disabled customers, permitting service animals to ride in a vehicle, and waiving
additional driver’s fees for the driver accompanying a disabled renter. The statute can be found at 42
USC, Sections 12111 and following.

j. International Emergency Economic Powers Act. 50 USC, Sections 1701, and following and
Executive Order No. 13224, effective September 24, 2001, prohibit U.S. businesses, including
vehicle rental businesses, from transacting business with any individual or entity identified on a list
maintained by the Office of Foreign Assets Control of the Treasury Department.

k. In July 1997, our affiliates, Avis and Budget, entered into settlement agreements with the U.S.
Justice Department covering the application of the American with Disabilities Act to each system
regarding obligations to persons with disabilities that prevent them from driving, such as blindness or
epilepsy. Under the settlement agreement, the each affiliate agreed to strongly urge its franchisees to
comply with its terms. A copy of the announcement setting forth the terms of the settlement
agreement is attached as Exhibit B (see also Item 3).

You are responsible for identifying which laws will apply to your Licensed Business and for
complying with them. You should consult with your attorney concerning these and other local laws and
ordinances that may affect your Licensed Business.

ITEM 2
BUSINESS EXPERIENCE

President and Chief Executive Officer, Americas — Avis Budget Group, Inc. and Pavless Car

Rental System, Inc.: Joseph A. Ferraro

Mr. Ferraro has been ABG and Payless’ President and Chief Executive Officer since January
2020. Previously, Mr. Ferraro held the title of President, Americas from January 2015 to December 2019.
Mr. Ferraro joined the Company in 1979, and served in various positions of increasing responsibility in
the Company’s North American operations.

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer — Izilda P. Martins

Izilda Martins has been ABG and Payless’ Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
since January 2024. Prior to that from June 2020 to December 2023, she served as ABG and Payless’
Executive Vice President, Americas and from 2014 until June 2020, she was ABG and Payless’ Senior
Vice President, Finance, Americas.

Manager Licensee Accounting Projects — Avis Budget Group, Inc. and Payless Car Rental System,

Inc.: Tracy Dalenberg

Tracy Dalenberg has been ABG and Payless’ Manager Licensee Accounting since August 1996.

Licensee Business Partner Projects — Avis Budget Group, Inc. and Payless Car Rental System,

Inc.: Colin Rutherford

Mr. Rutherford has been ABG and Payless’ Licensee Business Partner since September, 2021.
Prior to that, he was Airport Manager for Avis Budget Group in Sacramento, California from July, 2018
to August, 2021 and Reno, Nevada from April, 2013 to July, 2018.

Director, Licensee Operations & Business Development -Michael Ellis
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Michael Ellis has been ABG and Payless’ Director, Licensee Operations & Business
Development since October 2023. Prior to that from October 2022 to October 2023, he served as ABG’s
Director, Licensee & Global Support and from January 2019 until October 2022, he was ABG’s Senior
Manager, European Licensees._ Mr. Ellis joined the Company in January 2013 and has served in
various positions of operations leadership and sales.

Sr. Mgr. Operations & Business Development Licensees -Gareth Grimes

Gareth Grimes has been ABG and Payless’ Sr. Mgr. Operations & Business Development
Licensees Director, since May 2023. Prior to that from January 2021 to May 2023, he served as
ABG’s Sr. Mgr. Customer Advocacy and from January 2019 to January 2021 he served as
ABG’s Sr. Mgr. Business Transformation & Strategy.

ITEM 3
LITIGATION

Pending Actions

The following are pending actions that are subject to disclosure by Payless and/or are actions in
which Payless is a defendant.

Avis Budget Group Domestic

Abigail Bacon, Arcadia Lee, Jeannine Devries, Lisa Geary, Richard Alexander, Yvonne Wheeler
and George Davidson and on behalf of themselves and the putative class v. Avis Budget Group, Inc. and

Payless Car Rental, Inc. (United States District Court for the District of New Jersey, Case No.
2:16-cv-05939-KM-JBC). Plaintiffs filed this lawsuit on September 26, 2016 alleging that Payless has a
pattern and practice of fraudulent counter sales including: 1) “add-on” sales—practice of adding
coverages that were declined by customers; and 2) Fuel charges-customers were charged for fuel
reserving services even though they returned the vehicle full. As of AprDecember 2024, the parties are

discussing settlement while moving the-ease-forward tewards-elass-eertification—via-diseoverywith motion

to dismiss briefing.

Dawn Valli vs. Avis Budget Group, Inc. (United States District Court, District of New Jersey,
Case No. 2:2014-cv-06072-CCC-JBC ) On September 30, 2014, Plaintiff Dawn Valli filed an alleged
class action suit for violation of the New Jersey Consumer Fraud Act, breach of good faith, and unjust
enrichment arising from payment of speeding violation incurred in Washington DC and administrative
fees. Discovery and document collection is in progress. ABG continues to defend this case and
discovery is ongoing. The parties participated in a mediation in June 2021, which resulted in an impasse.
The Motion to seek appeal on class certification issues was denied on November 17, 2023. As of

December 2023 Plaintifhasfiled-a-motion{for summaryjudgment-and2024, ABG has filed aan appeal

to the 3" Circuit Court on the district court’s denial of its motion to compel arbitration.

Paula De Angelis v. Bernardo Hees, Jagdeep Pahway., Anu Hariharan, Lyn Krominga, Glen
Lurie, Karthik Sarma, Joseph A. Ferraro, Izilda P. Martins, and SRS Investment Management LLC,
Defendants and Avis Budget Group, Inc. Nominal Defendant (United States District Court for the
District of New Jersey, Case No. 2:24-cv-05687). On April 26, 2024, plaintiff Paula De Angelis, filed a
shareholder derivative action alleging violations of federal securities laws, breaches of the directors’ and

controlling shareholders fiduciary duties, and for unjust enrichment. Plaintiff filed their amended
complaint (the “Complaint”) on July 15, 2024. We filed our motion to dismiss the Complaint on behalf

S7H3H22.27571131122.29



of Avis and the individual Avis defendants on November 18, 2024. Plaintiff served her opposition to the
motion to dismiss on January 23, 2025. The reply brief has been filed.

Travelers United, Inc. v. Avis Rent A Car System, LLC et al (District of Columbia Superior
Court, Case No. 2024-CAB-005792) and Travelers United, Inc. v. Budget Rent A Car System, Inc. et al
(District of Columbia Superior Court, Case No. 2024-CAB-005736). On September 11, 2024, plaintiff
Travelers United Inc. filed a complaint alleging that Avis and Budget (in two separate matters) that each
has been systematically cheating consumers by refusing to rent vehicles for advertised prices. These
cases were consolidated into a single case, and we filed a motion to dismiss and a motion to compel
arbitration, and in February 2025, the DC Superior Court granted our motion to dismiss in full, finding
that Travelers lacked standing because both it and the represented class were bound to arbitrate based on
the Avis terms and conditions. On March 11, 2025, the Plaintiff filed a notice with the DC Court of
Appeals, which has not yet heard the motion.

Currently Effective Injunctive or Restrictive Orders or Decrees

There are no currently effective injunctive or restrictive orders or decrees for Avis, ABCR,
Payless Car Rental, Payless Car Sales, or ABG. However, the following consent orders relate to our
affiliate Budget and its network of locations.

In the Matter of Budget Rent A Car System, Inc. (Federal Trade Commission Docket
No. C-4212). The Federal Trade Commission (“FTC”) undertook an investigation of Budget’s practices
alleging that Budget engaged in unfair and deceptive practices related to fuel charges imposed upon
renters who drive less than 75 miles. As part of a Consent Agreement, Budget agreed to modify
disclosure language regarding fuel-related charges. The Consent Agreement requires Budget to disclose
expressly or by implication any fuel-related charges, fees, or costs relating to the rental of any vehicle in
marketing and promotional materials. Further, Budget is required to disclose clearly and conspicuously
at the time of the rental transaction any fuel-related charges, fees, or costs, including any fuel-related
charges, fees, or costs that a renter who drives the vehicle less than any specified amount may incur and
the manner in which a renter can avoid such fuel-related charges. On January 2, 2008, the FTC signed
the Decision and Consent Order. Budget is obligated to comply with the Consent Order until January 2,
2028. The Consent Order is included in Exhibit C of this disclosure document.

Payvless Actions Concluded Within the Past 10 Years

Investigation of Payless Car Rental System, Inc. (Florida Attorney General Investigation L

12-3-1070) On August 3, 2012, the Florida Attorney General initiated an investigation of alleged
violations of the Florida Deceptive and Unfair Trade Practices Act by Payless Car Rental and its
affiliate-owned car rental outlets in Florida. The matter settled. The resolution involved paying
$150,000 in investigative costs to the office of the Attorney General and the creation of a $100,000 fund
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which will be used for potential reimbursements to customers who file a claim form obtained from the
Florida Attorney generals office/website.

Pi-Net International, Inc. v. Payless Car Rental System, Inc. (U.S. District Court for the Central
District of California, Case No. CV12-4394). In August 2012, Pi-Net International, Inc. (“Pi-Net”)
served a lawsuit upon Payless Car Rental System, Inc. (“Payless”). The lawsuit alleged that Payless had
infringed two patents -- US Patent Nos. 5,987,500 and 8,108,492 -- relating to online transactions. The
lawsuit does not specify the damages amount sought. Payless filed an Answer in which it denied
infringement and asserted various affirmative defenses. In addition, Payless filed a Counterclaim in
which it sought a declaration that the patents-in-suit were invalid. Litigation was stayed pending an inter
partes review and the case was administratively closed on August 15, 2019.

Avis Budget Group Actions Concluded Within the Past 10 Years

Jose Mendez v. Avis Budget Group and Highway Toll Administration (United States District
Court for the District of New Jersey, Case No. 2:11-CV-06537). On November 7, 2011, Jose Mendez

filed a putative nationwide class action lawsuit for breach of contract, unjust enrichment, and breach of
the implied covenant of good faith for alleged failure to disclose E-Toll activations, fees, and charging
non-discounted tolls. The plaintiff alleges that customers were not made aware of these transponders in
advance and that they were subsequently charged for their use and/or non-use. The plaintiff claims
breach of contract, violations of New Jersey’s Consumer Fraud Act, unjust enrichment, breach of implied
covenant of good faith and fairly dealing and seeks monetary damages, and declaratory and injunctive
relief. Completion of discovery is ongoing with respect to identification of class members. On November
16, 2017 the Court issued a decision certifying the class; on January 18, 2018, the Third Circuit denied
defendants’ petition for leave to appeal. The Settlement conference scheduled for December 4, 2018 was
postponed and the parties have agreed to deadlines for filing various motions, including motions to
decertify the class, to exclude damages expert, and summary judgment, with possible trial dates in late
2019. This matter was re-assigned in 2019 to a different Judge because the earlier Judge had retired from
the bench. All motions are still pending. The parties signed a settlement agreement on June 29, 2022.
Avis Budget Group paid $6,700,000 in legal fees and $2,700,000 in settlement costs.

Venerus v. Avis Budget Car Rental, LLC et al. (United States District Court for the Middle
District of Florida, Case No. 13-CV-921). On June 12, 2013, plaintiff Heather Venerus, a renter of a
Budget vehicle, filed a purported class action lawsuit against ABCR and Budget. Budget’s international
tour company partners include supplemental liability insurance (“SLI”) or additional liability insurance
(“ALI”) coverage in tour package rates. Plaintiff alleges that defendants failed to procure SLI or ALI
insurance policies for and/or sold unauthorized SLI or ALI products to purchasers of these tour packages.
Plaintiff asserts claims for breach of contract, unjust enrichment, and violations of various Florida
statutes, including the Florida Deceptive and Unfair Trade Practices Act, and seeks money damages, and
injunctive and declaratory relief. The court decertified the class and an individual judgment was entered
for $176 for Plaintiff and the Plaintiff has appealed. Oral argument on the cross appeals was scheduled
for December 6, 2017. On January 25, 2018, the 11th Circuit Court of Appeals granted in part and denied
in part the appeals, and remanded to the District Court on the issue of proper standards used to define
standing when decertifying a class. Plaintiff’s claims that Budget unlawfully transacted insurance sales
were denied. The Class Action Settlement Agreement was approved and the case was dismissed with
prejudice on March 30, 2023. Class Counsel was awarded $8,525,000 in fees and $400,000 in costs.
ABCR and Budget agreed to make a total of up to $33,956,613.00 available for settlement of all claims in
this matter.

Canadian Competition Authority. In March 2015, the Canadian Competition Bureau filed an
application with the Competition Tribunal alleging that ABG and two of its Canadian subsidiaries
engaged in deceptive marketing practices with regard to certain charges that consumers are invoiced
related to renting a vehicle and associated products in Canada. The application sought penalties against
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ABG and its subsidiaries totaling approximately $25 million as well as reimbursements to current and
former customers of amounts collected and retained by ABG related to the alleged deceptive marketing
practices. The case was settled with ABG paying $3.25 million on June 2, 2016.

Daniel Klein and Stephanie Klein, on behalf of themselves and others similarly situated v.
Budget Rent A Car System, Inc. and Avis Budget Car Rental, LLC (United States District Court for the
District of New Jersey, Case No. 2:12-CV-07300-JLL-MAH). On November 27, 2012, Plaintiffs Daniel
Klein and Stephanie Klein, participants in Budget’s travel rewards program (“Travel Rewards
Program™), filed a putative class action against ABCR and Budget, alleging a failure to adequately
disclose to participants in the Travel Rewards Program that defendants impose a surcharge for frequent
flyer miles earned through online rental transactions. Plaintiffs have asserted claims for violations of the
New Jersey Consumer Fraud Act, breach of contract, breach of implied covenant of good faith and fair
dealing, and seek monetary damages, and injunctive and declaratory relief. The District Court granted
final approval to a class action settlement in this matter on June 21, 2016. Pursuant to the district court’s
final approval order, payment of $3,050,000 in attorneys’ fees and $10,000 in incentive awards was paid
by ABG on December 5, 2016. All settlement benefits were distributed to the class by February 20,
2017.

Faiz Ahmed. d/b/a Premium Autos, LLC and Ahsan Syed, d/b/a ARS, Inc. v. Avis Rent A Car

System, Inc., a Delaware Corporation, Budget Rent A Car System. Inc., a Delaware Corporation, Avis
Budget Group, Inc., a Delaware Corporation and DOES 1-100, Inclusive (Superior Court for the State of
California for the District of Rancho Cucamonga, County of San Bernardino, Case No. CIVRS 1308871).
On December 31, 2013, plaintiffs, agency operators of Avis and Budget, filed a complaint against Avis,
Budget, and ABG, seeking relief under California’s wage and hour laws to remedy the alleged
misclassification of agency operators as independent contractors rather than classifying each of the
Plaintiffs as employees. The parties reached a settlement at Mediation in November, 2018. The parties
entered into settlement agreements in December 2018 where a total settlement of $1,758,000 (Ahmed:
$500,000, Syed: $500,000, Huseinbhai: $250,000, and Sansone: $250,000) was paid to the trust account
of LA Superlawyers, Inc. on behalf of each of the plaintiffs.

J&J Marshall, Inc., a California corporation v. Robert Koneti, individually, BVR Solutions, Inc.,
a California Corporation and Avis Budget Group, Inc., a Delaware corporation and DOES 1-40, inclusive
(Superior Court of the State of California for Ventura County, Case No. 56-2013004455653
CU-NP-VTA). On or about May 1, 2012, Plaintiff purchased the operating rights to the Budget Oxnard
location from Defendants. On December 6 2013, plaintiff filed suit against Robert Koneti and BVR
Solutions, and ABG, alleging that defendants made numerous intentionally false and damaging
statements regarding the continued operation of the Budget Oxnard location. Plaintiff claims that
defendants told customers that the Oxnard location was closing, terminating its one-way rentals and
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going forward, its car rental business would be serviced by the Avis Oxnard location. The case settled
for $400,000 and was dismissed on December 22, 2015.

Kirit Bakshi v. ABCR Avis Budget Group, et als. — (United States District Court for the Eastern
District of Michigan, Case No. 2:20-cv-10419-DML-MJH) On February 18, 2020, Plaintiff filed a
complaint alleging violations of the Michigan Consumer Protection Act, California Unfair Business
Practices (Bus. & Prof. Code Section 17200) and the New Jersey Consumer Fraud Act. Plaintiff alleges
ABG/Costco fraudulently, uniformly, routinely and systematically imposed unauthorized and/or
specifically declined charges on the credit and/or debit cards of their rental customers across the Country.
The plaintiff's original complaint was dismissed for failure to plead an amount in controversy ($75k)
sufficient for federal court jurisdiction. Later, the plaintiff failed to file an amended complaint in a
timely manner which could have led to a formal dismissal of the complaint by the court. On August 27,
2020, the pro se plaintiff filed an order to show cause ("OTSC") claiming he was not aware of the court's
prior order dismissing his claim. The parties settled this case on December 2, 2022 for $20,000 and the
case was closed on December 14, 2022.

Luigi Ambrose, et al. v. Avis Rent A Car System, Inc., Budget Rent A Car System, Inc., Avis
Budget Group, Inc. (United States District Court for the Central District of California, Case
No. 2:11-CV-09992-CAS-AGR). On October 14, 2011, after class certification was denied in the Duke
v. Avis Rent A Car System, Inc. action described above, Luis Ambrose, and 17 other current and former
agency operators of Avis or Budget, filed a complaint against Avis, Budget, and ABG. The case was
filed in state court and subsequently removed to federal court. The complaint alleges, among other
things, that Avis/Budget agency operators have been misclassified as independent contractors under
California Law. Plaintiffs assert claims for violations of California’s Labor Code, fraudulent
concealment, and violations of California’s Business and Professions Code, and sought employment
related compensation and benefits as well as injunctive and declaratory relief. The claims of all plaintiffs
except for one have been resolved. Avis, Budget, and ABG continue to defend the case. The parties filed
a joint notice of settlement on February 3, 2015 and the court entered an order of dismissal on March 10,
2015.

Thomas McCabe v. Avis Budget Group, Inc., et al. (Hartford Superior Court Docket No.:
HHD-CV-20-6127745-S) Plaintiff filed an administrative complaint alleging fraud, bad faith, unfair
trade practices and breach arising from erroneous Wizard number applied to transaction. The
Connecticut Department of Consumer Affairs dismissed the case as an administrative complaint as
resolved by the parties. The case was settled on March 11, 2021 in a settlement in the amount of $8,750
was paid to the plaintiff.

In the Matter of Budget Rent-A-Car Systems Inc. (Federal Trade Commission Docket
No. C3674). On June 21, 1996, the FTC made final the Consent Order with BRAC, an affiliate of the
Predecessor (“Systems”), which settled charges that Systems engaged in deceptive practices when failing
to disclose potential charges to customers of “loss of turnback” values exceeding the cost of repairs,
when those customers returned their cars with significant damage. The FTC alleged that, in those
situations, Systems sought to collect “loss of turnback” values, which value was the amount Systems lost
because damaged vehicles could not be resold to the manufacturer at a price higher than retail.

The Consent Order required Systems to pay the FTC $75,000 for consumer redress. In addition,
if Systems intended to charge consumers for the “loss of turnback™ values again, the order required
Systems to clearly disclose in rental contracts and in travel agents’ and other computerized reservation
systems consumers’ liability for damage or loss in excess of the actual cost of repairs to damaged
vehicles or the fair market value of the vehicle, and to post this information at each of its rental locations
where it collects such amounts. The Consent Order also required Systems to distribute a copy of the
Order to all managers who have responsibilities relating to the collision or theft damages from renters,
and to notify the FTC of any proposed change in Systems’ corporate structure. Budget is obligated to
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comply with the Consent Order. The Consent Order terminated on June 17, 2016, and is included in
Exhibit C of this disclosure document.

Except as described above, no litigation information is required to be disclosed in this Item.
ITEM 4
BANKRUPTCY
No bankruptcy information is required to be disclosed in this Item.
ITEM S
INITIAL FEES
When you sign the Payless License Agreement, you must pay Payless fees (the “Initial License

Purchase Fee”) based on the population of the territory covered by that agreement. The Initial License
Purchase Fees are not uniform. Payless calculates the Initial License Purchase Fee as follows:

1. $25500045,000 for a territory with a population of 50,000 people (or under), plus
2. an additional $5,000 for each 5,000 population increment over 50,000 people.

Population is determined by using figures reported by the United States Census Bureau and
updated regularly by a consulting company.

Payless reserves the right to waive or charge Initial License Purchase Fees greater or less than
that specified above based on a variety of factors, including certain characteristics of your territory (for
example, the existence of an airport, resort, large hotel, university, or other prime commercial rental
location; whether you are converting an existing business; and the level of competition in your territory).
Initial License Purchase Fees are uniform and not refundable under any circumstances.

You must pay a one-time Wizard Connection Start Fee of $320.00 per workstation, including
Thin Client Terminals, before licensee begins to operate on Wizard.

ITEM 6
OTHER FEES
Name of Fee Amount Due Date Remarks

Fees Under Rental
System Agreement
Current Rental System | $0.18 per 45 days from the The charge is for
Service Charge Transaction date of the processing your rental

monthly Licensee | transactions through

Settlement Wizard.

Statement also

referred to as

Composite

Statement

11
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Access Charge for a
$42.00 charge)

Statement also
referred to as

Name of Fee Amount Due Date Remarks
Wizard Connection $320.00 per 45 days from the One time set up fee, per
Start Fee workstation date of the terminal, including Thin

Licensee Client Terminals, before
Settlement licensee begins to operate
Statement also on Wizard.
referred to as
Composite
Statement
Wizard Administrative | $150.00 per 45 days from the This fee covers the reports
Reporting Service month plus $0.22 | date of the required for the Licensee’s
Fees times the total Licensee use of Wizard as set forth
value of the Club | Settlement in Schedule E of the Rental
Billing Statement also System Agreement, which
transactions (with | referred to as is the Administrative
a minimum Composite Services Addendum.
monthly Club Statement
Billing charge of
$55.00).
Technical Support $24.00 per 45 days from the This charge is for providing
Service Fee connected date of the you with Help Desk
(Billed together with workstation per Licensee support for Wizard
Wizard Internet month Settlement

Technical Support
Service Fee for a
$42.00 charge)

Statement also
referred to as
Composite
Statement

Composite
Statement
Wizard Internet $18.00 per 45 days from the Applies only if you choose
Access Charge connected date of the to access Wizard through
(Billed together with workstation per Licensee the Internet
month Settlement
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fees.

Statement also
referred to as

Name of Fee Amount Due Date Remarks
Thin Client Set Up Approximately As incurred for Site Survey fees are
Fees $500 per location | third-party vendor | required to be paid by you
charges. Charges to an ABCR approved third
paid to Payless party vendor. One time
will be owed 45 hardware, equipment, and
days from the date | installation fees are paid to
of the Licensee Payless.
Settlement
Statement also
referred to as
Composite
Statement
Frame Relay/MPLS $5,000-$12,000 | 45 days from the The fees will wvary
Network depending upon date of the depending upon the size of
Infrastructure® the number of Licensee your location, if you choose
terminals and Settlement a redundant provider,
hardware Statement also terminal volume, and a
selected. referred to as variety of other factors. A
Composite Site Survey is required and
Statement will determine the system
needs of the location.
Frame Relay/MPLS $480 to $970 per | 45 days from the The monthly fees will vary
Charges® month. date of the depending upon the size of
Licensee your location, if you choose
Settlement a redundant provider,
Statement also terminal volume, and a
referred to as variety of other factors. A
Composite Site Survey is required and
Statement will determine the system
needs of the location.
Aruba/DSL Network $1,000-$1,200 45 days from the The fees will vary
Infrastructure® depending upon | date of the depending upon the size of
the local internet | Licensee your location, if you choose
service provider Settlement a redundant provider,

terminal volume, and a
variety of other factors.
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Statement also
referred to as
Composite
Statement

Name of Fee Amount Due Date Remarks
Aruba/DSL Charges® | $135+ per month | 45 days from the The fees will vary
date of the depending upon the local
Licensee Internet provider. Some
Settlement locations may not be

conducive to an
Aruba/DSL connection. A
Site Survey is required and
will determine the system
needs of the location.

Current Reservation
System Fees®:

Statement also
referred to as
Composite
Statement

a. Reservation Fee® | $2.25-$5.071 45 days from the The fee is attributed to
per reservation date of the reservation operating
Through a Payless Licensee expenses, including but not
contact center, a Settlement limited to the corporate
. Statement also overhead expenses,

GDS, the internet )
(including referred j[o as promotional expenses for

Composite payless.com, and customer
Payless.com), ora Statement complaint service
Direct Link P

expenses.

b. Automated $2.25-85.071 45 days from the This fee covers the

Reservation Fee per reservation date of the transmission fee for
Licensee reservations generated by
Settlement airline or other automated
Statement also reservation systems, and
referred to as processed through the
Composite reservation system, for your
Statement Payless Franchise. The

amount of the fee depends
on which automated
reservation system
generated the reservation
and is subject to change
annually.

c. International $11.50 per 45 days from the This fee covers expenses
Phone Reservation | international date of the for reservations made by
Fee reservation made | Licensee international phone

by phone Settlement sources.
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charges incurred
by the customer
for the rental
transaction.

Statement also
referred to as
Composite
Statement

Name of Fee Amount Due Date Remarks
Monthly License 7.5% of “Gross Payable monthly “Gross Revenue” includes
Fee® Revenue”of by the 15" day of | any and all sums payable

Licensed the following in your operation of the
Business month Licensed Business.
Travel Agency 5% commission Within 30 days of | None
Commissions(® is the standard rental for all
paid to any travel | non-preferred
sources referring | accounts.
business to Preferred accounts
Payless. are processed in
house and
payments will be
by ACH on the
12 day of the
month.
Late Payment Charges | 1.5% per month Upon receipt of Begins accrual on first day
invoice after payments are due and
not paid.
Audit/Inspection Cost of As incurred Payable only if inspection
Costs? inspection, discloses that you failed to
including daily comply with any provision
compensation, of your License Agreement
traveling or our standards in a
expenses, room, manner that would permit
and board us to terminate your
License Agreement
Customer Complaint | Charge back of Upon receipt of We have the authority to
Fee® up to the amounts | invoice/Licensee settle disputes with
of the total rental | Settlement customers. Complaints

handled by Payless on
your behalf will be billed
to you.

©)

Performance Deposit

$2,500 -§10,000

Upon execution of
License
Agreement and
upon demand if
replenishment is

required
Dishonored Check $50 By the 20™ day of
Charge the month of
invoice
Transfer Fee 5% of sales price | Upon transfer
(minimum
$2,500)
Renewal Fee $2,500 Upon renewal
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Name of Fee

Amount

Due Date

Remarks

Termination Fee('?)

Six times the
average monthly
License Fee
multiplied by a
fraction, the
numerator of
which is the
number of days
between the date
of (a) in
“Remarks”
column and end
of 180-day notice
period, and the
denominator of
which is 180

Upon termination

You may be required to
pay Payless a Termination
Fee if you terminate the
License Agreement.

Rate Management $500 — $3,500 Upon receipt of Optional
Programs per month invoice

Fees Under Payless

License Agreement

License Fees 7.5% of the Gross | 10™ of each month

Revenue® of your
Payless Franchise

for the preceding

month
Monthly Marketing Currently $0 Not currently If we begin collecting this
Fee being collected fee, this fee would cover

the costs of producing,
contesting, and paying the
composite statement
(which is also referred to as
LSS — Licensee Settlement
Statement).

Costs for Directory Payless’ costs and | As incurred Payless may (at its option)
Listings expenses for obtain “yellow pages” and
obtaining and “white pages” listings
maintaining identifying your Payless
listings Franchise and charge you
for the costs and expenses
Payless incurs.
16
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Name of Fee Amount Due Date Remarks

Transfer Fees The transfer fee $2,500 deposit No transfer fee is due, and
will be $2,500 (85,000 if private | Payless will refund any
(85,000 if private | stock offering) paid deposit, if transfer
stock offering) when you request | (other than stock offering)
plus up to $7,500 | approval, is not completed because
in out of pocket remainder upon Payless fails to approve it.
expenses during invoice from You are responsible for the
the review and Payless for payment of all your
approval process. | additional out-of-pocket expenses.

out-of-pocket
expenses.

Inspection Cost of As incurred Payable only if inspection
inspection, discloses that you failed to
including daily comply with any provision
compensation, of your Payless License
traveling Agreement or the Manual
expenses, room, in a manner that would
and board permit Payless to terminate

your Payless License
Agreement
Interest 2% over the When any monies, | Interest begins to accrue the

prime interest rate
(listed in the Wall
Street Journal or
other publication
Payless selects) as
of the 1* day of
each month or
highest rate the
law allows,
whichever is less

which in any
manner relate to
your Payless
Franchise, are not
received by
Payless or its
affiliates when
due

day after any monies are
due.

Cost of Correcting
Deficiencies

Payless’ costs and
expenses

As incurred

If you fail to correct
operational deficiencies
after notice, Payless may
(but need not) correct the
deficiencies, and you must
reimburse Payless’ costs
and expenses.

Indemnification

Varies depending
on circumstances

As incurred

You must indemnify
Payless for claims, liability,
losses, and expenses it
incurs from your operations
or dealings with third
parties.
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Name of Fee Amount Due Date Remarks
Termination Fee Six times the As incurred If you terminate by giving
average monthly 180 days’ notice to Payless
License Fee and, in any calendar month
multiplied by a during that 180-day period:
fraction, the (a) you cease operating the
numerator of Payless Franchise, or
which is the (b) your Payless
number of days Franchise’s Gross Revenue
between the date is less than the average
of (a) or (b) in monthly Gross Revenue
“Remarks” during preceding year (or
column and end during the term of the
of 180-day notice Payless License
period, and the Agreement, if less), then
denominator of you must pay Payless this
which is 180 amount.
Fees Upon Temporary | Payless’ costs and | As incurred Applies only if you are in
Operation of Business | expenses, default under Payless
including License Agreement and
management fee Payless (at its option)
assumes management of
your Payless Franchise.
Costs and Attorneys’ Will vary with the | As incurred Due upon your failure to
Fees circumstances comply with the Payless
License Agreement.
Wizard Connection $320.00 per 45 days from the One time set up fee, per
Start Fee workstation date of the terminal, including Thin
Licensee Client Terminals, before
Settlement licensee begins to operate
Statement also on Wizard.
referred to as
Composite
Statement
Wizard Administrative | $150.00 per 45 days from the This fee covers the reports
Reporting Service month plus $0.22 | date of the required for the Licensee’s
Fees times the total Licensee use of Wizard as set forth
value of the Club | Settlement in Schedule E of the Rental
Billing Statement also System Agreement, which
transactions (with | referred to as is the Administrative
a minimum Composite Services Addendum.
monthly Club Statement
Billing charge of
$55.00).
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Wizard Internet
Access Charge for a
$42.00 charge)

Statement also
referred to as

Name of Fee Amount Due Date Remarks
Technical Support $24.00 per 45 days from the This charge is for providing
Service Fee connected date of the you with Help Desk
(Billed together with workstation per Licensee support for Wizard

month Settlement

Composite
Statement
Wizard Internet $18.00 per 45 days from the Applies only if you choose
Access Charge connected date of the to access Wizard through
(Billed together with workstation per Licensee the Internet
Technical Support month Settlement
Service Fee for a Statement also
$42.00 charge) referred to as
Composite
Statement
Thin Client Set Up Approximately As incurred for Site Survey fees are
Fees® $500 per location | third-party vendor | required to be paid by you
(see footnote 9) charges. Charges to an ABCR approved third
paid to Payless party vendor. One time
will be owed 45 hardware, equipment, and
days from the date | installation fees are paid to
of the Licensee Payless.
Settlement
Statement also
referred to as
Composite
Statement
MPLS Network $5,000-$12,000 | 45 days from the The fees will wvary
Infrastructure® depending upon | date of the depending upon the size of
the number of Licensee your location, if you choose
terminals and Settlement a redundant provider,

S7H3H22.27571131122.29

hardware Statement also terminal volume, and a
selected. referred to as variety of other factors. A
Composite Site Survey is required and
Statement will determine the system
needs of the location.
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Statement also
referred to as
Composite
Statement

Name of Fee Amount Due Date Remarks
MPLS Charges® $480 to $970 per | 45 days from the The monthly fees will vary
month. date of the depending upon the size of
Licensee your location, if you choose
Settlement a redundant provider,

terminal volume, and a
variety of other factors. A
Site Survey is required and
will determine the system
needs of the location.

Aruba/DSL Network
Infrastructure™

$1,000-$1,200
depending upon
the local internet
service provider
fees.

45 days from the
date of the
Licensee
Settlement
Statement also
referred to as
Composite
Statement

The fees will vary
depending upon the size of
your location, if you choose
a redundant provider,
terminal volume, and a
variety of other factors.
Some locations may not be
conducive to an
Aruba/DSL connection. A
Site Survey is required and
will determine the system
needs of the location.

Aruba/DSL Charges®

$135+ per month

45 days from the
date of the
Licensee
Settlement
Statement also
referred to as
Composite
Statement

The fees will vary
depending upon the local
Internet provider. Some
locations may not be
conducive to an
Aruba/DSL connection. A
Site Survey is required and
will determine the system
needs of the location.

*Unless otherwise noted, all fees are uniformly imposed by and payable to Payless and are
non-refundable. The term “Gross Revenue” means any and all sums payable in your operation of
the Licensed Business, including time, mileage, damage or loss waiver, insurance products, fees,
surcharges and any other charges for any ancillary goods or services provided directly or
indirectly in connection with the Licensed Business with limited exclusions including: (1) any
national, state or local sales or other similar taxes separately stated, collected from customers and
paid by you to any applicable governmental authority; (2) any amounts received as insurance
proceeds or otherwise for damage to vehicles or other property, or for loss, conversion or
abandonment of those vehicles; (3) revenue derived from the sale of fuel furnished at the time of
rental and (4) customer facility fees, collected from customers and paid by you to the applicable

airport authority.

S7H3H22.27571131122.29
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(1) You will incur these charges under the Rental System Agreement and related Addendums
and Schedules. The charges will vary depending upon the size of your franchise, the amount of
equipment you use, and whether you choose to connect to Thin Client via MPLS or an
Aruba/DSL Based Network Solution. A Site Survey is required prior to installation. The Survey
must be conducted by an ABCR-approved third-party supplier. The Site Survey fee depends
upon the complexity of the installation and the accessibility of the location and equipment. The
Site Survey will determine the necessary system requirements for your location. The Thin Client
Terminals are purchased through ABCR from an approved third-party supplier. ABCR collects
the fee and forwards it to the vendor, without profit. The hardware and equipment may be
purchased through an approved third-party supplier and you may choose a local internet service
provider, or two separate providers to ensure a more secure, redundant connection. The fees are
further described in Schedule B to the Rental System Agreement and Schedule 4 to the
Administrative Services Addendum.

(2) You will incur these charges under the Rental System Agreement. The charges will vary
depending on the size of your franchise, the amount of equipment you use, and whether you
choose to connect to Wizard by Internet Access or Legacy SNA (Frame Relay). The charges are
subject to increase on an annual basis.

3) The Reservation System Fees are imposed under the Rental System Agreement, which
you must sign along with the Payless License Agreement. These fees are due for all reservations
which are made for your Payless Franchise by customers, airlines, tour agencies, travel agents,
Internet or e-commerce users, or otherwise through the reservation system during the preceding
month. These fees are incurred on all reservations, including reservations that ABCR attempts to
send to you but you fail to accept for any reason. You must pay these fees without any setoff or
deduction of any kind. Budget collects all fees that the Rental System Agreement (and its
exhibits) imposes. Payless and ABCR may periodically adjust these fees upon 30 days’ prior
written notice to you unless otherwise specified below.

4) The Reservation Fee covers: (i) the operating expenses of the Reservation System,
including expenses for the acquisition, maintenance, and enhancement of facilities, equipment,
and personnel for the Reservation System; (ii) general overhead expenses in administering and
processing reservations, which include the oversight of the operation, accounts payable
processing, tax return preparation, internal audits, and partner and association expenses; (iii)
administrative expenses in processing customer complaints (does not include amounts that
Licensee must pay ABCR for resolving customer complaints); (iv) expenses related to the
promotion of budget.com and other reservation channels and partnerships; and (v) reservations
made by general consumers, tour licensees, or corporate customers who connect directly with the
Reservation System. Payless may periodically adjust the Reservation Fee or any other
Reservation System Fees, upon 30 days’ prior written notice.

(%) Payable by electronic funds transfer or other means as specified by Payless. If you fail to
make this payment to Payless when due, Payless may remove or suspend your right to receive
reservations.

(6) You are required to participate in the Payless System Commission Payment Program,
which is administered by a third-party provider. In addition to providing funds sufficient to pay
applicable commissions at a cost of 5% — 30% of time and mileage, you will have to pay a
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transaction fee of $1.30 per commission payment/report for each agency during the reporting
period (the transaction fee in the United States is $3.30 for international transactions involving
currency conversion). If you fail to process or remit commissions as specified, Payless may pay
them on your behalf, bill you for any such amounts plus a handling charge of $50 per source, and
may remove or suspend your location’s right to receive reservations.

(7) If an inspection of your business finds that you have violated the License Agreement or
our standards in a way that gives Payless the right to terminate the agreement, you will remit all
costs associated with the audit including travel expenses and wages.

(8) Under our customer service program, we have the right to resolve disputes between you
and your customers at our discretion, and we have the right to charge you up to the total amount
of the dispute plus any applicable handling fee if we must resolve complaints from your
customers. We have the right to handle complaints directed by renters to us and refund monies
to the renter as deemed appropriate. The handling fee, if charged, covers our costs in
administering the customer service program and resolving disputes with your customers.

9) The Performance Deposit must be paid when you sign the License Agreement. These
deposits are intended to secure payment of amounts owed under the agreement such as travel
agent commissions, reservations fees, and complaint disbursements. The amount of the
Performance Deposit is $2,500 for Local Licenses and up to $10,000 (based on market size) for
Airport Licenses, depending upon your creditworthiness. The Performance Deposit is subject to
change to account for increases attributable to inflation or the cost of providing reservations,
marketing or other services to you. The Performance Deposit is refundable at the time of transfer
or termination of the franchise provided you are in compliance with all the terms of the License
Agreement.

(10)  You may terminate the License Agreement by providing one hundred eighty (180) days

written notice to Payless. However, you will be charged a termination fee if, in any calendar

month during that one hundred eighty (180) day period: (a) you cease to operate the Licensed

Business; or (b) the Licensed Business’ Gross Revenue is less than the average monthly Gross

Revenue of the Licensed Business during the preceding one (1) year period (or during the term of
this Agreement if less than one year). Instead of paying any monthly fees for the remainder of
the one hundred eighty (180) day period, you will pay the Termination Fee which equals: (i) six

(6) times the amount of the average monthly fees, which were payable by you for the

immediately preceding one (1) year period (or during the term of the License Agreement if
termination occurs before its one year anniversary); multiplied by (ii) a fraction, the numerator of
which is the number of days between the occurrence of the event in (a) or (b) above and the end

of the one hundred eighty (180) day period, and the denominator of which is one hundred eighty

(180).
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ITEM 7

ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

Estimated Amount
or Estimated

Low-High Range Method of

Expenditure (30 Car Fleet) When Payable | Payment To Whom Paid
Initial License $36,66050,000 Upon signing | As agreed Payless
Purchase Fee® your License

Agreement
Construction, $15,000-$75;66050,0 Asincurred | Asagreed | Outside suppliers
remodeling, 00
decorating, and
leasehold
improvements®®
Furniture, fixtures, $15,000-$28,000 As incurred | Asagreed | Payless and
other fixed assets, and outside suppliers
equipment®®®
Signage® $10,000-$26,66625,0 Asincurred | Asagreed | Outside suppliers
00
3 months’ rent and $9,000-$18,000 for | As specified in | Installments | Landlord
security deposits® three month period lease
Vehicle Insurance $15,000-%$37,500 As specified in | Installments | Third Parties
Premiums” insurance
contract
Grand opening $2,000-$5,000 Before grand | As agreed | Third parties
advertising and opening
promotional costs
Office supplies $500-$2,000 Asincurred | Asincurred | Outside suppliers
Miscellaneous opening $1,000-$3,000 Asincurred | Asincurred | Third parties
costs®
Automobiles®ID $450,000-$1,290,000 As arranged | As arranged | See note 94
plus interest
Travel and living $3,000-$7,500 As incurred As incurred | Payless and Third
expenses during parties
training (3 months to
understand)1?®
Additional $55,000-$72,400 Asincurred | Asincurred | Payless and third
funds—three parties
months®
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YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT

Estimated Amount
or Estimated
Low-High Range Method of
Expenditure (30 Car Fleet) When Payable | Payment To Whom Paid
TOTAL $605,500625,500-51,
ESTIMATED 588,400
INITIAL
INVESTMENT?
NOTES
1. The Initial License Purchase Fee is $36;60050,000 based on a population of 55,000,

but can vary as described in Items 1 and 5. All fees paid to Payless as a part of your initial
investment are not refundable. The refundability of fees paid to outside suppliers and third
parties depends on your arrangements with them.

2. You must provide an approved facility at your own cost. Cost will vary by area. Airport
Licenses must be located within 5 miles of the airport. Facilities may be stand-alone buildings or
incorporated into other uses such as hotels or vehicle parking facilities.

3. Cost factors will vary depending on the degree of renovation/refurbishment required.

4. Figures presented assume that vehicles will be purchased outright. Figures are-based
on a fleet size ranging from 30 vehicles to 300 vehicles at an average cost of $19,60615,000 per
vehicle_(for an economy car) to $43,000 per vehicle (for a luxury car), would be $450,000 to
$1.290,000 for a 30-vehicle fleet composed solely of economy or luxury cars.

5. Costs will vary depending on location selected. Our image program must be adhered to
at all times throughout the term of the License Agreement. Certain logo image items must be
purchased through Payless approved vendors to ensure uniformity (interior signage, uniforms,
shuttle bus decals, etc). Other image items, if purchased from a source other than Payless, must
first be approved by Payless before installing (rental counter, flooring, exterior signage, shuttle
bus, etc.).

6. Local Licenses must obtain a minimum of a one-user system, including hardware,
software, and programs (including computer hardware and software for your general use and for
your use of Wizard and includes an estimate of your initial costs in connection with your access
and use of Wizard). Airport locations require a minimum of a two-user system, including
hardware, software, and programs. Additional capacity may be necessary, depending on the
needs of the franchisee and the market.

7. Your vehicle insurance premiums will vary based on your initial fleet size, your vehicle
mix, the state in which you insure your vehicles, and whether or not your insurance is issued as
part of an assigned risk pool. Your premiums will also vary if you chose to retain the risk of loss
for damage to and theft of your vehicles, if you qualify as a duly authorized self-insurer, and if
you chose to self-insure for third-party liability, with Payless’ consent. Payless used an estimated
cost of $2000 to $5000 per vehicle per annum to calculate these figures for the cost of obtaining
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insurance coverage for vehicle damage, theft, and third-party liability from vehicle accidents
based on payment of your annual or semi-annual premiums in monthly installments for your first
three months of operation.

8. Your rent will depend on the size, condition, and location of the premises where your
Payless Franchise is located, and the rental market demand in the area of your Payless Franchise.
Your security deposit may vary, depending on your monthly rent payments and local custom.
Security deposits usually are refundable if you comply with the lease during its term.

0. This item covers miscellaneous opening costs and expenses such as utility installation
and deposits, business licenses and certificates, and professional fees.

10. Payless and its affiliates provide training necessary to operate your Payless Franchise.
Payless provides web-based training and seminars, manuals, on-the-job instruction, and other
programs and materials appropriate for you, your General Manager, and other employees Payless
approves. Payless offers web based training through Workday Learning allowing you and your
approved employees to complete training on any device that allows web access. You and your
approved employees must complete the program to Payless's satisfaction (to that extent that they
must actively participate in and timely complete all web-based sessions).

11.  If you operate an Airport License that requires shuttle service, you must have such
courtesy vehicles (vans and buses) to transport passengers to and from the vehicle rental location
and the airport as are reasonably required to service your customers. Courtesy vehicles must be
converted, imaged, and decaled to meet our specifications.

12.  Neither we nor any of our affiliates finance any part of the initial investment.

13. This is only an estimate of the range of initial operating expenses you may incur (other
than items identified separately in the table). These amounts are the minimum recommended
levels to cover your operating expenses for 3 months. However, we cannot guarantee that this
amount will be sufficient. Additional working capital may be required if sales are low or fixed
costs are high. The disclosure laws require us to include this estimate of all costs and expenses
to operate your franchise during the “initial phase” of your business, which is defined as 3
months or a longer period if “reasonable for the industry.” We are not aware of any established
longer “reasonable period,” so our disclosures cover a 3 month period. You should review these
figures carefully with a business advisor before making any decision to purchase the franchise.

ITEM 8
RESTRICTIONS ON SOURCES OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES
Standards.

To maintain a uniformly high standard of performance among all Payless Car Rental businesses,
you must develop and operate your Payless Franchise in strict compliance with the Payless License
Agreement and all standards, specifications, and operating procedures that Payless designates, including
but not limited to the Payless Car Rental Administration Manual (the “Manual”), as Payless may
periodically modify them (the “Standards”). If Payless requires, your Payless Franchise must use the
vehicle models that Payless periodically specifies in the Standards or otherwise in writing. Payless does
not currently specify makes or models for the vehicles that Payless Franchises rent, but you must
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maintain all vehicles in a clean and presentable condition and maintain the quality standards that Payless
periodically specifies for vehicles. Standards also govern the letter and number symbols you must use for
communicating rental rates, vehicle types, credit cards, and other similar information related to rental
transactions. Payless formulates and modifies its Standards based on its and other Network members’
experience in developing and operating Payless Car Rental businesses. Payless will notify you in the
Manual and in other written or electronic communications of the Standards (and modifications to the
Standards).

Other required and optional agreements provide specifications for purchases or leases during the
establishment or operation of your Payless Franchise. The Intercity Rules and Regulations contain
specifications (including rental rates) for aspects like fleet size and insurance. The Corporate Rate
Program regulates some aspects of your rental rates, incentives, and other terms of transactions with
Corporate Rate Program customers. Payless and its affiliates may periodically modify these standards
and specifications.

Other than a non-controlling interest in our ultimate parent, none of our officers own an interest
in any supplier.

Designated and Approved Suppliers.

Your Payless Franchise must participate in Wizard, according to the Rental System Agreement.
ABCR administers the Wizard System and is the only supplier of reservation and rental system services
to Payless Franchises. ABCR also provides reservation and rental processing services using Wizard for
Payless and the Payless business network. All of the fees and other revenues that ABCR currently
receives from Payless Franchises for providing Wizard services are described in Item 6. During
20232024, Wizard Services, Inc. received approximately $220,004-16212,280.03 from providing
reservation services to the Network (based on Wizard Service, Inc.’s internal unaudited financial
records), which represents +-861.83% of its total revenue of $4483+63411,626,636. Except as
described in this Item, neither Payless nor its affiliates derive any revenue as a result of required
purchases or leases of franchisees.

Payless requires you to execute the Rental System Agreement with ABCR, which agreement
provides for all reservation and back office functionalities to your Payless Franchise. Under the Rental
System Agreement you must buy certain hardware, software, and communications utilized in connecting
to Wizard only from Approved Suppliers (see Item 11). In connection with a Thin Client infrastructure
providing you with PCI compliant access to the Wizard System, the Thin Client Terminals must be
purchased from an Approved Supplier through ABCR. The fee collected from you is forwarded to the
supplier. (Schedule B to the Rental System Agreement and Schedule 4 of the Administrative Services
Addendum). Additionally, the Site Surveys must be purchased only from Approved Suppliers. We may
derive revenue from selling Standard Rental Agreement forms and jackets and additional driver forms to
you. Payless derives revenue from the sale of rental jackets to franchisees. For the fiscal year ending
20232024, Payless’ revenues from the sale of Standard Rental Agreement forms and jackets and
additional driver forms was approximately $33:259-7927,692.13 of Payless’ total revenue, not including
the Generic Rental Agreements.

Subject to Payless’ approval, you may, and if Payless requires, you must, in addition to renting
vehicles, sell or rent to your vehicle rental customers products and services directly related to your
vehicle rental business. Payless may require you to sell or rent to your customers designated product
brands and to obtain the products or services that you will sell to your customers only from designated or
approved sources. Payless does not currently require you to sell any products or services other than Loss
Damage Waiver, but may do so in the future. Unless you have a Payless Car Sales Addendum, you are
not authorized to sell vehicles using Payless’ Proprietary Marks.
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In addition, you must purchase items that bear a Proprietary Mark or which are part of the
System identity that meet our specifications as to style, color, design, etc. Examples of these items are
stationery, signage, backwall counter modules, and uniforms. Precise product specifications exist for
each of these items and are made available to franchisees. However, existing franchisees purchase most
of these required items from the suppliers with which we have negotiated purchase contracts due to the
better pricing and available supply. Modifications to existing specifications and standards are
communicated to franchisees through bulletins and revisions to the Manual.

Collectively, the purchases and leases you will make from designated or approved suppliers or
according to the Standards represent approximately 15% of your total purchases and leases in
establishing, and approximately 10% of your total purchases and leases in operating your Payless
Franchise. Except as described in this Item, Payless currently provides no material benefits (like renewal
rights or granting additional franchises) to licensees for using designated, approved, or recommended
sources.

Currently, except as described above, there are no other goods, services, supplies, fixtures,
equipment, inventory, computer hardware or software, or real estate relating to the establishment or
operation of your Payless Franchise that you must purchase or lease from Payless, a Payless affiliate, or
suppliers that Payless designates or approves. Except as described above in this Item, neither Payless nor
its affiliates are approved suppliers for any items or services for your Payless Franchise. However, during
the license term Payless may require you to purchase additional items only from suppliers it designates or
approves (which might include or be limited to Payless or its affiliates). Upon Payless’ request, or if you
want to use any item that Payless has not yet evaluated or buy from a supplier that Payless has not yet
approved (for those items that require supplier approval), you first must submit sufficient information,
specifications, and samples for Payless to determine whether the item complies with the Standards or the
supplier meets Payless’ criteria. Payless currently charges no fee for product or supplier evaluation, but
may do so in the future. Within a reasonable time (typically 30 days) after receiving this information,
Payless will approve or reject the product or supplier. If Payless requires supplier approval, it may
condition this approval on the proposed supplier’s financial record, business reputation, delivery
performance, credit rating, and other criteria; however, currently Payless does not have any set criteria
for approving suppliers. If Payless determines at any time that a product or supplier no longer satisfies
the Standards, it may revoke its approval by notifying you and/or the supplier in writing. You may not
purchase any items or buy from a supplier Payless has disapproved.

Purchase Arrangements with Recommended Suppliers.

Payless has no purchasing or distribution cooperatives. However, Payless and its affiliates
negotiate purchase arrangements (including price terms) with various sources for many of the services
and supplies needed to establish and operate a Payless Franchise. Except as stated above, neither we nor
any of our affiliates are currently approved suppliers.

Insurance.
Type of Insurance Minimum Amount
Fleet Insurance $100,000 / $300,000 bodily injury

and$50,000 per occurrence for property
damage, or such other amounts as are
required by local law.

Lessor’s / Owner’s Excess Liability Insurance | $1,000,000 combined single limit per
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occurrence

General Liability Insurance $1,000,000 combined single limits

ITEM 9
FRANCHISEE’S OBLIGATIONS
This table lists your principal obligations under the License Agreement and other agreements. It

will help you find more detailed information about your obligations in these agreements and in
other items of this disclosure document.

ITEM IN
DISCLOSURE
OBLIGATION SECTION IN AGREEMENT DOCUMENT
a. Site selection and 8.1 to 8.3 of the Payless License Agreement Items 7 and 11
acquisition/lease
b. Pre-opening 8.1,8.2,9.11,9.12,10.2, 10.4 and 10.5 of the | Item 8
purchases/leases Payless License Agreement
IV, V and VI of the Rental System
Agreement

C. Site development and | Art. VIII of the Payless License Agreement Items 6, 7, and 11
other pre-opening
requirements Art. IV and V of the Rental System

Agreement

I of the Intercity Rules and Regulations

d Initial and ongoing Art. IV of the Payless License Agreement Item 11
training Art. VI of the Rental System Agreement
e. Opening 8.4, 10.2 and the Summary Pages of the Item 11

Payless License Agreement

f. Fees Art. V and VII, and Summary Pages of the Items 5, 6, and 11
Payless License Agreement

Art. III, Schedules B, C and D of the Rental
System Agreement

VI and Addendum A of the Intercity Rules
and Regulations

I.F(4) and I G of Exhibit G to the Payless
License Agreement (Transfer Requirements)
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OBLIGATION

SECTION IN AGREEMENT

ITEM IN
DISCLOSURE
DOCUMENT

Compliance with
standards and
policies/Manual

Preambles, Art. Il and 9.11, 9.21, 9.22, and
9.23 of the Payless License Agreement

I-VIII, Schedules A-D of the Rental System
Agreement

The Intercity Rules and Regulations

Exhibit G to the Payless License Agreement
(Transfer Requirements)

Items 8 and 11

Trademarks and
Proprietary
Information

Art. II of the Payless License Agreement

Items 1, 13, and 14

Restrictions on
products and services
offered

1.8, 1.4, Art. VI, 8.6,9.6,9.11,9.12, 9.14,
and 9.18 of the Payless License Agreement

IX of the Rental System Agreement

Items 8 and 16

Warranty and Art. VI, 9.10,9.12,9.13, 9.18, and 9.21 of the | Items 8 and 16
customer service Payless License Agreement
requirements
II of the Rental System Agreement
L, I, VIII, IX, XI, XII, XV, XX, XXI, and
XXII of the Intercity Rules and Regulations
Territorial Art. VIII and the Summary Pages of the Items 11 and 12

development and sales
quotas

Payless License Agreement

Ongoing product and
service purchases

Art. VI, 8.6, Art. IX, 10.1, 10.3, 10.4, and the
Summary Pages of the Payless License
Agreement

I, II, VI, and Schedules 1 and 3 of Schedule
C, Schedule D and Schedule E of the Rental
System Agreement

Items 8 and 11

Maintenance, 8.5 of the Payless License Agreement Item 11
appearance and

remodeling III, XII, XV, XVIII, and Addendum A of the

requirements Intercity Rules and Regulations

Insurance 9.4 of the Payless License Agreement Items 7 and 8

II, XVII, and XVIII of the Intercity Rules and
Regulations

S7H3H22.27571131122.29
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ITEM IN
DISCLOSURE
OBLIGATION SECTION IN AGREEMENT DOCUMENT
0. Advertising Art. V and Art. X of the Payless License Items 6, 8, and 11
Agreement
p- Indemnification Art. XIII of the Payless License Agreement (2 | Item 6
of Personal Guarantee)
q-. Owner’s participation/ | 9.1, 9.2, and 11.10 of the Payless License Item 15
management/staffing Agreement
11, IX, and XXIII of the Intercity Rules and
Regulations
r. Records and reports 9.7, 9.8, and 9.10 of the Payless License Item 6
Agreement
VII-VIII of the Rental System Agreement
VII, XII, XVIII, and XXIII of the Intercity
Rules and Regulations
Exhibit F of the Payless License Agreement
S. Inspections and audits | 9.17 of the Payless License Agreement Item 6
t. Transfer Art. XII and Exhibit F of the Payless License | Items 6 and 17
Agreement
XII of the Rental System Agreement
u. Renewal 11.1 of the Payless License Agreement Item 17
v. Post-Termination 11.6 to 11.9 of the Payless License Item 17
Obligations Agreement
X and XI of the Rental System Agreement
w.  Non-competition 1.6 and 11.9 and the Nondisclosure and Item 17
covenants Noncompetition Agreement of the Payless
License Agreement
x.  Dispute Resolution 14.9 to 14.13 of the Payless License Item 17
Agreement
XIX of the Intercity Program
y.  Intercity Rentals The Intercity Rules and Regulations Items 1, 6, 8, 16, and
17
7. Personal Guarantee 12.7 and Exhibit A of the Payless License Ttems 1, 7, 15
Agreement were intentionally deleted
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ITEM IN
DISCLOSURE
OBLIGATION SECTION IN AGREEMENT DOCUMENT
aa.  Assignment of account | /-7 and 14.5 of the Payless License
and other receivables | Agreement
bb.  Lien on equipment 7.7 of the Payless License Agreement
and property
cc.  Honor National Art. V1. 9.13, 11.10 and VI of the Payless Items 1, 6, 11, and
Account agreements License Agreement 12
and participate in
Programs
dd. Additional 8.6 of the Payless License Agreement Item 12
development in
Territory
ee. Wizard Participation 6.2, 9.16, and Exhibit F of the Payless Items 6 and 7
License Agreement

ITEM 10
FINANCING

Neither Payless nor its affiliates offers direct or indirect financing to Payless franchisees.
Payless does not guarantee your note, lease, vendor purchases, or any other obligation.

We are listed on the SBA Franchise Directory located at:

https://www.sba.gov/document/support--sba-franchise-directory. If you obtain financing through the
SBA, you must sign the SBA Addendum to Franchise Agreement, attached as Exhibit H-1.

ITEM 11

FRANCHISOR'’S ASSISTANCE, ADVERTISING,
COMPUTER SYSTEMS, AND TRAINING

Except as listed below, Payless need not provide you with any assistance.
Before the Opening of Your Payless Franchise.
Before you open your business, Payless will:

1) Approve the trade name for your Payless Franchise (the Payless License Agreement,
initial recital of parties).

2) Designate your territory. Your authorization to operate a Payless Franchise is limited to
an authorized geographic area (the Payless License Agreement, paragraph 1.5, the
Summary Pages) (see Item 12).

3) Furnish your General Manager and other employees Payless approves with instruction on
the operation of a Payless Franchise, as further described in this Item (the Payless
License Agreement, paragraphs 4.1 and 4.2).
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4)

5)

6)

7)

8)

9)

10)

11)

12)

Calculate your Initial License Purchase Fee (the Payless License Agreement,
paragraph 7.1 and the Summary Pages) (see Item 5).

Establish minimum annual License Fees based on your territory and the expected
business demand in that territory (the Payless License Agreement, paragraph 7.2) (see
Item 6).

Establish a minimum number of rental offices for your territory, based on the expected
business demand and any needs of the airport and central business district in your
territory (the Payless License Agreement, paragraph 8.1 and the Summary Pages).

Establish the deadline for you to open your Payless Franchise. If you fail to find a
location that Payless approves and open and begin operating your Payless Franchise
within the time period Payless specifies, Payless may terminate your Payless License
Agreement (the Payless License Agreement, paragraph 8.4 and the Summary Pages).

Approve your selection of one or more locations that meet Payless’ criteria, which must
be within your licensed territory (see Item 12). In approving the location(s) for your
Payless Franchise, Payless’ Licensee Relations Department will consult with and assist
you, but Payless does not own or lease the locations at which Payless Franchises operate.
When determining whether to approve a location for your Payless Franchise, Payless will
consider factors such as traffic count, demographics, rent, suitability for use as a Payless
Franchise, exposure, parking, and proximity to the central business district. Payless
usually approves or disapproves of your selection within two weeks. You may not open a
location for your Payless Franchise without Payless’ approval (the Payless License
Agreement, paragraph 8.3).

Establish your initial automobile requirements (the Payless License Agreement,
paragraph 8.1 and the Summary Pages).

Establish average annual market penetration quotas, based on the territory assigned to
your Payless Franchise and the expected market demand in that territory (the Payless
License Agreement, paragraph 8.1 and the Summary Pages).

Payless will lend you one copy of the Manual and any other manuals Payless provides
for franchisees. The Manual is confidential and remains Payless’ property. Payless may
modify the Manual as Payless determines useful to preserve or enhance the efficient
operation, image, or goodwill of Payless’ Proprietary Marks and Payless Franchises, but
any modification will not alter your status or rights under the Payless License
Agreement. You may view the Manual in confidence if you sign and return a
Confidentiality Agreement to Payless (See Exhibit D). You must return the Manual and
any other manuals to Payless when required under the Payless License Agreement (the
Payless License Agreement, Article III) (see Item 8).

Provide you information concerning the equipment, signs, fixtures, supplies, and vehicles
that you will need to develop and operate your Payless Franchise (the Payless License
Agreement, paragraphs 9.11 and 9.12) (see Items 7 and 8). We will provide a list of
approved vendors and specifications related to equipment, signs, fixtures, opening
inventory, and supplies. However, we will not deliver or install these items.
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13)  We do not provide assistance with conforming the premises to local ordinances
and building codes and obtaining any permits, and/or constructing, remodeling, or
decorating the premises, and/or hiring and training employees.

During the Operation of Your Payless Franchise.

During the operation of your Payless Franchise, Payless will:

1) Furnish a representative and additional resources through web-based training seminars,
field visits, or other programs, at its expense, to train and assist your General Manager
and employees in the operation of your Payless Franchise, as in Payless’ judgment is
necessary (the Payless License Agreement, paragraphs 4.1 and 4.2).

2) Furnish operating training and assistance through web-based training seminars,
representatives, or other training programs requiring your (and/or your managers’)
attendance as deemed necessary by Payless (the Payless License Agreement,
paragraph 4.2). Operating assistance and training may include advice and guidance for
establishing administrative, bookkeeping, accounting, and general operating procedures,
and the acquisition, disposition, and financing of fleet and equipment.

3) Advertise suggested rental rates or include rental rates in promotions (the Payless
License Agreement, paragraphs 6.1 and 9.15). To the maximum extent permitted by
law, you must comply with, and adhere to, any rental rates Payless sets (including
complying with and adhering to maximum rates Payless establishes). If Payless does not
set rental rates, but you communicate to Payless your decision to adhere to Payless’
suggested rental rates, then you must honor those rates. You also must honor rental rates
that Payless periodically establishes under the Corporate Rate Program, with regard to
National Accounts, as such accounts are designated by Payless from time to time.

4) Evaluate and approve or reject a website you propose (or changes to your approved
website) (the Payless License Agreement, paragraphs 9.2 and 10.1).

5) Review and consider requests for approval of any transfer of your Payless Franchise
(Transfer Requirements, Exhibit F of the Payless License Agreement) (see Items 6
and 17).

6) Together with Avis Budget Car Rental make rental reservations available to you through

the Payless Reservations System under the terms set forth in the Rental System
Agreement (the Payless License Agreement, paragraph 6.2). Wizard is an online, real
time reservations system. Participation in Wizard is mandatory because Payless
considers Wizard to be a significant part of the Payless Car Rental System. Avis Budget
Car Rental, LLC or its subsidiaries currently will provide you with services under the
Rental System Agreement as follows:

a) Provide facilities, equipment, and personnel for the Payless Reservation System
which may be reasonably necessary for the solicitation, reception, and
transmission of national and international reservations for your Payless
Franchise (Rental System Agreement, paragraph 11.2.(b));

b) Resolve customer complaints by payment for your Payless Franchise up to $150
without prior approval from you. Adjustments greater than $150 require contact
and approval by you (Rental System Agreement, paragraph II.1.(b); and
provide you with a report documenting payments Payless makes on your behalf
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pursuant to the Payless Licensee Customer Adjustment Procedure (Rental
System Agreement, paragraph 1.1.(a)l);

c) For as long as Avis Budget Car Rental operates the Payless Reservation System
domestically on a nonprofit basis, prepare a profit and loss statement for the
reservation system and reconcile the applicable fees and expenses, and, within
ninety (90) days adjust the fees for the then current year (including any
retroactive adjustment to the beginning of the then current calendar year) (Rental
System Agreement, paragraph I1.3.) (see Item 6); and

d) Pay travel agencies commissions or other similar booking sources for referral of
customers through the Payless Reservation System by one central payment
method (Rental System Agreement, Schedule F3).

e) During the term of the Rental System Agreement, Payless will comply with the
Rental System Agreement’s terms and conditions, and pay the fees it describes,
for Payless Car Rental locations that it operates.

Opening Your Payless Franchise.

The length of time between the signing of your Payless License Agreement (and the payment of
your Initial License Purchase Fee) and the opening of your Payless Franchise is typically 0 to 90 days.
Factors affecting this time period may include your ability to obtain a lease, financing, or building
permits; zoning and local ordinances; weather conditions; timing of yellow pages or other telephone
directory advertisements; and shortages or delayed installation of equipment, fixtures, inventory, or signs
(the Payless License Agreement, paragraphs 8.4, 10.4 and 10.5).

The Manual.

You may view the Manual before you purchase a Payless Franchise if you sign the
Confidentiality Agreement attached to this disclosure document as Exhibit D (the Payless License
Agreement, Article III). You cannot, during the term of your Payless License Agreement or after the
Agreement is terminated:

a) reproduce, exhibit, or disclose the Manual, or any confidential element of or information
about a Payless Franchise, to anyone other than your partners, shareholders, directors,
and employees; or

b) disclose any confidential information communicated to your partners, shareholders,
directors, and employees by or at the direction of Payless.

Payless Rent A Car businesses operate in a dynamic business environment requiring Payless’
careful assessment of long-range interests and the overall direction of all Payless Rent A Car vehicle
rental locations, and the decision-making flexibility appropriate to achieve Payless’ determined goals.
Accordingly, Payless may periodically modify the Manual and the Standards through bulletins,
supplements, and other communications. You must comply with all of these modifications.

The table of contents of our Manual is attached as Exhibit M. Our Manual has a total of 538
pages.

Training.
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Payless and its affiliates provide training necessary to operate your Payless Franchise. Payless
provides web-based training and seminars, manuals, on-the-job instruction, and other programs and
materials appropriate for you, your General Manager, and other employees Payless approves. Payless
offers web—basedweb-based training through Workday Learning allowing you and your approved
employees to complete training on any device that allows web access. You and your approved employees
must complete the program to Payless's satisfaction (to that extent that they must actively participate in
and timely complete all web-based sessions). You must complete the initial training at least 30 days
before opening the business.

Payless offers approximatelyfiftyfive{55)individualnumerous web-based trainingcourses and
programs and-seminars-via Workday Learning-as-neted-in-the-eatalogues-below—These-training programs-
and-seminars-inelude. The content 1ncludes instruction en—al-aspeets—eftheand information on multiple

topics such as Wizard and Wizard-WaND (GUI) point of sale-system-and-methods-that Paylessutilizesin-

%h&epemﬂeﬁ—ef—ﬁs—llaﬁess—llmﬂehfs%usmess Customer Service and Counter Sales. Laura Lirio is the
Global Senior Director;-Glebal-Learning—& of Organizational Development for ABCR;- and supervises

the training program. Ms. Lirio has held her current title since November 2022. Should on-the-job
training or instruction at a different location be required, the instructors will have at least one year of
experience in the car rental mdustry Instructors also may be members of the Licensee Relations
Department. -

Periodically during the license term, Payless may add new and refresher web-based training
programs and seminars and may require you and your General Manager and other managerial personnel
of your Payless Franchise to satisfactorily complete these. Payless communicates the requirement to
complete such web-based training programs and seminars via System Bulletins (the Payless License
Agreement, paragraph 4.2). You and/or your General Manager also must attend any periodic conventions
or seminars that Payless holds for the Network (the Payless License Agreement, paragraph 4.3). You
must bear all of your and your personnel's cost of attending these programs, conventions, and seminars,
including travel, lodging, meals, and wages.

Below is a list of the training content available in Workday Learning to franchisees.

TRAINING PROGRAM
SUBJECT CLASSROOM HOURS OF LOCATION
TRAINING | ON-THE-JOB-
(minutes) TRAINING

Compass App Training for Independent Operators 3 0 Workday Learning - Online Training
Compass App Training for Lot Attendants 3 0 Workday Learning - Online Training
Compass App Training for Fleet Distribution 3 0 Workday Learning - Online Training
Compass App Training for Shuttlers 3 0 Workday Learning - Online Training
Compass App Training for Lot Coordinators 3 0 Workday Learning - Online Training
Compass App Training for Service Agents 3 0 Workday Learning - Online Training
Compass App Training for Return Associates & CSRs | 3 0 Workday Learning - Online Training
Managing Work Items in Compass 5 0 Workday Learning - Online Training
Creating Complaints in the Compass App 5 0 Workday Learning - Online Training
Signing Into the Compass App 5 0 Workday Learning - Online Training
Getting to Know the Avis and Budget Apps | N. 5 0 Workday Learning - Online Training
America and APAC

Budget Truck Dealer Training Curriculum 2 0 Workday Learning - Online Training
10 Point Inspection SOP Budget Truck 5 0 Workday Learning - Online Training
LMT Territory Performance Manager: Your Role 0 0 Workday Learning - Online Training
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LMT Territory Performance Manager: Getting Started

lln
(=

at ABG

Workday Learning - Online Training

Understanding the Weekly Rental Report

Workday Learning - Online Training

Working the Long-Term Rental Exception Report

Workday Learning - Online Training

Working the Long-Term Rental Report to Process
Rewrites

IBSNNESHIES
(=3}~ i)

Workday Learning - Online Training

Accessing the Truck Productivity Report

—_
S

Workday Learning - Online Training

Tracking Units Using Edison or AirlQ Software

Workday Learning - Online Training

Completing the New Dealer Setup Process

Workday Learning - Online Training

Prospecting for New Dealers

Workday Learning - Online Training

Prospecting New Account Leads

Workday Learning - Online Training

Displaying Unit History in TRABO

Workday Learning - Online Training

Using TRABO Basics

o lon 112 [l HE I~ H

Workday Learning - Online Training

Recovering Lost Revenue Using TRABO2's OW
Cancel Function

oo |lo|flo|io|io|io|lie

—
(==}

Workday Learning - Online Training

Updating Charge Cards in TRABO2 for Automated
Long-Term Rentals

BN
(=}

Workday Learning - Online Training

Using POS - F6 Admin to Correct Mileage for Budget

BN
(=}

Truck

Workday Learning - Online Training

Using AdhocReporting for TRABO

Workday Learning - Online Training

Managing Shop Agreements for Truck Maintenance or

I3 [llon
[ =X}lI=}

Repairs

Workday Learning - Online Training

Managing Overdues, Swaps, and Shop Trucks Using
FleetNet

(=

Workday Learning - Online Training

Data Privacy and Protection | Avis India

—_
()]

Workday Learning - Online Training

Code of Conduct | Avis India

Workday Learning - Online Training

Confidentiality and Intellectual Property | Avis India

lon |12 H

Workday Learning - Online Training

Prevention of Workplace Sexual Harassment | Avis
India

—

=
=3 [N [~} =]

Workday Learning - Online Training

Anti-Bribery and Corruption | Avis India

Workday Learning - Online Training

Safeguarding Our Fleet at the Exit Gate

Workday Learning - Online Training

Personalizing the Energize Customer Experience

Workday Learning - Online Training

LMC Territory Performance Manager: Getting Started

lln H'—‘ lon [l
(%)
o|lo|io|lie

at ABG

Workday Learning - Online Training

LMC Territory Performance Manager: Your Role

Workday Learning - Online Training

Preparing New Independent Operators for a Location

Workday Learning - Online Training

Reviewing and Signing Off Fleet Reports in SMWR

Workday Learning - Online Training

Working the Fleet Overdue Report in SMWR

Workday Learning - Online Training

Working the Fleet Open Movement Report in SMWR

llon | o [ 1IN | llon

Workday Learning - Online Training

Operations Management Resource Guide

—
(==}

Workday Learning - Online Training

Applying Basic Daily Duties for End of Shift

5|1
W

Workday Learning - Online Training

Applying Basic Daily Duties for During Shift

—
(V)]

Workday Learning - Online Training

Applying Basic Daily Duties for Shift Setup

—_
()]

Workday Learning - Online Training

Discovering and Submitting a New Business Lead

Workday Learning - Online Training

SMWR Portal Guide v15

Workday Learning - Online Training

Practicing the Listen Own Resolve Technique

Workday Learning - Online Training

Overcoming Customer Service Objections | Toolkit

BN HS IS |llw H

Workday Learning - Online Training

Defusing Difficult Conversations with De-escalation

olloliofio|o|io|io|io|lio|io|io| i | IS

—
(==}

Workday Learning - Online Training
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Introducing the Avis Preferred Program | International

Workday Learning - Online Training

Completing Daily Vehicle Inventory Using MDMS

Workday Learning - Online Training

Reviewing the E-Signature Offline Report

Workday Learning - Online Training

Using the Manifest in WaND to Confirm Pre-Raised
Rentals

o | I [ I [ llon
o|lo|lio|io

Workday Learning - Online Training

Operations Manager Assessment | International

Workday Learning - Online Training

Preparing for the Operations Manager Assessment |
International

|8ls
BE

Workday Learning - Online Training

Signing In to the Station Manager Weekly Report
Portal

lln
(=

Workday Learning - Online Training

Utilising the Basic Daily Duties Checklist

lln

Workday Learning - Online Training

Ready.Set.GO. During Shift | International

Workday Learning - Online Training

Monitoring the Daily Allocation of Fuel Cards

Workday Learning - Online Training

Reviewing the Application Usage Report for WaND
and E-Signature

=3[l [ =
ol |lio| e

Workday Learning - Online Training

Monitoring Your Team's Counter Sales Results |
International

i)

Workday Learning - Online Training

Ready. Set. Go. Shift Set Up | International

Workday Learning - Online Training

DAY ONE: Code of Conduct

Workday Learning - Online Training

Accessing Help in WaND

Workday Learning - Online Training

Reviewing Document Logs in WaND

Workday Learning - Online Training

Applying a Manual Rate in WaND

Workday Learning - Online Training

Viewing Rental Agreement Data Using Trace Results

Workday Learning - Online Training

Processing a Partial Rental Agreement

Workday Learning - Online Training

Processing an Insurance Replacement Rental

Workday Learning - Online Training

Understanding Excess Reduction & Zero Excess
Coverage

[l [l [l | 1w | 1o [ w2 (w2 H>—‘ [I—
)
ollo|ilo|lo|io|io|lio|lo|lio

Workday Learning - Online Training

Understanding Windscreen & Tyre Protection

Workday Learning - Online Training

Accepting Credit/Debit Cards in New York State

Workday Learning - Online Training

Using Offline Mode in WaND

Workday Learning - Online Training

Completing a Vehicle Exchange Using MDMS

Workday Learning - Online Training

Using the Automated Readyline and Inventory
Function in MDMS

I [ 1= | I | llon
ollo|lo|lo|lo

Workday Learning - Online Training

Raising a VTC or NRT using MDMS

Workday Learning - Online Training

Adding Information to FNOL

Workday Learning - Online Training

Documenting Vehicle Damage at Check-In Using
MDMS

I [l 112
oo |lio

Workday Learning - Online Training

Conducting a 14-Point Check

—_
(==}

Workday Learning - Online Training

Completing a Check-In using MDMS

Workday Learning - Online Training

Exploring the WEB/GEB Rental Process

Workday Learning - Online Training

Using Explain to Energize Your Impact | Module E

Workday Learning - Online Training

Using Educate Protection+ to Energize Your Impact |
Module D

o [llon [llon HE H
ollo|lio|io|le

Workday Learning - Online Training

Using Educate Vehicle+ to Energize Your Impact |
Module C

[l
i)

Workday Learning - Online Training

Using Engage to Energize Your Impact | Module B

Workday Learning - Online Training

Introducing Energize Your Impact | Module A

lon [l

Workday Learning - Online Training

Rules of the Road: Ethical Sales for International Avis

(=3 [=} ][}

—_
(==}

Budget Group

Workday Learning - Online Training
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Understanding Extended Roadside Assistance 5 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

(International)

Exploring Optional Damage Waiver Protection 5 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

Processing a Digital Agreement using E-Signature 7 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

Understanding Renter Age Requirements & 7 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

Restrictions

Understanding Driving Licence Requirements 7 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

Introduction to ABG Locations & Teams | 10 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

International

Operations Manager: Getting Started at ABG 5 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

Shuttler: Getting Started at ABG 5 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

Service Agent: Getting Started at ABG 5 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

Preferred/Fastbreak Associate: Getting Started at 5 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

ABG

Rental Sales Associate: Getting Started at ABG 5 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

Promoting and Managing Electric Vehicles 10 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

Digital Customer Journey 10 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

Assigning a Vehicle to a Partial Rental Agreement 5 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

Canada P-Products Training 10 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

Race and Ethnicity Toolkit 2023 15 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

Preventing Fraud Using the 365 ID Scanner 5 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

Preparing for Chip and PIN PED Devices 7 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

Antitrust & Competition 10 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

Reviewing the Daily Overview in Time4U 5 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Managing Employee Incidents: Workers' 5 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -

Compensation Online Training

Closing a Pay Period in Time4U 5 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Correcting Unpaired Punches Using Time4U 5 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Starting Up with WorkJam 5 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Starting Up with Time4U 5 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Reviewing the Timecard Statement in Time4U 5 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Speaking with Beth Gibson 45 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Speaking with Jessica Kornacki 60 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Speaking with Lauren Nance 60 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Speaking with Joe Siino 60 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Speaking with Rob Calderone 45 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Speaking with Carla Granger 60 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Speaking with Michelle 'Mick' Lee 35 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -

Online Training

anamnC idhe DI

=
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Clearinghouse

o C T Drivers—C i T DC = e - Traimi
Regulations
Resource: New Hire Training Programs 1 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -
Online Training
Managing Workplace Safety: Outdoor Heat & Illness 5 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -
Prevention Online Training
Managing Workplace Safety: Hazard Recognition 5 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -
Online Training
Managing Workplace Safety: General Safety 7 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -
Management Online Training
Managing Workplace Safety: Emergency 7 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -
Preparedness Online Training
Managing Workplace Safety: Conducting Safety 5 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -
Inspection Online Training
Automated Long Term Rental | Budget Truck 10 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -
Online Training
APAC - Safety Induction Checklist 5 0 Workday Learning - Online Training
Managing OSHA: Communications and Interactions 7 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training
Managing Employee Incidents: Conducting an 5 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Employee Incident Investigation Online Training
Guiding Your New Hire Through Their Training 3 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Program Online Training
Shuttler-Getting-StartedUnderstanding Optional 57 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Liability Protections Online Training
Serviee-Agent-Getting-StartedUnderstanding Optional | 57 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Damage Waiver Protection Online Training
Ready. Set- Go. Beecoming a Preferred/Fastbreak- +7 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Asseciate-ExtendedExploring Emergency Sickness Online Training
Protection
—Set—-Ge- +7 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
ExtendedUnderstanding Roadside Assistance Online Training
Coverage
—Set-Ge- +7 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
ExtendedUnderstanding Optional Personal Accident Online Training
and Effects Protection
Poopebe Do Cles Doceine o Lt endan +7 0 Workday LearningBasedLearning -
ExtendedExploring Optional Protection Products B Online Training -
- Set_Go. - - T rd - Traimi
Associate
B + sl e Dol e
Y ) & &
- Bus Driver_Gotine S l 3 WorkdavT o Based Traini
Understanding Wildfire Smoke Protection 5 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -
Online Training
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Shuttler: Your Role 7 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Service Agent: Your Role 7 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Preparing for Emergencies and Evacuations 7 0 Workday LearningBasedLearning -
Online Training

Planning to be a Safe Driver 5 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Partnering in Preventing Terrorism 15 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

Following ABG's Guidelines For A Healthy 5 0 Workday LearninsBasedLearning -

Workplace Online Training

Filling Out the Shuttling Log 3 0 Workday LearninsBasedLearning -
Online Training

Delighting Customers on a Courtesy Bus 3 0 Workday LearninsBasedLearning -
Online Training

Courtesy Bus Driver: Your Role 7 0 Workday LearninsBasedLearning -
Online Training

Applying Safe Bus Driving Practices 5 0 Workday LearninsBasedLearning -
Online Training

Exploring Safety Data Sheets 7 0 Workday LearninsBasedLearning -
Online Training

Reading the Manifest for Courtesy Bus Drivers 5 0 Workday LearninsBasedLearning -
Online Training

Providing Special Needs Accommodations on the Lot | 63 0 Workday LearninsBasedLearning -
Online Training

Assisting Preferred/Fastbreak Customers in your 7 0 Workday LearninsBasedLearning -

Courtesy Bus Online Training

Applying the 8-Step Process for Handling and Lifting | 7 0 Workday LearninsBasedLearning -

Luggage Online Training

Making Bus Announcements for Departing Customers | 5 0 Workday LearninsBasedLearning -
Online Training

Making Bus Announcements for Arriving Customers 5 0 Workday LearninsBasedLearning -
Online Training

Following the Customer's Bus Journey 5 0 Workday LearninsBasedLearning -
Online Training

Conducting a Pre-Trip and Post-Trip Inspection of a 5 0 Workday LearninsBasedLearning -

Courtesy Bus Online Training

Complying with DOT Regulations for Commercial 7 0 Workday LearninsBasedLearning -

Drivers Online Training

Becoming a Product Knowledge Expert 36 0 Workday LearninsBasedLearning -
Online Training

Proceeding on a Safe Journey 5 0 Workday LearninsBasedLearning -
Online Training

Preparing a Safe Vehicle 3 0 Workday LearninsBasedLearning -
Online Training

Understanding the Daily Game Plan 3 0 Workday LearninsBasedLearning -
Online Training

Performing the 15 Step Vehicle Cleaning Process 7 0 Workday LearninsBasedLearning -
Online Training

Moving Vehicles at Your Location 5 0 Workday LearninsBasedLearning -
Online Training

Completing the Vehicle Service Agent Log 5 0 Workday LearninsBasedLearning -
Online Training

Collecting, Cleaning, and Storing Child Safety Seats 3 0 Workday LearninsBasedLearning -
Online Training

B 1 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -
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CoursesAcknowledgment: Discrimination, Bullying
and Harassment Manager Training | Pacific

Online Training

Ready-—Set—GoPreferred/HastbreakIntermediate- + 0 Wetkday Learning-Based-Training

Ceourses

Lemadsn e Cles eedemeadinatbeanls Dange Copess + 0 Solopledazsoneniae Saned leoiniae

Pondn Do Das Lo O Josselobes 1 0 Sieplednss Lonenine Doeed leninine

ReadySet—GoXKey Loader + 0 Wetkday Learning-Based Training

Ready—Set—GoReturn-Assoeiates + 0 Wetkday Learning-BasedTraining

Preferred/HastbreakAssoetate-Getting-Started 3 0 Wetkday Learning-Based-Training

CustomerService Representative: Getting Started 5 0 Wetkday Learning-Based Training

WaND, Wizard, and Mobile WaND 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Return Associate [RA]: Your Role 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Preferred/Fastbreak Associate: Your Role 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Customer Service Representative: Your Role 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Modifying a Rental at the Gate in Mobile WaND 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Modifying and Viewing Customer Profiles Using the 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -

Customer Tab in WaND Online Training

Split Billing at Check-In Using Wizard 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Resolving Customer Issues for Preferred/Fastbreak 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

Booth 3

Updating Vehicles on the Automated Readyline Using 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -

Mobile WaND Online Training

Checking The Vehicle When Loading The Readyline 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Documenting Vehicle Damage in Mobile WaND 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Reviewing Expected and Actual Check-In Numbers 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Processing Non-Revenue or Vehicle Transfer on 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -

Mobile WaND Online Training

Split Billing at Check-In Using WaND 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Organizing Traffic Flow on the Lot 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Identifying and Marking Vehicles Appropriately after 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -

Scanning Online Training

Following the Process for Missing Keys 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Collecting and Storing Returned Products Properly 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -

(GPS/Tablet/Child Safety Seats) Online Training

Modifying a Return in Mobile WaND 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Completing a Basic Check-In Using Mobile WaND 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Explaining the Customer's Charges at Return 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

41

S7H3H22.27571131122.29




Making Fuel Entry at Return in Mobile WaND 3 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Handling FAN Exceptions 3 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Logging in and Setting up Mobile WaND 3 0 Workday LearningBasedLearning -
Online Training

Using the Common Radio 10 Codes to Communicate | 3 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -

with Your Team Online Training

Ensuring Hand-Held Equipment is Ready 3 0 Workday LearningBasedLearning -
Online Training

Using Proper Telephone Techniques 3 0 Workday LearningBasedLearning -
Online Training

Using the Reconciliation Macro for Auto-Void 3 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Setting Auto-Void Parameters in Wizard 3 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Creating Customer Profiles Using the Customer Tab 3 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -

in WaND Online Training

Placing the Right Vehicle, in the Right Place, at the 3 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -

Right Time Online Training

Processing a Vehicle Exchange at the Gate in Mobile 3 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -

WaND Online Training

Processing a Customer at the Gate in Mobile WaND 3 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Answering Questions at the Gate 3 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Reconciling Vehicles on the Readyline 3 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Discrimination, Bullying & Harassment Policy | 10 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

Pacific

Applying the Curbside Delivery Process 3 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Handling Lost and Found Items 3 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

Meet the Fleet 3 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Explaining the Preferred Points System 3 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Assisting First Time Preferred/Fastbreak Members 3 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Answering Customer's Vehicle Questions 3 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Show Positive Behaviors at Return 3 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Providing Directions to Customers 3 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Creating a Personalized Experience For 3 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -

Preferred/Fastbreak Members Online Training

ABG Optional Protection Product Knowledge: 2022 3 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -

Recertification Online Training

Liability Claims : Shift State Responsibility 20 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -

Awareness Online Training

Leslie Saunders Mod1-{Inaetive)Understanding 93 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -

QuickPass Exit Using Avis APP Online Training

e Canels e s e om0 2 Pacific | 3 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -

Counter Wand - How to if you are in 203 or 806
screen

Online Training
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Ready-Set-Go—End-of ShiftPacific Counter Wand — +7 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -

How to void and reissue rentals Online Training

Pacific Counter Wand — How to view and use 404s 4 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

Pacific Counter Wand — How to vehicle Exchange on 7 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

and off lot B B

Pacific Counter Wand — How to use Trace Results 2 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

(SEC SCREEN) B B

Pacific Counter Wand — How to use Estimated Total 2 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

Pacific Counter Wand — How to trace and perform 9 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

Fuel Adjustments

Ready-Set-Go-During-ShiftPacific Counter Wand — +6 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -

How to Partial and Partial add rentals - Online Training

Ready-Set-Go—Shift-SetupPacific Counter Wand — +3 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -

How to Manual Rate a Rental B Online Training

Pacific Counter Wand — How to change Card Method | 2 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

of Payment B B

Pacific Counter Wand - Adding Zero Excess and 2 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

Optionals 3 3

Troubleshooting the Preferred Display Board 7 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Operation Manager Assessment 30 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Preparing for the Operations Manager Assessment 30 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Interacting with Vendor Employees 3 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Resolving Employee Concerns 5 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Providing Premium Service to Prestdent's Clab;- 5 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -

Chairman's Club;- and Driver’s Circle Members Online Training

Time4U: How to use the WorkJam Web and Mobile 1 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -

Clock Online Training

revvGO Growth Guide 5 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Meeting Your Objectives Through Basic Daily Duties | 10 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Understanding Your Daily Objectives 10 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Avis Budget Group Systems and Online Resources 7 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Understanding the Rules for Readylines 5 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Differentiating Vehicles Based on Ownership, Status, | 5 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -

and Car Class Online Training

Evaluating New Hires During Their First 90 Days of 5 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -

Employment Online Training

Introduction to Avis Budget Group Locations and 10 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -

Teams Online Training

Operations Manager: Your Role 5 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Pulling and Reviewing One-Way Reservations in 3 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -

WaND Online Training

Retaining Employees at Avis Budget Group: Three 10 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -

Simple Steps Online Training

Signing into Time 4U and WorkJam 5 0 Workday Learnine-BasedLearning -
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Online Training

Preparing and Communicating the Daily Game Plan 3 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Reviewing Special Services Manifest for Operational 5 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -

Readiness Online Training

Pulling and Reviewing President's Club, Chairman's 3 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -

Club, and Driver's Circle Reservations in WaND Online Training

Training and Coaching Employees on Listen. Own. 3 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -

Resolve. Online Training

Pulling and Reviewing Manifests in WaND 5 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Pulling and Reviewing Top Account Manifest in 3 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -

WaND Online Training

Checking and Analyzing Your NPS and VOTC 3 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -

Results in Medallia Online Training

Adjusting Walk Up Rates 5 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Setting Shift Goals For All Workgroups 3 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Conducting a Pre-Shift Managers Meeting 3 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Adjusting Staffing During Your Shift 3 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Accessing Customer Responses in Medallia and 3 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -

Recognizing Your Team Online Training

Resolving Complaints in Medallia 3 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Reviewing and Updating the Upsell Matrix 5 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Completing a Car Count 3 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Providing the Right Car for the Right Rental 5 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Providing a Personalized Experience to Red Carpet 5 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -

Customers Online Training

Entering the DOR 5 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Assessing Vehicle Inventory (VAR) in Wizard 7 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Analyzing Pricing 5 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Utiliser les outils pour mieux planifier son travail 45 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

(CK)

Pacific | Workplace Surveillance Policy | Revised 3 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

2022

Pacific Counter Wand - Help 3 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

Pacific Counter Wand - Upsell 3 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

Pacific Counter Wand - Other Features 3 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

Pacific Counter Wand - Preferred/Fastbreak 4 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

Pacific Counter Wand - Display Rental 6 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

Pacific Counter Wand - Insurance Replacement Rental | 2 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

Pacific Counter Wand - Walkup 3 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

Pacific Counter Wand - Reservation Rates 5 0 Workday Learning - Online Training
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Pacific Counter Wand - Readyline 2 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

Pacific Counter Wand - Check in 2 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

Pacific Counter Wand - Check out 3 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

Pacific Counter Wand - Manifest 2 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

Pacific Counter Wand - Log in 2 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

Investigating a Missing Vehicle 5 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Upholding the Busing Service and Quality Standards 7 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Working the Fleet Idle Report in SMWR 7 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Managing Your Fleet by Upholding the Vehicle 5 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -

Quality Standards Online Training

Reviewing the Lost and Found Portal 3 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Checking Location Signage 3 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Managing yeurY our People by upheldingUpholding 7 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -

the Service Delivery Standards Online Training

Managing High-Volume Customer Lines 3 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Providing Feedback using STAR-AR 5 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Understanding Pre-Shift Planning 7 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Providing a Personalized Experience for 5 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -

Preferred/Fastbreak Customers Online Training

Using the Correct Terminology for ABG Business 5 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Guiding Your Customers Through the Self-Service 5 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -

Avis App Online Training

Managing Your Location by Upholding the Facility 7 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -

Standards Online Training

Security Loss Prevention Reference Guide 0 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Viewing Flight Delays by Checking the FAN Screens | 3 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -

in Wizard Online Training

Monitoring & Developing Your Team's Counter Sales | 5 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -

Results Online Training

Keeping Your Location Secure 3 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Researching Contract Exceptions in SMWR 5 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Processing 406 Cash, Vouchers, and Coupons in 3 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -

Wizard Online Training

Supporting the Deletion and Disposal Process 3 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Assessing Your Competitors to Plan and Set Rates 3 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

B e e e e 3 sl Dol e

i

Preparing Thethe Next Shift Manager 3 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Reviewing The Delivery Manifest for Private 3 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -

Aviation/Fixed Based Operator (FBO) Online Training
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Processing Unallocated Damage on the Damage 5 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Manager Portal Online Training
Customizing yeurYour FAN settingsSettings in 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Wizard Online Training
Adjusting the ReadyLine Logic Screens 5 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training
Ensuring A Proper Mix Of Vehicles On The 5 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
ReadyLine Online Training
Using the ICS Inventory Control System 7 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training
Determining Car Classes Available for Upsells and 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Walkups Online Training
Auditing the Manual Rental Agreement Log and 5 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Voided Manual Rental Log Online Training
Supporting QuickPass 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training
Forecasting Fleet Using The Yield Model and Wizard | 7 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Reports Online Training
Communicating Your Daily Shuttling Needs 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training
Reducing Costs at Your Location 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training
Drgesncine a Lietal D (Depial oo ansan i Social 310 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Engineering and Secure Device Management Practices Online Training
Popd e Do Dee o D losige Ml opnel Clos e +10 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
itivelyDefining your team's mission | CK Test Online Training
Course
Set:Ge- : 13 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
ServieesProcessing a Digital RA (Rental Agreement) Online Training
Lemadsen e Tres os Deevenspe e fobiels + B It
Roadv-SotGo_S Grooti I BuildineR T WorkdavT o Based Traini
Understanding the Special Sve and Remarks Column 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
in WaND Online Training
Rolling Over Aa Mini-Lease in WaND 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training
Handling Vehicles Following the Mileage 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Optimization Process Online Training
Extending a Mini-Lease in WaND 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training
Ending Aa Mini-Lease Early In WaND 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training
Creating a Mini-Lease in WaND 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training
Rental Sales Associate: Your Role 7 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training
Performing a Vehicle Exchange on the Display Rental | 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Screen in WaND Online Training
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Becoming a Customer Experience Owner (CEO) All
Star

Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Understanding Fhethe Customer Journey

Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Avis Budget Group (ABG) Terms and Acronyms

Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Rewarding You

Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Customer Led, Service Driven

Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Rental Basics

Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Wizard and WaND

Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

The Customer Service and Sales Process

Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Delivering Excellent Customer Service

Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Providing Empathy to eurQOur Customers

Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Maximizing Your Impact: Product Knowledge

Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Identifying and Assisting Red Carpet Customers

Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Creating A Reservation And Adding Counter Products
in WaND

Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Identifying and Processing Extended Rentals in
WaND

Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Reviewing the Rental Agreement and Signature using
Signature Capture

Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Adding Vehicles to the Automated Readyline in
WaND

Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Tracking Counter Sales Incentives (CSI)

Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Identifying and Processing GEB/WEB Rentals

Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Understanding Special Needs Equipment for Disabled
Customers

Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Splitting Billing in WaND

Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Entering Paper Vouchers in WaND

Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Completing a Manual Rental Agreement

Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Searching For A Customer's Discount Code
(AWD/BDC/PDN) in WaND

Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Filtering Various Manifests in WaND

Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Using the Express Manifest to Process Preferred and
Fastbreak Checkouts

Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Exploring Various Screens and Functions in WaND

Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Addressing Customer Concerns Following Listen.
Own. Resolve.

Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Comparing Your NPS to Your Location's Goal

Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training
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Consulting a Customer's Previous NPS and Rental 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -

History in WaND Online Training

Promoting the Avis App for Customer Self-Service 37 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Presenting a Vehicle's Features and Benefits to a 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -

Customer Online Training

Budget Truck: Optional Insurance & Protection Plans | 15 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Signing In and Out of Wizard 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Checking the Readyline in Wizard 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Processing a Check In Using Wizard 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Processing a Checkout Using Wizard 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Looking Up a Reservation Using Wizard 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Adding An Additional Rate Premium To An Upsell 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Maximizing Your Impact: Overcoming Objections to 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -

the Vehicle Presentation Online Training

Maximizing Your Impact: Top-Down Selling 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Completing a Basic Check-in in WaND 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Completing a Rate Shop in WaND for a Walk-Up 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -

Customer Online Training

Adding/Removing Protections and Additional 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -

Services to an Open Rental in WaND Online Training

Canceling A Reservation Using The Reservation Rates | 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -

Screen in WaND Online Training

Voiding and Re-Opening A Rental Agreement in 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -

WaND Online Training

Maximizing Your Impact: Guiding Principles 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Identifying Upsell Types in WaND: Standard, 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -

Variable, and Do Not Upsell Online Training

Maximizing Your Impact: Step 6. Disclose Fully & 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -

Close Positively Online Training

Maximizing Your Impact: Step 5. Present Other 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -

Services Online Training

Maximizing Your Impact: Step 4. Present Protection 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Maximizing Your Impact: Step 3. Present the Vehicle | 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Maximizing Your Impact: Step 2. Qualifying Your 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -

Customer Online Training

Maximizing Your Impact: Step 1. Greet and Build 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -

Rapport Online Training

Maximizing Your Impact: The CORE 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Offering Benefits of the Budget Fastbreak Programto | 5 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -

Customers Online Training

Identifying Normal Wear and Tear vs. Damage 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -

Online Training
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Following System Alerts in WaND 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Handling Partner Accounts (AARP/COSTCO/USAA) | 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Processing a Standard Upsell in WaND 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Using The Automated ReadyLine Count Button in 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -

WaND Online Training

Modifying an Existing Reservation in WaND 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Looking up a Station Code in WaND 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Printing a Rental Agreement in WaND 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Applying Adjustments at Return in WaND 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Signing into WaND 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Modifying Global Choice Foreign Currency (Fx) in 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -

WaND Online Training

Creating A Reservation Using The Reservation Rates | 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -

Screen In WaND Online Training

Conducting a Rate Shop in WaND 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Adding the Fuel Service Option in WaND 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Adding Protections and Products at Check Out in 35 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -

WaND Online Training

Taking Payment in WaND with a PED 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Identifying a Promoter/Detractor with VOTC 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Pulling Rental Reports from the Document Logs in 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -

WaND Online Training

Verifying Aa Renter's Drivers License 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Performing a Vehicle Trace in WaND 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Accessing the Automated ReadyLine in WaND 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Determining Renter Age Requirements & Restrictions | 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Displaying a Reservation in WaND 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Creating a New Reservation with an AWD/BCD 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -

Number Online Training

Changing Payment Card at Check-In in WaND 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Completing a Delayed Check-in in WaND 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Processing a Debit Card Check Out in WaND 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Checking Vehicle Availability in WaND 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Displaying Booking Information for Vouchers 3 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -

Online Training
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Creating a Rental Agreement in WaND 3 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Creating a Wizard Number in the WaND Display 3 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Rental Screen Online Training

Displaying a Rental Agreement to Modify in WaND 3 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Adding or Removing An Upsell On An Open Rental 3 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
in WaND Online Training

Offering Benefits of the Avis Preferred Program To 3 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Customers Online Training

15. Dealer: Unit Inspection 2515 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
B Online Training

14. Dealer: Physical Inventory 5 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

13. Dealer: Tire & Glass Repair Requests 6 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

12. Dealer: Force Charge at Close 5 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

11. Dealer: Out of Service Status 6 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

10. Dealer: Pending Close & Follow Up Pending 6 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Report Online Training

9. Dealer: Inventory Status Grid and Detail 6 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

8. Dealer: Transfers & Dealer Use 6 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

6. Dealer: One-way Close Agreement 10 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

7. Dealer: What is DEF 5 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

5. Dealer: Local Close Agreement 7 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Quick Reference for Accessing SMWR Portal 2 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

4. Dealer: One-way Open Agreement 8 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

3. Dealer: Local Open Agreement 5 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Avis Budget Group and The False Claims Act: What 10 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
You Need to Know Online Training

2. Dealer: Truck Basics & Reservations 3515 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

1. Dealer: Getting Started with Budget Truck Systems | 2615 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Customer Empathy Pocketcard Job Aid 0 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Customer Empathy Scenario Workbook 0 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Operations Action Plan 0 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

Kronos Management Guide (AU) 0 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

Wizard Based Training Learner Guides (NZ) 0 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

Wizard Based Training Learner Guide (AU) 0 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

A Day in the Life: Customer Services Department 0 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

A Day in the Life: Commercial Team 0 0 Workday Learning - Online Training
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A Day in the Life: Program Management Office Team | 0 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

A Day in the Life: Call Centre Manager 0 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

A Day in the Life: Workshop Manager 0 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

A Day in the Life: Fleet Manager 0 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

A Day in the Life: Human Resources Business Partner | 0 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

A Day in the Life: Wash Bay Manager 0 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

A Day in the Life: Preferred/Fastbreak Agent 0 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

A Day in the Life: Counter Agent 0 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

A Day in the Life: Airport/Location Manager 0 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

A Day in the Life: Customer Experience & Sales 0 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

Manager

A Day in the Life: Operations & Duty Manager 0 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

MTC Employee Guide (Pacific) 0 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

Transfer Fuel Tip Sheet | Budget Truck 0 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

First Time Workday Log in Operators & Dealers 0 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

B R 920 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -

Enterprise Learners(Inaetive}Anticorruption & Online Training

Bribery Training | New Hires

Independent Operator Training Resource User Guide 0 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Replacement Rental Record Screen | Wizard 6 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Independent Operator Learning PlanTraining 0 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -

Curriculum Online Training

Code of Practice Customer Services 0 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

Code of Practice Claims Training 0 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

Maximising Your Impact 2.0 - Module F: Defining 0 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

Steps 5 & 6

Maximising Your Impact 2.0 - Module E: Defining 0 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

Step 4

Maximising Your Impact 2.0 - Module D: Defining 0 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

Step 3

Maximising Your Impact 2.0 - Module C: Defining 0 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

Steps 1 & 2

Maximising Your Impact 2.0 - Module B: 0 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

Demonstrating the Core

Maximising Your Impact 2.0 - Module A: 0 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

Introduction to the Service & Sales Process

Automated Mini Lease with Connected Car 20 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Modern Slavery Compliance Training - Pacific 0 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

Region

Daily Fleet Management Job Aid (Americas 0 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -

Operations Manager Trainees) Online Training

Wildfire Smoke Protection - CA & WA 0 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

s e Dl Deeeeion 0 T 9 sl Dl e

s e Dl Deeeeion 0 S 9 B It

Operator Sales Rules of the Road 0 0 Workday Eearning-BasedLearning -
Online Training
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Rules of the Road: Ethical Sales at Avis Budget Group | 10 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Safe Driving Training 20 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

Safety: Advanced Accident Investigation (Americas 30 0 Workday LearninsBasedLearning -

Operations Manager Trainees) Online Training

Safety: Hazard Recognition (Americas Operations 30 0 Workday LearninsBasedLearning -

Manager Trainees) Online Training

Safety 101 (Americas Operations Manager Trainees) 30 0 Workday LearninsBasedLearning -
Online Training

Effective Corrective Action 20 0 Workday LearninsBasedLearning -
Online Training

The 3 Ways to Well-being 5 0 Workday LearninsBasedLearning -
Online Training

Mental Health Awareness for International 0 0 Workday LearninsBasedLearning -
Online Training

NMontal Hoalt or] o o o Workdav L o Based Traini

Montal Hoalt or ] onal o o Workdav L o Based Traini

Montal Hoalt or ] onal o o Workdav L o Based Traini

Global Privacy and Data Protection 30 0 Workday LearninsBasedLearning -
Online Training

Global Privaey-and DataProteetionAlcohol and/or 300 0 Workday LearninsBasedLearning -

Other Drugs Policy - APAC Online Training

B 30 o sl e Dol e

~lobalPri Datap - 30 o Workdav L o Based Traini

~lobalPri Datap - 30 o Workdav L o Based Traini

~lobalPri Datap - 30 o Workdav L o Based Traini

Leslie Saunders Protection Training: Annual 10 0 Workday LearninsBasedLearning -

Refresher Online Training

Digital Accident Reporting | Mobile WaND 15 0 Workday LearninsBasedLearning -
Online Training

Conducting a 14 Point Inspection 20 0 Workday LearninsBasedLearning -
Online Training

Recruitment - Your Role as a Hiring Manager 15 0 Workday LearninsBasedLearning -
Online Training

Secial- MediaTFraining | Master All LanguagesMDMS | 207 0 Workday LearninsBasedLearning -

Raising a VTC Online Training

MDMS Readyline & Inventory 8 0 Workday Learning - Online Training

Introduction to Module 1 Role of the People Manager | 1 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

Problem Solving - The Solution Selection Process 5 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

RACI - Assigning Responsibility in a project or task 15 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training

: — bl - I I o rd - [ Traimi

SMARTSs Objectives and Developing You 30 0 Workday LearninsBasedLearning -
Online Training

B e e Y 30 0 sl el e

SMARTS Obioct Develonine Y 30 o Workdav L o Based Traini

SMARTS Obioct Develonine Y 30 o Workdav L o Based Traini

SMARTS Obiocti Develonine Y 30 o Workdav L o Based Traini

SMARTS Obioct Develonine Y 30 o Workdav L o Based Traini

Introduction to Role of the People Manager Module 2 | 1 0 Workday LearninsBasedLearning -
Online Training
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SMWR Portal - Launch Videos 0 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training
SMWRPortal—Launch-VideosEffective Stress 015 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Management (ROPM) Online Training
SMWRPortal—Launeh-VideessMDMS Vehicle 010 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Exchange B Online Training
SMWRPortal—Launch-VideosMDMS Checkingina | 620 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Vehicle Online Training
SMWRPortal—Launeh-VideosRecords and 020 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Information Management for Employees Online Training
SMWRDamage Manager Portal—Launeh-Videeos: 97 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Uploading Documents - - Online Training -
SMWRPortal—Launch-VideosEnergize Your Impact | 610 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
- Explain (DE/EN/ES/FR/T) Online Training
SMWRPortal—Launch-VideosEnergize Your Impact | 615 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
- Educate Protection+ (DE/EN/ES/FR/IT) Online Training
SMWRPertal—Launch-VideosEnergize Your Impact | 615 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
- Educate Vehicle+ (DE/EN/ES/FR/IT) B Online Training -
SMWRPertal—Launch-VideosEnergize Your Impact | 610 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
- Engage (DE/EN/ES/FR/IT) B Online Training -
o | hVid o d - Traimi
5 ] hVid o rd - [ Traimi
5 ] hVid o rd - [ Traimi
Effeetive-Stress Management{ROPMEnergize Your 15 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Impact - Introduction & Behaviours Online Training
(DE/EN/ES/FR/IT)
Introduction to Lean and Six Sigma 45 Workday Learning-BasedLearning -
Online Training
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All training programs are offered to new franchisees and are currently provided via web-based
training.

Computerized Rental System.

Under the Payless License Agreement, you must enter into a Rental System Agreement with
ABCR that governs your use of Wizard. Wizard generates and stores reservation, rental, and customer
data, to which Payless has unlimited, independent access. Under the Rental System Agreement you must
acquire, install, and maintain certain computer hardware software and communications equipment, which
will vary depending on whether you choose to connect to Wizard via the Internet. Your estimated cost to
acquire and install such equipment per connected workstation is approximately $3,000-$4,500. If you
choose to use a PC, your estimated cost to acquire and install such equipment per workstation is
approximately $1,500 with monthly costs estimated at approximately $190. These amounts are per
workstation and will vary based on the number of workstations that you have. If you choose to access
Wizard through the Internet, you must also obtain Internet access through an Internet Service Provider
and implement computer security standards and procedures.

60

S7H3H22.27571131122.29




If you choose to access Wizard through Thin Client, a PCl-compliant infrastructure, your
estimated cost to acquire and install such equipment per connected workstation is approximately
$7,000-$13,000 plus $565 if you choose Signature Capture, an electronic signature system. Monthly
costs for Thin Client will vary widely based on the Site Survey results; however, we estimate monthly
costs at approximately $600-$1,600 if you choose to connect via MPLS Frame Circuit and $175-$900
for an Aruba/DSL Based Network Solution. Local internet service provider fees are additional. A Site
Survey must be conducted prior to the implementation of Thin Client to determine the network and
physical needs of your Location. The Site Survey must be conducted by a Payless approved third-party
supplier and the fees for the Site Survey are paid by you directly to the supplier.

ABCR will provide ongoing repairs, maintenance upgrades, or upgrades to Wizard as necessary.
You must purchase, lease, or otherwise acquire, from sources Payless designates or approves (which
might include or be limited to Payless or its affiliates), computer hardware, software and communications
equipment that is totally compatible with and strictly conforms to the requirements of the Rental System
Agreement as Payless may modify those requirements during the term. Payless cannot estimate the
annual cost of maintenance or upgrade obligations and their associated costs. There are no contractual
limitations on the frequency or cost of your obligations under this section of the Payless License
Agreement.

Payless and its designees will have independent access to the Wizard system and all other
computer systems, hardware, and software you use. Payless and its designees may access all information

and software on such systems and there is no limitation on such access.

Marketing and Advertising.

Payless conducts advertising and promotion at its own expense and at its sole discretion as
described in Article V of the Payless License Agreement. Payless Franchise owners do not directly
contribute to such advertising and promotion. Payless may, at any time, increase, decrease, or eliminate
its expenditures on advertising and promotion. Payless will pay the service providers directly and you
must reimburse Payless for these costs.

There is no advertising council composed of franchisees.

Payless has sole control and discretion over these expenditures and the related advertising and
promotion activities, including, without limitation, the creative concepts, materials, and endorsements
used, and the geographic, market, and media placement and allocation of programs and activities.
Advertising may appear in any form of media, and may be local, regional, or national in scope. Payless
currently utilizes both in-house advertising personnel and outside advertising agencies to assist with
marketing and promotion. In addition to the marketing fund referenced above, Payless currently applies a
portion of the Reservation Fee toward expenses related to the promotion of paylesscar.com and other
reservation channels. This portion of the Reservation Fee does not constitute a contribution to any
advertising or marketing fund by licensees and is not separately accounted for or reported.

You have no right, claim, or interest of any kind in or to any funds Payless allocates from those
fees or with regard to Payless’ funds generally. Payless’ expenditures are intended to maximize
recognition of Payless’ Proprietary Marks and all rental locations operated by the Network. Payless’
expenditures do not have to be proportionate or equivalent to the fees paid by licensees in a geographic
area, and Payless has no obligation to ensure that you will benefit directly from its advertising and
promotion expenditures. Payless is not obligated to spend any amount on advertising in your area or
territory.
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Payless has the following advertising and promotions expenditures during 2023: 8079% on
media placement (including television, tablet, in-airport signage, magazines, newspapers, search and
display); +80% on production (production, fees, and fulfillment); and 2021% on administrative expenses
(Payless’ personnel and general expenses). No amounts are spent for advertising that principally is a
solicitation of prospective Payless Franchise owners. Franchisees may submit written requests to obtain
an accounting of the marketing fees. The marketing fees are not audited. Currently, we do not charge a
marketing fee to franchisees.

Payless may require that you spend $2,000 to $5,000 for grand opening promotions. Payless
currently does not, but may require in the future that you spend an amount equal to 2% of the Gross
Revenues of your Payless Franchise on local advertising annually. Payless has the right to review all
advertising and promotional materials that you use prior to their use. Payless currently does not conduct
regular reviews of each licensee’s materials, but you are required to develop materials that are in good
taste, are in compliance with the law, and comply with rules for Payless’ Proprietary Marks and the
Standards. You are not required to participate in any local or regional advertising cooperative (the
Payless License Agreement, Article X).

Payless currently does not, but may require in the future that you spend an amount equal to 2% of
the Gross Revenues of your Payless Franchise on local advertising annually. Payless has the right to
review all advertising and promotional materials that you use prior to their use. Payless currently does
not conduct regular reviews of each licensee’s materials, but you are required to develop materials that
are in good taste, are in compliance with the law, and comply with rules for Payless’ Proprietary Marks
and the Standards. You are not required to participate in any local or regional advertising cooperative
(the Payless License Agreement, Article X).

Payless may, in its sole discretion, obtain “yellow pages” and “white pages” listings identifying
the Franchised Business in such telephone directories as Payless may designate, and Payless may obtain
reimbursement from you for its costs and expenses in obtaining and maintaining such listings. If Payless
does not obtain telephone directory listings for you, you must advertise, in a manner prescribed by
Payless, in the local “yellow pages” and “white pages” of the telephone directory(ies) serving your
territory, but must not obtain any listing or place any advertisements in any telephone directories, without
Payless’ prior written consent. Payless credits what you spend for “yellow pages” and “white pages”
advertising toward your Local Advertising Requirement (the Payless License Agreement, Article V).

Any Website (as defined below) will be deemed “advertising” under the franchise agreement,
and will be subject to (among other things) Payless’ approval. The term “Website” means an interactive
electronic document, contained in a network of computers linked by communications software that you
operate or authorize others to operate and that refers to the Franchised Business, Proprietary Marks,
Payless, BRAC, Avis Budget Group, and/or the System. The term Website includes Internet and World
Wide Web home pages. As to any Website, you agree to the following:

1. Before establishing the Website, you must submit to Payless a sample of the Website format and
information in the form and manner we may reasonably require.

2. You may not establish the Website without Payless’ prior written approval.

3. In addition to any other applicable requirements, you must comply with the standards and
specifications for Websites Payless prescribes in writing. If required by Payless, you must establish your
Website as part of Payless’ website (primarily “paylesscar.com’) and/or establish HTML or other
electronic links to Payless Website.
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4. If you propose any material revision to the Website or any of the information contained in the
Website, you must submit each revision to Payless for its prior written approval (the Payless License
Agreement, Article V).

Payless will conduct advertising, at its own expense, and in the manner it sees fit. Payless does
not guarantee the distribution of advertising in any quantity or format, to or for any particular franchisee
or franchisees, or in any area, which includes a particular franchisee’s territory. Payless will have sole
discretion over the placement and format of the advertising. Payless is not obligated to expend any
amount of funds on advertising or contribute any amount to an advertising fund. You will not be
obligated to participate in an advertising cooperative.

Payless has no obligation to assist you in establishing prices at which you must offer and sell
products and services.

ITEM 12
TERRITORY

Payless grants licenses to operate a Payless Franchise to persons with the ability to operate and
promote a Payless Franchise in a particular geographic territory. Payless will assign you a territory in
which to operate under the Payless License Agreement and in which you choose your business locations,
subject to Payless’s approval (see Item 11). Because the size of the licensed territory depends on factors
like population, the presence or absence of an airport, and your operational abilities and experience, it is
not possible to specify the minimum area granted to a Payless Franchise. The territory is usually
described by political boundaries (for example, part of a city or county), but in certain areas might be a
circle with your location at the center. Payless may use accepted industry parameters, census tracts,
population densities, zip code boundaries, buying patterns, traffic counts, and projected commercial and
residential growth to determine the territory’s boundaries. However, a territory will not usually include a
population of less than 25,000 people. During the term of your Payless License Agreement and subject to
your compliance with all of your other obligations under the Payless License Agreement, Payless will not
operate on its own behalf, or grant a license to another party to operate, a Payless Franchise within your
territory.

You will not receive an exclusive territory. You may face competition from other franchisees,
from outlets that we own, or from other channels of distribution or competitive brands that we control.

Nothing in the Payless License Agreement prohibits Payless or its parent company, subsidiaries,
or affiliates from: (a) engaging in the activities referred to above; (b) operating or granting others the
right to operate, Payless Rent A Car businesses in the licensed territory that offer for rental vehicle other
than the Vehicles including, but not limited to, renting or leasing motor vehicles that are designed used or
maintained for the transportation of property, cargo, or goods (collectively defined as “Trucks”); or (c)
selling their assets, engaging in a public offering or private placement of ownership interests, merging
with or acquiring other corporations or entities, or being acquired by another corporation or entity
(including a corporation or entity that owns or operates systems or chains that may be competitive with
or similar to the Network).

Payless reserves all rights not expressly granted to you under your Payless License Agreement,
including the rights of Payless and its affiliates to: (1) operate, and grant others the right to operate
Payless Franchises outside your licensed territory and, under certain circumstances (for National
Accounts or if you fail to comply with the Payless License Agreement, as described below), inside the
licensed territory, on any terms and conditions Payless deems appropriate; (2) hire and/or appoint sales
persons and general sales agents and negotiate and enter into local, regional, national, and international
sales and marketing agreements with persons or entities located within your licensed territory; (3) use
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Payless’s Proprietary Marks for any purpose within your licensed territory, other than for the operation of
a Payless Car Rental business location offering for rental the vehicles offered through your Payless

Franchise (“Vehicles”), subject to Payless’s rights under the Payless License Agreement; and (4) operate,
and grant others the right to operate, businesses (including businesses that offer for rent or sale Vehicles

and other motorized and non-motorized equipment and parking business) outside and within the licensed

territory under trademarks different than Payless’s Proprietary Marks.

Payless and its affiliates have established, and may in the future establish, other franchises or
company-owned outlets or other channels of distribution selling or leasing products or services similar to
those of a Payless Franchise under different trademarks or under Payless’s Proprietary Marks. You may
not use alternative distribution channels to make sales and you will receive no compensation for our sales
through alternative distribution channels.

As described in Item 1, our affiliates currently operate and grant franchises for businesses that
rent vehicles without drivers to the general public. Such affiliates’ business locations might be located in
your licensed territory, and these locations (whether within or outside your licensed territory) may solicit
and accept orders from customers within your licensed territory. Likewise, your Payless Franchise may
solicit and accept orders from customers and potential customers of our affiliates’ business locations,
without compensation to you. Payless is under no obligation to take any action if conflicts arise
concerning Payless Franchise owners and our affiliates’ business operators.

If you fail to: (i) open and continue operating the required minimum number of locations for your
Payless Franchise, including requirements to develop additional rental offices at Payless’s request; (ii)
achieve and/or maintain average market penetration quotas Payless periodically establishes in the Payless
License Agreement for automobile penetration; or (iii) participate in and comply with mandatory
programs; then Payless may, in lieu of terminating your Payless License Agreement and in its sole
discretion on 30 days’ notice to you: (a) terminate the Payless License Agreement with respect to the
portion of the licensed territory that Payless determines you have failed to develop; or (b) convert your
exclusive rights in the geographic market that Payless determines is underdeveloped, and/or your rights
with respect to those products and services that Payless determines are underdeveloped, to become
non-exclusive in nature.

You may serve any customer without regard to his or her domicile. You may not operate your
Payless Franchise or any part of it from a location outside the licensed territory. You may not pick up
customers who reside outside your Payless Franchise’s territory unless authorized by Payless in writing.
Otherwise, there are no restrictions on your accepting customers who reside outside your licensed
territory or on other Network members’ accepting customers who reside inside your licensed territory.
You must obtain Payless’s prior written consent for your initial location, any change in your location, or
construction of additional facilities (see Item 11).

You have no options, rights of first refusal or similar rights to acquire additional franchises
within your licensed territory or contiguous territories. As described above in this Item, your exclusive
right to the licensed territory depends on your meeting market penetration quotas for automobile rental
and otherwise complying with your Payless License Agreement. In addition, if you do not meet minimum
fleet and royalty requirements set forth in the Payless License Agreement, you may risk termination of
your Payless Franchise. Payless may negotiate development terms for the Payless License Agreements it
offers to Payless Licensees.

You may apply to be non-exclusively licensed pursuant to the Used Car Sales Addendum
(Payless License Agreement, Exhibit E), to use the Payless Trademarks in connection with the offer or
sale of any used fleet Vehicle, with Payless’s prior written consent pursuant to the Standards and terms
set forth therein (“Used Car Sales Business” or together with the car rental business, “Licensed

64

S7H3H22.27571131122.29



Businesses”). Payless and its affiliates reserve the right to grant others the right to operate similar
businesses within your Licensed Territory (Payless License Agreement, Paragraph 1.3).

You may not relocate your Payless Franchise without Payless’s prior written approval. You may
apply for the right to open additional Payless Franchises under separate franchise agreements, but we
have no obligation to allow you to open additional Payless Franchises. Payless does not compensate you
for soliciting or accepting orders from persons residing in your licensed territory.

You will not be allowed to relocate your Payless Franchise outside of your licensed territory.

We and our affiliates and other franchisees may solicit or accept orders from customers located
anywhere, without compensation to you.

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK
ITEM 13
TRADEMARKS
The Payless Car Rental License Agreement grants to you the right to use the Marks listed below.

All of the below Marks are registered on the Principal Register of the United States Patent and
Trademark Office:

Mark Registration Date Registration Number
1-800-PAYLESS 9/11/1990 (renewed February 3, 1613271
2020)
Ol 00 teepesad Doealb e L
AL ECD 2000062
20204
PAYLESS 9/19/1995 (renewed December 22, 1920457
2015)
PAYLESS 9/15/1987 (renewed July 18, 2017) 1457748
AL LEOE i Lo 6/18/2002 (renewed June 17,2022} 2581632
PAYLESS PARKING 5/1/2007 (renewed April 4, 2017) 3236664
PAYLESS PERKS 6/18/2002 (renewed June 17, 2022) 2581548
PAYLESS CAR RENTAL & Curve 6/9/2015 4753326
Design (B&W)

There are presently no effective determinations of the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office, any
trademark trial and appeal board, the Trademark Administrator of any state or any court, any pending
interference or cancellation proceeding or any pending material litigation involving any of the
above-referenced marks which is relevant to your use. There are no currently effective agreements which
significantly limit our rights to use or license the use of the marks listed in this section in a manner
material to the franchise. There are no infringing uses or superior prior rights known to Payless that can
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materially affect your use of the marks in this state or any other state in which the franchised/licensed
business is to be located. All required affidavits and renewals have been filed.

If you learn of any claim against you for alleged infringement, unfair competition or similar
claims about the Marks, you must promptly notify Payless. You may not settle or compromise any of
these claims without our prior written consent. Payless has the right to control any administrative
proceedings or litigation involving a trademark licensed by Payless to you. Payless will have the right to
defend and settle any claim at its sole expense, using its chosen counsel. You must cooperate with
Payless in the defense. You may participate at your own expense, but our decisions with regard to the
defense or settlement will be final and binding on you. Payless will have no obligation to defend or
indemnify you if the claim against you relates to your use of the Marks in violation of the License
Agreement, but state law may provide additional rights or restrictions. See state-specific addenda for
details.

If you learn that any third party may be using the Marks without authority or improperly, you
must promptly notify Payless, which will determine the proper course of action. You will have no right
to pursue any claim against any third party for infringement.

You must comply with Payless requirements with regard to the use of the Marks and modify or
discontinue the use of any Mark upon the instruction of Payless. You will be granted the right to use the
modified marks in accordance with the terms of the License Agreement applicable to the current
proprietary marks. If this happens, we will reimburse you for your tangible costs of compliance (for
example, changing signs). Payless reserves the right to change or substitute marks. You must not
directly or indirectly contest our right to our trademarks, trade secrets or business techniques that are
party of a Payless franchise.

ITEM 14
PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS, AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION

No patents are pending that are material to Payless Franchises. Payless claims a copyright in its
Manual, advertising material, and related items used in operating a Payless Franchise, whether Payless
registered or unregistered with the United States Registrar of Copyrights.

You must immediately notify Payless of any actual or apparent infringement of, or challenge to,
any of the copyrighted works, or any person’s claim of any rights in the copyrighted works. Payless may
take any action (or no action) in response to these matters and control exclusively any settlement,
litigation, arbitration, administrative, or other proceeding arising out of any alleged infringement,
challenge, or claim or otherwise relating to the copyrighted works. Payless has no obligation to
participate in your defense or indemnify you for damages or expenses you incur if you are a party to any
proceeding involving the copyrighted work. If it becomes advisable at any time in Payless’s judgment for
you to modify or discontinue using any of the copyrighted works and/or for you to use one or more
additional or substitute copyrighted or copyrightable items, you must comply with Payless’s directions.
There are no effective determinations of the Copyright Office (Library of Congress), any state or any
court, or any pending proceedings or litigation, regarding any of the copyrighted works. Payless has no
actual knowledge of any superior prior rights to or infringements of the copyrighted works that could
materially affect your use of the copyrighted works. No agreement limits Payless’s right to use or license
its copyrights.

Payless’s Manual, which is described in Item 11, and other materials Payless provides to you
contain Payless’s confidential and proprietary information. In paragraph 2.4 of the Payless License
Agreement, you acknowledge that you have had no part in the creation or development of, no prior
knowledge of, and no proprietary or other rights or claims in or to any element of, the Payless Car Rental
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System or Payless’s Proprietary Marks. You must also acknowledge that all materials loaned or
otherwise made available to you and all disclosures made to you by or at the direction of Payless, and not
to the general public, at any time before or during the term of your Payless License Agreement, including
the contents of the Manual, are communicated and made available confidentially and as trade secrets.

You must not, during the term of your Payless License Agreement or afterwards, reproduce,
exhibit, or disclose to any person other than your partners, shareholders, officers, and Payless Car Rental
A Car System. You must also acknowledge that these items are trade secrets, in which Payless has made
a substantial investment and has a legitimate right to protect against unlawful disclosure.

During the term of the Payless License Agreement, if you develop any idea, method of operation,
formula, design, invention, marketing technique, or trademark that could be useful to the operation of the
Payless Car Rental System, then you must make it available to Payless, its affiliates, and Network
members throughout the world free of charge.

ITEM 15

OBLIGATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE ACTUAL OPERATION OF THE FRANCHISE
BUSINESS

Payless does not require you to participate personally in the direct operation of your Payless
Franchise, but strongly urges you to do so.

You must employ on a full-time basis, at all times during the term of your Payless License
Agreement, at least one General Manager who has completed the instruction Payless furnishes and who
will devote his or her entire time during normal business hours to the management, operation, and
development of your Payless Franchise as required in the Standards and the Manual. Your General
Manager need not have an equity interest in the Payless Franchise or in you. An on-premises supervisor
must successfully complete Payless’ training program.

Persons who are the beneficial owners and principal officers of your Payless Franchise must sign
certain documents included in the Payless License Agreement, including Payless’s Nondisclosure and
Noncompetition Agreement. Payless may negotiate provisions in this section for the Payless License
Agreements it offers to Payless Licensees.

ITEM 16
RESTRICTIONS ON WHAT THE FRANCHISEE MAY SELL

Payless requires you to rent, and you are authorized to rent, only those types of motor vehicles
that Payless specifies (see Item 8).

Payless currently does not, by any restriction or condition, limit you regarding the make or model
of automobiles that you offer to rent (although it may impose these restrictions or conditions in the
future). The Payless License Agreement limits the class of vehicles your Payless Franchise may rent (for
example, you may not rent trucks, which definition excludes SUVs of any size, crossovers, passenger
vans of any occupancy, and smaller than medium duty pickup trucks. In addition, you may not rent
motorcycles, snow mobiles, all-terrain vehicles (ATVs), bicycles, horse-drawn vehicles, or other similar
vehicles under the “Payless” name without Payless’s consent). The Payless License Agreement and the
Standards regulate age and other standards of quality regarding the automobiles you offer for rental or
sale.
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Subject to Payless’s approval, and as part of your Payless Franchise, you may, and if required by
Payless, must, in addition to renting motor vehicles, sell or rent to your vehicle rental customers products
and services directly related to your vehicle rental business. Payless reserves the right to require you to
sell or rent to your customers, as applicable, designated product brands and to obtain products and
services to be sold or rented to your customers from designated sources. Your Payless Franchise may not
offer any products or services that Payless has not authorized in advance in writing. Payless may
periodically change required and authorized products and services, and there are no limits on Payless’s
right to do so. Other than approval granted by Payless under the Used Car Sales Addendum, you are not
authorized to sell used vehicles using Payless’s Proprietary Marks.

Under the Payless License Agreement, you must adhere to Payless’s rental rates to the maximum
extent the law allows, including for maximum rates. You also must honor all rental rates that you
communicate to Payless for your Payless Franchise. Under the Intercity Program, you must enforce and
abide by certain minimum rental qualifications for customers when renting vehicles owned by another
Payless Franchise or a Payless affiliate. Under the Corporate Rate Program, with regard to National
Accounts, you must abide by any pre-negotiated rental rates and other terms that Payless negotiates for
Corporate Rate Program participants.

ITEM 17
RENEWAL, TERMINATION, TRANSFER, AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION

This table lists certain important provisions of the License Agreement and related agreements.
You should read these provisions in the agreements attached to this disclosure document.

THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP

I. THE PAYLESS LICENSE AGREEMENT

Section of the
Payless License

Provision Agreement Summary
Term of the franchise 11.1 10 years.
Renewal or extension 11.1 You have the right to renew the Payless License
of the term Agreement for successive five (5) year terms.
Requirements for you 11.1 The following conditions need to be met at least

to renew or extend

thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of the
applicable term: (a) you must not be in default of
any provisions of the Agreement, (b) you must be
the original beneficial owner or sign the then-current
form of License Agreement, which may contain
materially different terms and conditions than
your original contract, (c) you must pay the then
current renewal fee, and (d) you and the other
owners of the Licensee must sign a general release.
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Provision

Section of the
Payless License
Agreement

Summary

Termination by you

11.2

Upon 180 days’ written notice to Payless, but you
might pay the Termination Fee. No Termination Fee
is due unless you (a) cease operating within the 180
day notice period or (b) Licensee’s Gross Revenue
is less than the average monthly Gross Revenue of
Licensee’s Payless Car Rental business during the
preceding one (1) year period (or during the term of
the Payless License Agreement if less than one year)
(see Item 6).

Termination by Payless
without cause

None

Payless does not have this right.

Termination by Payless
with cause

11.3,11.4, and
11.11

Payless can terminate only for cause. In certain
cases, Payless may elect to terminate the Payless
License Agreement only with respect to part of your
licensed territory, or may terminate only your
exclusive rights with respect to a particular
geographic market or certain products and services
(see Item 11). Defaults under other agreements with
Payless or its affiliates are considered defaults of the
Payless License Agreement.

“Cause”
defined—defaults
which can be cured

11.3

15 days if you fail to pay sums owed to Payless; 30
days if you fail to adhere to any provision of the
Payless License Agreement.

“Cause”
defined—defaults
which cannot be cured

11.4

Assignment for the benefit of creditors; admit in
writing your inability to pay debts as they become
due; file, or have filed against you, any petition in
bankruptcy (or other similar proceeding);
appointment of trustee; fail to vacate or discharge
final judgment within 30 days; fail to actively
operate your Payless Franchise for more than seven
consecutive days; understate Gross Revenue or
monthly vehicle average by more than 5%; fail to
maintain required insurance coverage; unauthorized
use of Payless’s Trade Marks, including as part of a
domain name, web link, or in a website; conviction
of or pleading no contest to felony, crime involving
moral turpitude, or offense affecting reputation or
goodwill; operation of your Payless Franchise in
unsafe manner; continued violation of law after
notice; receipt of two (2) default notices within a
24-month period; unauthorized transfer; suffers a
material security breach that results in (i) the
violation of any law, ordinance rule, or regulation
and or (ii) the implementation of fines and or
cancellation of credit card processing; and
termination of another agreement with Payless or an
affiliate.
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Provision

Section of the
Payless License
Agreement

Summary

Your obligations on
termination

11.6

Pay fees and other amounts owed to Payless, its
affiliates, and third parties; not identify yourself as a
Payless Licensee or use Payless’s system; return
Manual, Standard Rental Agreements, advertising
materials, and anything bearing the “Payless” name
to Payless; transfer telephone numbers, facsimile
and electronic communication lines, and electronic
addresses and domain names used by it to conduct
the Payless Car Rental business to Payless or its
designee; effectuate the sale, transfer, or assignment
of airport licenses, concession agreements, and
permits to Payless or its designee and, at Payless’s
option, any real estate agreements; cancel any
assumed name or equivalent registration containing
“Payless” name; cancel website promoting the
Payless Car Rental business, take all steps necessary
to transfer to Payless all existing reservations and
open rental agreements, take all steps to properly
secure and or destroy customer PII (as defined in
Section 9.10) in accordance with applicable laws,
and in accordance with Payless’s data retention
policies (which are applicable to any data obtained
through Payless), and promptly remove and destroy
all Payless signage.

Assignment of contract

by Payless

12.1

No restrictions on Payless’s right to assign.

“Transfer” by
you—definition

12.2(b)

Transfer of the license or any assets, or ownership
changes of 25% or more through a stock sale,
assignment, asset purchase, transfer, offering, or
otherwise, requires Payless’s prior written consent.

Payless’s approval of
transfer by you

12.2(a)

Payless must approve all proposed transfers in
writing. No transfers without Payless’s approval.

Conditions for
Payless’s approval of
transfer

12.2(a) and (c),
Transfer
Requirements
(Exhibit F)

You must notify Payless before any proposed sale,
assignment or transfer; prior written consent of
Payless is required. You must submit written, signed
copies of buy/sell agreements and transfer fee
agreement, information concerning transferee,
relevant documents certified as true, correct, and
complete by transferee. In determining whether to
approve transfer, Payless considers transferee’s

history, aptitude, resources, commitment,
competitive  businesses, and willingness to
participate in current programs. Payless also

considers whether you (as the Seller) are following
system Standards such as the: (1) operation of the
Payless business using Wizard (or other approved
electronic distribution system), (2) maintenance of
Payless’s then current trade dress and facility
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Provision

Section of the
Payless License
Agreement

Summary

standards, and (3) following of Payless’s other
Standards and programs regarding National
Accounts corporate accounts and form of rental
agreement. If Payless approves, transferee must sign
then current license agreement (modified to provide
for your royalty fee structure) and Payless’s
Transfer Approval Document and make operational
improvements in the Payless Franchise to bring it
into reasonable compliance with other Payless
Franchises, and you must pay all amounts due
Payless and/or our affiliates, other Network
members, and all other creditors, provide all final
documents to Payless and pay transfer fee (see
Item 6).

You may not conduct a transfer by a public stock
offering. Payless may not consent to your private
stock offering if it determines that such an offering
is not in the best interests of Avis/Payless, as
Licensor, or its franchise system. If Payless allows a
private stock offering, additional transfer fees and
paperwork will be required as part of the Transfer
Requirements. If the transfer is of voting securities
in a private stock offering, you must also submit all
materials to be used or required in the stock offering
and pay the transfer fee (see Item 6). In determining
the acceptability of the offering and offering
documents, Payless considers, among other things,
the transaction’s effect on the Payless Franchise and
Payless’s rights and the accuracy and completeness
of the documents. If Payless approves, it may
require the legending of stock certificates; advising
registrars or transfer agents of necessity of Payless’s
prior express written consent prior to the transfer of
stock; agreeing to restrictions on representations
relating to the Payless Franchise; inclusion of
disclaimers in filing and offering documents;
beneficial owners’
signing Non-Disclosure/Non-Competition
Agreement; restrictions on the use of the Payless
name; confidentiality restrictions; and an agreement
by all shareholders to adhere to in-term and
post-term restrictions on confidentiality.

Payless’s right of first
refusal

12.3

Payless may match any offer to acquire your
business and may substitute cash for other
consideration for a period of 60 days after receiving
an executed Purchase Agreement.

Payless’s option to
purchase your business

11.8

Payless may purchase your Payless Franchise upon
the termination of the Payless License Agreement.
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Section of the
Payless License
Provision Agreement Summary

Your death or disability 12.4 Any transfer must occur within six months to a third
party Payless approves. Payless is authorized to
immediately appoint a manager to maintain the
operation, until an approved Assignee is able to
assume the management and operation of the
Payless Car Rental business.

Non-competition 1.6 and No involvement in other vehicle rental business or

during the term of the Nondisclosure system in the United States.

franchise and

Noncompetition
Agreement

Non-competition 11.9,12.6, and No competing business for one year in licensed

covenants after the Nondisclosure territory or within five miles of licensed territory.

franchise is terminated and

or expires Noncompetition

Agreement

Modification of the 14.2(c) Must be reduced to writing and signed by you and

agreement Payless. However, the Manual and Standards are
subject to change.

Integration/merger 14.2(a) Only terms of license agreement, its exhibits, its

clause schedules, the Standards and Transfer Requirements
are enforceable. Any representations or promises
outside of the disclosure document and license
agreement may not be enforceable. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, nothing in this or any related
agreement is intended to disclaim the express
representations made in the Franchise Disclosure
Document, its exhibits and amendments.

Dispute resolution by None

arbitration or mediation

Choice of forum 14.9 Subject to state law, you agree to the jurisdiction of
New Jersey courts.

Choice of law 14.8 Subject to state law, New Jersey law applies.

See the state addenda to the License Agreement and disclosure document for special state

disclosures. The provision of the License Agreement that provides for termination upon your bankruptcy
may not be enforceable under federal bankruptcy law (11 United States Code Sections 101 and
following).
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ITEM 18
PUBLIC FIGURES

Payless does not use any public figure to promote its franchise. You may not use a public figure
to promote the Licensed Business without our prior written approval.

ITEM 19
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATIONS

The FTC’s Franchise Rule permits a franchisor to provide information about the actual or
potential financial performance of its franchised and/or franchisor-owned outlets, if there is a reasonable
basis for the information, and if the information is included in the disclosure document. Financial
performance information that differs from that included in Item 19 may be given only if: (1) a franchisor
provides the actual records of an existing outlet you are considering buying; or (2) a franchisor
supplements the information provided in this Item 19, for example, by providing information about
possible performance at a particular location or under particular circumstances.

Payless does not make any representations about a franchisee’s future financial performance or
the past financial performance of company-owned or franchised outlets. Payless also does not authorize
our employees or representatives to make any such representations either orally or in writing. If you are
purchasing an existing outlet, however, Payless may provide you with actual records of that outlet. If
you receive any other financial performance information or projections of your future income, you
should report it to the franchisor’s management or by contacting Ms. Shari Asarch in the Franchise
Operations Department at 379 Interpace Parkway, Parsippany, New Jersey 07054, by telephone at (973)
496-3444 or via email at Shari.Asarch@avisbudget.com, the Federal Trade Commission, and the
appropriate state regulatory agencies.

ITEM 20
OUTLETS AND FRANCHISEE INFORMATION
Table 1

SYSTEMWIDE OUTLET SUMMARY
For Years 20212022 — 20232024

Qutlets at the Start |Outlets at the Net Change

QOutlet Type Year of the Year End of the Year

2021 24 25 il
Franchised 2022 25 24 1
Franchised 2023 24 12 -12

2920 7812 2012 20

24 1< 1< Y
Company-owned 2022 80 85 +5
Company-owned 2023 85 106 +21

24 = 102106 +0597 +3-9
Fetal 2022 105 109 +4
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| Total 2023 109 118 +9
| 2024 118 109 9
Table 2
TRANSFERS OF OUTLETS FROM FRANCHISEES
TO NEW OWNERS (OTHER THAN THE FRANCHISOR)
For Years 20212022 — 20232024
State Year Number of Transfers
2021 )
ooy 2022 11
New Jersey 2023 0
2021202 20
4
Pennsylvant | 2022 0
a
Pennsylvani | 2023 0
a
2021202 20
4
Total 2022 11
Total 2023 0
2024 0
Table 3
STATUS OF FRANCHISED OUTLETS
For Years 20212022 — 20232024
E hi Eranchis
sed- Eranehis & Reacquired Ceased Outlet
State Yea Outlets ed- Fermin | Non-Ren lil Operations s at
r Outlets | ationsTe | ewals Y P Endef
at Start . . Franchisor /Other Reasons
Opened | rm-inati = the
of Year —_—
ons Year_
End
2021 1 0 ) ) 0 ) 1
2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
California 2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
2024 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
2022 0 0 0 0 0
Florida 2023 1 0 0 0 0 0
2024 1 0 0 0 0 10 01
Shaedend 2022 ) 0 0 0 0 0 0
2023 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2021 2 0 ) ) 0 ) 2
Missouri | 2022 | 2 0 o | o 1 0 1
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2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
2024
2024 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
Montana 2023 1 0 0 0 1 0 0
2024 HO0 0 0 0 0 0 H0
2022 11 0 0 0 0 0 11
2023 11 0 0 0 0 11 0
New Jersey
2024 20 0 0 0 0 0 20
North Dakota | 2022 2 0 0 0 0 0 2
Dalkeota 2023 2 0 0 0 0 0 2
2024
2024 | 2 0 0 0 0 0 E5)
2022 7 0 0 0 0 0 7
P . 2023 7 0 0 0 0 0 7
ennsylvania
2024 257 10 0 0 0 10 257
TOTAL_
OUTLETS 2022 25 0 0 0 1 0 24
OUFEETS 2023 24 0 0 0 1 11 12
2024 12 0 0 0 0 0 12

* If multiple events occurred affecting a franchised outlet, this table shows the event that occurred last in

time.
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STATUS OF COMPANY-OWNED OUTLETS

Table 4

For Years 20212022 — 20232024

Company- Company-o
owned Company- |Outlets Company-ow |wned
Outlets at | owned Reacquired ned Outlets Outlets at
Start of Outlets from Outlets Sold to End of the
State Year |Year Opened Franchisees | Closed Franchisees |Year
2021 1 9 9 9 9 1
Alabama 2023 1 0 0 0 0 1
2021202 1 0 0 0 0 1
4
Arizona 2022 1 0 0 0 0 1
Arizona 2023 1 0 0 0 0 1
2021202 91 0 0 0 0 91
4
California 2022 9 0 0 0 0 9
California 2023 9 0 0 1 0 8
2021202 28 0 0 07 0 21
4
Colorado 2023 3 0 0 0 0 3
2021202 13 0 0 0 0 13
4
Connecticut 2022 1 0 0 0 0 1
Connecticut 2023 1 0 0 0 0 1
2021202 1 0 0 0 0 1
4
2022 1 0 0 0 0 1
Delaware 2023 1 0 0 0 0 1
2021202 151 0 0 0 0 151
4
Florida 2022 15 0 0 0 0 15
Florida 2023 15 1 0 0 0 16
2021202 316 0 0 0 0 316
4
Georgia 2022 3 0 0 0 0 3
Georgia 2023 3 0 0 0 0 3
2021202 43 10 0 0 0 53
4
Hawaii 2022 5 0 0 0 0 5
Hawaii 2023 5 0 0 0 0 5
2021202 15 0 0 01 0 +4
4
Hlinats 2022 1 0 0 0 0 1
Illinois 2023 1 0 0 0 0 1
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Company- Company-o
owned Company- |Outlets Company-ow |wned
Outlets at | owned Reacquired ned Outlets Outlets at
Start of Outlets from Outlets Sold to End of the
State Year |Year Opened Franchisees | Closed Franchisees |Year
2021202 1 0 0 0 0 1
4
Tadiane 2022 1 0 0 0 0 1
Indiana 2023 1 0 0 0 0 1
2021202 1 0 0 01 0 10
4
Towa 2022 1 0 0 0 0 1
Towa 2023 1 0 0 0 0 1
2021202 1 0 0 0 0 1
4
Kansas 2023 1 9 0 0 0 10
2021202 210 0 0 0 0 210
4
Kentueky 2022 2 0 0 0 0 2
Kentucky 2023 2 0 0 0 0 2
2024202 12 0 0 0 0 12
4
Leuisiana 2022 1 0 0 0 0 1
Louisiana 2023 1 0 0 0 0 1
2024202 1 0 0 0 0 1
4
Maine 2022 1 1 0 0 0 2
Maine 2023 2 0 0 0 0 2
2021202 12 0 0 0 0 12
4
chusettsMass | 2023 1 0 0 0 0 1
a-
2021202 1 0 0 0 0 1
chusetts 4
Liebisan 2022 1 0 0 0 0 1
Michigan 2023 1 0 0 0 0 1
2021202 1 0 0 0 0 1
4
Minnesota 2023 1 0 0 0 0 1
2021202 1 0 0 0 0 1
4
Mississippi 2022 1 0 0 0 0 1
Mississippi 2023 1 0 0 0 0 1
2021202 01 0 0 0 0 01
4
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Company- Company-o
owned Company- |Outlets Company-ow |wned
Outlets at | owned Reacquired ned Outlets Outlets at
Start of Outlets from Outlets Sold to End of the
State Year |Year Opened Franchisees | Closed Franchisees |Year
LHssammed 2022 0 0 1 0 0 1
Missouri 2023 1 6 0 0 0 7
2021202 17 61 0 01 0 17
4
Nebraska 2022 1 0 0 0 0 1
Nebraska 2023 1 5 0 0 0 6
2021202 26 0 0 0 0 26
4
Nevada 2022 2 0 0 1 0 1
Nevada 2023 1 0 0 0 0 1
2021202 1 0 0 0 0 1
4
New Jersey 2022 1 0 0 0 0 1
New Jersey 2023 1 2 0 0 0 3
2021202 13 0 0 0 0 13
e 4
MexicoNew 2022 1 0 0 0 0 1
Mexico 2023 1 0 0 0 0 1
2021202 31 0 0 0 0 31
4
New York 2022 3 3 0 0 0 6
New York 2023 6 0 0 0 0 6
2021202 16 0 0 0 0 16
Segrth 4
CarolinaNort | 2022 1 0 0 0 0 1
h
Carolina 2023 1 0 0 0 0 1
2024202 1 0 0 0 0 1
4
Ohkis 2022 1 1 0 0 0 2
Ohio 2023 2 0 0 0 0 2
2024202 12 0 0 0 0 12
4
Oldabkems 2022 1 0 0 0 0 1
Oklahoma 2023 1 0 0 0 0 1
2021202 1 10 0 0 0 21
4
Opeson 2022 2 0 0 0 0 2
Oregon 2023 2 0 0 0 0 2
2024202 12 0 0 0 0 12
4
Phode 2022 1 0 0 0 0 1
IslandRhode 2023 1 0 0 0 0 1
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Company- Company-o
owned Company- |Outlets Company-ow |wned
Outlets at | owned Reacquired ned Outlets Outlets at
Start of Outlets from Outlets Sold to End of the
State Year |Year Opened Franchisees | Closed Franchisees |Year
2021202 31 0 0 0 0 31
Island 4
SR e 2022 3 0 0 0 0 3
Tennessee 2023 3 0 0 0 0 3
2021202 93 0 0 0 0 93
4
Pesmsg 2022 9 0 0 0 0 9
Texas 2023 9 0 0 0 0 9
2021202 19 0 0 0 0 19
4
Ll 2022 1 0 0 0 0 1
Utah 2023 1 0 0 0 0 1
2021202 31 0 0 0 0 31
4
Mpeinia 2022 3 0 0 1 0 2
Virginia 2023 2 0 0 1 0 1
2021202 01 0 0 0 01
4
Wrashington 2022 0 0 0 0 0 0
Washington 2023 0 0 0 0 0
2021202 780 20 0 0 0 800
4
Potal 2022 80 6 1 2 0 85
Total 2023 85 23 0 2 0 106
2024 106 1 0 10 0 97
Table 5
Projected Openings As Of December 31, 20222024
State Projected Franchised Projected Company
License Agreements New Stores in Next Owned Openings in
Signed But Store not Fiscal Year Next Fiscal Year
Opened (20232025) (20232025)
Total 0 0 0

A list of all operational franchises as of December 31, 26222024 is attached as Exhibit E.

A list of all franchisees who have left the system January 1, 26222024 through December 31,
2022024, as well as franchisees who have not communicated with us within 10 weeks of the issuance
date of this disclosure document is attached as Exhibit F.

SAH3 222757
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If you buy this franchise, your contact information may be disclosed to other buyers when you
leave the franchise system.

During the last three fiscal years, no current or former franchisees have signed confidentiality
clauses that restrict them from discussing with you their experiences as a franchisee in our franchise
system.

There are no trademark-specific franchise organizations associated with this franchise.
ITEM 21
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Exhibit G includes the audited consolidated balance sheets of Avis Budget Group, Inc. as of
December 31, 2024 and 2023—and—2022, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
stockholders' equity, comprehensive income and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2024,
2023; and 2022 and-202+-and the related notes of Avis Budget Group, Inc. Avis Budget Group, Inc.
guarantees our performance of our obligations under the Payless License Agreements we enter into. The
instrument of guaranty is included in Exhibit G. We file state specific guarantees of performance with the
appropriate agencies in the states where our licenses are registered to be offered and sold.

ITEM 22
CONTRACTS

Copies of the following contracts are attached to this disclosure document with the exhibit
numbers noted below:

Name of Contract Exhibit
Confidentiality Agreement D
Payless Car Rental System, Inc. License Agreement H
Guaranty H (a)
Conditional Assignment of Telephone Numbers and Listings H (b)
Nondisclosure and Noncompetition Agreement H (c)
Contingent Assignment of Airport Concession Agreement H (d)
Ownership Statement H(g)
SBA Addendum H-1
Rental System Agreement I
General Release L

ITEM 23

RECEIPT

The last 2 pages of this disclosure document packet are duplicate Receipt pages, which will serve
as acknowledgment by you that you received a copy of this disclosure document. You must sign both
Receipt pages, return one to Franchisor and retain the other with your records. If the Receipt pages or
any other pages and attachments appear to be missing please contact us immediately.

80
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Exhibit A
List of Agencies / Agents for Service of Process
(See attached)



Listed here are the names, addresses and telephone numbers of the state agencies having
responsibility for franchising disclosure/registration laws. We may not yet be registered to sell franchises
in any or all of these states.

STATE ADMINISTRATORS
Commissioner of Department of Financial Commissioner of Commerce
Protection and Innovation Minnesota Department of Commerce
320 West 4th Street, Suite 750 85 7th Place East, Suite 280
Los Angeles, California 90013-2344 Saint Paul, Minnesota 55101
(213) 576-7500 (651) 539-1600
(866) 275-2677 Toll Free
Email: Ask.DFPI@dfpi.ca.gov NYS Department of Law
Website: www.dfpi.ca.gov Investor Protection Bureau
28 Liberty Street, 21st Floor
Hawaii Commissioner of Securities New York, New York 10005
Department of Commerce & Consumer (212) 416-8285
Affairs
335 Merchant Street. Room 205 North Dakota Securities Department
Honolulu, Hawaii 96’81 3 600 East Boulevard Avenue
(808) 586-2744 State Capitol, Fourteenth Floor, Dept. 414
Bismarck, North Dakota 58505-0510
Chief (701) 328-4712
Franchise Bureau
Office of Attorney General Director of the Rhode Island
500 South Second Street Department of Business Regulation
Springfield, Illinois 62701 1511 Pontiac Avenue
(217) 782-4465 Cranston, Rhode Island 02920

(401) 462-9500
Franchise Section

Indiana Securities Division Registration Specialist, Securities
302 West Washington Street Regulation ‘
Room E-111 Department of Labor and Regulation
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204 Division of‘Insurance
(317) 232-6681 124 S. Euclid Avenue 2™ Floor
Pierre, South Dakota 57501-3185
Office of the Attorney General (605) 773-3563
Securities Division ‘ o
200 St. Paul Place State Corporation Commission
Baltimore, Maryland 21202 Division of Securities and Retail
(410) 576-6360 Franchising
1300 E. Main Street, Ninth Floor
Franchise Administrator Richmond, Virginia 23219
Consumer Protection Division (804) 371-9051

Antitrust and Franchise Unit

Michigan Dept. of Attorney General

G. Mennen Williams Building, 1% Floor
525 W. Ottawa Street

Lansing, Michigan 48913

(517) 335-7567

S7H3H22.27571131122.29



Administrator

Department of Financial Institutions
Securities Division

150 Israel Rd. SW

Tumwater, Washington 98501

(360) 902-8760

Department of Financial Institutions
Division of Securities

Franchise

4822 Madison Yards Way, North Tower
Madison, Wisconsin 53705

(608) 266-0448
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AGENTS FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS

Alabama

Corporation Service Company, Inc.

The Prentice-Hall Corporation System Inc.
United States Corporation Company

641 South Lawrence Street

Montgomery, Alabama 36104

Alaska

Corporation Service Company, Inc.

The Prentice-Hall Corporation System Inc.
United States Corporation Company

8585 Old Dairy Road, Suite 208

Juneau, Alaska 99801

Arizona

Corporation Service Company, Inc.

The Prentice-Hall Corporation System Inc.
United States Corporation Company

8825 N-23* Avenue7955 S Priest Dr., Suite
100102

PheenixTempe, Arizona 8502185284

Arkansas

Corporation Service Company, Inc.

The Prentice-Hall Corporation System Inc.
United States Corporation Company

300 Spring Building, Suite 300

300 South Spring Street

Little Rock, Arkansas 72201

California

Commissioner of the Department of
Financial Protection and Innovation
2101 Arena Blvd.

Sacramento, California 95834
Email: Ask.DFPI@dfpi.ca.gov
Website: www.dfpi.ca.gov

S7H3H22.27571131122.29

Colorado

Corporation Service Company, Inc.

The Prentice-Hall Corporation System Inc.
United States Corporation Company

1900 W Littleton Boulevard

Littleton, Colorado 80120

Connecticut

Corporation Service Company, Inc.

The Prentice-Hall Corporation System Inc.
United States Corporation Company
Goodwin Square.

225 Asylum Street, 20" Floor

Hartford, Connecticut 06103

Delaware

Corporation Service Company, Inc.

The Prentice-Hall Corporation System Inc.
United States Corporation Company

251 Little Falls Drive

Wilmington, Delaware 19808

District of Columbia

Corporation Service Company, Inc.

The Prentice-Hall Corporation System Inc.
United States Corporation Company
1090-Vermont-Avenuel1156 15th St NW,
Suite 605

Washington, DC 20005

Florida

Corporation Service Company, Inc.

The Prentice-Hall Corporation System Inc.
United States Corporation Company

1201 Hayes Street

Tallahassee, Florida 32301



Georgia

Corporation Service Company, Inc.

The Prentice-Hall Corporation System Inc.

United States Corporation Company
2 Sun Court, Suite 400
Peachtree Corners, Georgia 30092

Hawaii

Hawaii Commissioner of Securities
Business Registration Division

335 Merchant Street, Room 203
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813

Idaho

Corporation Service Company, Inc.

The Prentice-Hall Corporation System Inc.

United States Corporation Company
1305 12™ Avenue Road
Nampa, Idaho 83686

Illinois

Illinois Attorney General Office
500 South Second Street
Springtield, Illinois 62701

Indiana

Indiana Securities Division
302 West Washington Street
Room E-111

Indianapolis, Indiana 46204

Towa

Corporation Service Company, Inc.

The Prentice-Hall Corporation System Inc.

United States Corporation Company
505 5™ Avenue, Suite 729
Des Moines, Iowa 50309
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Kansas

Corporation Service Company, Inc.

The Prentice-Hall Corporation System Inc.
United States Corporation Company

2900 SW Wanamaker Drive, Suite 204
Topeka, Kansas 66614

Kentucky

Corporation Service Company, Inc.

The Prentice-Hall Corporation System Inc.
United States Corporation Company

421 West Main Street

Frankfort, Kentucky 40601

Louisiana

Corporation Service Company, Inc.

The Prentice-Hall Corporation System Inc.
United States Corporation Company

501 Louisiana Avenue

Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70802

Maine

Corporation Service Company, Inc.

The Prentice-Hall Corporation System Inc.
United States Corporation Company

45 Memorial Circle

Augusta, Maine 04330

Maryland

Maryland Securities Commissioner
200 Saint Paul Place
Baltimore, Maryland 21202

Massachusetts

Corporation Service Company, Inc.

The Prentice-Hall Corporation System Inc.
United States Corporation Company

84 State Street

Boston, Massachusetts 02109



Michigan

Michigan Department of Commerce
Corporations and Securities Bureau
Mailing: P.O. Box 30018

Lansing, MI 48909

Physical: 2401 N. Grand River Ave.
Lansing, Michigan 48906

Minnesota

Commissioner of Commerce
State of Minnesota
Department of Commerce
Registration Division

85 7th Place East Suite 280
Saint Paul, Minnesota 55101

Mississippi

Corporation Service Company, Inc.

The Prentice-Hall Corporation System Inc.

United States Corporation Company
7716 Old Canton Road, Suite C
Madison, Mississippi 39110
Missouri

Corporation Service Company, Inc.

The Prentice-Hall Corporation System Inc.

United States Corporation Company
221 Bolivar Street

Jefferson City, Missouri 65101
Montana

Corporation Service Company, Inc.

The Prentice-Hall Corporation System Inc.

United States Corporation Company
26 West Sixth Avenue, P.O. Box 1691
Helena, Montana 59624-1691

Navajo Nation

The Prentice-Hall Corporation System Inc.

c/o Lee R. Belone, Rural Address No. 40
P.O. Box 1969
Fort Defiance, NN 86504
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Nebraska

Corporation Service Company, Inc.

The Prentice-Hall Corporation System Inc.
United States Corporation Company

233 South 13" Street, Suite 1900

Lincoln, Nebraska 68508

Nevada

Corporation Service Company, Inc.

The Prentice-Hall Corporation System Inc.
United States Corporation Company

112 North Curry Street

Carson, Nevada 89703

New Hampshire

Corporation Service Company, Inc.

The Prentice-Hall Corporation System Inc.
United States Corporation Company

10 Ferry Street, Suite 313

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

New Jersey

Corporation Service Company, Inc.

The Prentice-Hall Corporation System Inc.
United States Corporation Company
Princeton South Corporate Center, Suite 160
100 Charles Ewing Blvd.

Ewing, New Jersey 08628

New Mexico

Corporation Service Company, Inc.

The Prentice-Hall Corporation System Inc.
United States Corporation Company
H0732 E-Breadway-Street. Michigan Dr.,
Suite 500

Hobbs, New Mexico 88240

New York

Secretary of State

New York Department of State
One Commerce Plaza

99 Washington Avenue, 6" Floor
Albany, New York 12231-0001



North Carolina

Corporation Service Company, Inc.

The Prentice-Hall Corporation System Inc.

United States Corporation Company
2626 Glenwood Avenue, Suite 550
Raleigh, North Carolina 27608

North Dakota

Securities Commissioner

North Dakota Securities Department

600 East Boulevard Avenue

State Capitol, Fourteenth Floor, Dept 414
Bismarck, North Dakota 58505-0510

Ohio

Corporation Service Company, Inc.

The Prentice-Hall Corporation System Inc.

United States Corporation Company
3366 Riverside Drive, Suite 103
Upper Arlington, Ohio 43221

Oklahoma

Corporation Service Company, Inc.

The Prentice-Hall Corporation System Inc.

United States Corporation Company
10300 Greenbriar Place

Oklahoma City, Oklahoma 73159
Oregon

Corporation Service Company, Inc.

The Prentice-Hall Corporation System Inc.

United States Corporation Company
1127 Broadway Street NE, Suite 310
Salem, Oregon 97301

Pennsylvania

Corporation Service Company, Inc.

The Prentice-Hall Corporation System Inc.

United States Corporation Company
2595 Interstate Drive, Suite 103
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 17110
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Rhode Island

Director of Business Regulation
1511 Pontiac Avenue
Cranston, Rhode Island 02920

South Carolina

Corporation Service Company, Inc.

The Prentice-Hall Corporation System Inc.
United States Corporation Company

508 Meeting Street

West Columbia, South Carolina 29169

South Dakota

Director of the Division of Insurance
Securities Regulation

Department of Labor and Regulation
124 South Euclid Avenue, 2nd Floor
Pierre, South Dakota 57501

Tennessee

Corporation Service Company, Inc.

The Prentice-Hall Corporation System Inc.
United States Corporation Company

2908 Poston Avenue

Nashville, Tennessee 37203

Texas

Corporation Service Company, Inc.

The Prentice-Hall Corporation System Inc.
United States Corporation Company

211 E 7t Street, Suite 620

Austin, Texas 78701-3218

Utah

Corporation Service Company, Inc.

The Prentice-Hall Corporation System Inc.
United States Corporation Company

15 West South Temple, Suite 600

Salt Lake City, Utah 84101



Vermont

Corporation Service Company, Inc.

The Prentice-Hall Corporation System Inc.

United States Corporation Company
100 North Main Street, Suite 2
Barre, Vermont 05641

Virginia

Clerk, State Corporation Commission
1300 East Main Street, First Floor
Richmond, Virginia 23219
Washington

Administrator of Securities
Department of Financial Institutions
150 Israel Rd. SW

Tumwater, WA 98501

S7H3H22.27571131122.29

West Virginia

Corporation Service Company, Inc.

The Prentice-Hall Corporation System Inc.
United States Corporation Company

209 West Washington Street

Charleston, West Virginia 25302

Wisconsin

Commissioner of Securities

Office of the Commissioner of Securities
4822 Madison Yards Way, North Tower
Madison, Wisconsin 53705

(608) 261-9555

Wyoming

Corporation Service Company, Inc.

The Prentice-Hall Corporation System Inc.
United States Corporation Company

1821 Logan Avenue

Cheyenne, Wyoming 82001
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Disclosures Regarding Americans with Disabilities Act

ANNOUNCEMENT
DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT

AMERICAN WITH DISABILITIES ACT

On July 2, 1997, Budget Rent A Car System, Inc. and the United States Department of Justice
entered into a settlement agreement under Title III of the Americans with Disabilities Act of
1990. As part of that agreement, Budget is distributing this Announcement to its licensees and
prospective licensees.

Budget has adopted the following policies and strongly urges its licensees to do the same:

o Some people have disabilities that prevent them from driving, such as blindness
or epilepsy. They will be allowed to rent vehicles from Budget when accompanied by a
licensed driver. The person with a disability will be considered the “renter” under these
circumstances and will bear the primary financial responsibility for the rental. The
renter must present a qualified method of payment and otherwise meet generally imposed
credit qualification requirements. The driver must have a valid driver’s license and
otherwise meet generally imposed driver qualification requirements. Budget will treat
the driver as an “additional driver” on the Rental Agreement. Budget will not require the
renter to document that he or she has a disability and will not inquire into the nature of
severity of the disability.

o People with disabilities who use service animals will have the same access to
Budget’s goods and services as other customers. They will not be denied access to rental
cards or shuttle buses. They will not be separated from their service animals at any time.
Budget representatives will not require people with disabilities to provide any type of
identification or certification of an animal as having been trained as a service animal.
Service animals may be used by people with different kinds of disabilities such as
hearing, vision, and mobility impairments as well as seizure disorders.

. Budget shall waive any “additional driver” charges for one person accompanying
a renter with a disability that would otherwise apply, and shall not impose any other
surcharge on the renter in connection with actions required by this policy.

Copies of the settlement agreement are available from the United States or Budget.

Want more information? The Department of Justice operates a toll-free ADA Information Line to
provide technical assistance to persons and businesses having rights and responsibilities under the ADA.

Please call:

1-800-514-0301 (Voice)
1-800-514-0383 (TDD)

You can also access the Department’s ADA website at:

http:/www.usdoj.gov/crt/ada/adahoml/htm or http://www.ada.gov/
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Settlement Agreement Under the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 Between the United
States of America and Avis, Inc. for Complaint DJ 202-48-7.

I. Background

1. This action was initiated by a complaint filed with the United States Department of Justice ("the
Department") against Avis, Inc. ("Avis"). The complaint was investigated by the Department under the
authority granted by section 308 (b) of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 ("ADA"), 42 U.S.C.
§ 12188. The complainant alleged that Avis violated the ADA because it failed to provide renters hand
controls for the full range of vehicles that are available to the general public.*

2. Avis has cooperated fully in the government's investigation and has demonstrated its strong
commitment to provide its services to persons with disabilities without discrimination. The parties have
agreed that this matter can be resolved without resort to litigation.

3. The parties to this settlement agreement (“Agreement”) are the United States of America and Avis,
Inc.

II. Title IIT Coverage

4. Avis is a public accommodation as defined in section 301(7)(e) of the ADA, 42 U.S.C. § 12181, and
its implementing regulation, 28 C.F.R. § 36.104. In part, the ADA requires public accommodations to
remove barriers to access for persons with disabilities where it is readily achievable for them to do so, 42
U.S.C. § 12182 (b) (2) (A) (iv) and 28 C.F.R. § 36.304; and to make reasonable modifications to its
policies and practices as necessary to afford its goods and services to persons with disabilities, as long as
doing so does not alter the nature of its goods and services, 42 U.S.C. § 12182 (b) (2) (A) (ii) and 28
C.F.R. § 36.302.

*This action originally included two additional complaints. Complaint DJ 202-50-1 alleged that
Avis would not substitute verifiable disability-related sources of income for verifiable employment in its
cash qualification procedure, thus preventing persons from renting vehicles with Avis who, due to a
disability, were unemployed and could not qualify for credit cards. The investigation of complaint DJ
202-50-1 was closed upon submission to the Department of a revised Avis form for cash qualification.
On this form, persons with disabilities may identify one of the following sources of income in lieu of
providing employment information: SSI (Supplemental Security Income); ssm (Supplemental Security
Disability Income); Veteran's Administration Disability Benefits; or Employer's Disability Benefits.

Complaint DJ 202-42-8 alleged that Avis would not permit the renter of the vehicle and the driver of the
vehicle to be different individuals, thus preventing persons from renting vehicles with Avis who, due to a
disability, did not possess a valid driver's license. The investigation of complaint DJ 202-42-8 has been
closed upon submission to the Department of Avis Form F190, the "Non-Licensed Renter Form." On this
form, a person who does not possess a driver's license due to a disability may rent a vehicle if such
person (i) has proven personal and financial responsibility in accordance with A vis qualification
procedures (the" renter"), (ii) appears at the time of the rental with an individual possessing a valid
driver's license (the "driver") and (iii) the driver will be the sole operator of the vehicle. The authorized
driver also shall be exempt from any local additional driver requirement.

2
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I11. Actions to be taken by Avis

5. In order to make vehicle rental accessible to persons with disabilities, Avis agrees to
do the following within thirty (30) days of date of this Agreement:

6. Upon request, Avis shall use its best efforts to provide a vehicle equipped with hand controls to any
renter who has a disability and who is otherwise qualified to rent a vehicle from Avis. Appendix A
summarizes current Avis policies with respect to (i) categories of vehicles equipped with hand controls,
(i1) general notice requirements for making available vehicles equipped with hand controls, and (iii)
specific notice requirements for making available vehicles equipped with hand controls at certain high
volume locations and is hereby incorporated as part of this Agreement.

7. Upon request for a vehicle of specific size with a specific number of doors that is equipped
with hand controls, Avis will use its best efforts to satisfy this request. In the event that a renter requests
hand controls to be installed in a particular size of car and no such car is available, the renter will be
upgraded at no charge to the next available size vehicle.

8. Avis will not impose any charge for providing or installing hand controls in its rental vehicles.

9. Avis will train an adequate number of mechanics or other employees in the proper installation
of vehicle hand controls, and at least one such employee will be trained at any location at which a
mechanic is employed. Likewise, similar instruction will be incorporated as part of the formal training
undertaken by newly-hired mechanics and other appropriate employees.

10. When no person trained in the proper installation of hand controls is available at a particular
location, Avis shall make appropriate alternative arrangements for the installation of hand controls at that
location, and shall use its best efforts to satisfy the customer's request.

11. Avis shall inform all employees who have contact with the public of the availability of hand
controls, notice requirements, and all other policies regarding reservations of vehicles equipped with
hand controls as set forth in this Agreement.

IV. General Provisions

12. All prospective renters, upon request, shall be advised of Avis' rental policies as described in
paragraph 6-11.

13. Avis shall notify all current Licensees of the rental policies described in paragraphs 6-11; and
shall urge current Licensees to adopt such policies.

14. Avis shall require all Licensees entering into a new contract or renewing an existing contract
on or after the effective date of this Agreement to adopt the changes in rental policies described above in
paragraphs 6-11. Avis shall further require all such Licensees to adopt notice requirements consistent
with those set forth in Appendix A.
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15. Except as specifically provided in paragraphs 13 and 14 of this Agreement, nothing herein
shall be construed to impose upon Avis any additional duties, obligations, or liabilities with respect to
any act or practice, or any alleged act or practice, of discrimination by any of its Licensees beyond those
which otherwise might be applicable under Federal, State or local law.

V. Implementation

16. Under section 308 (b) (1) (B) of the ADA, 42 U.S.C. § 12188 (b) (1) (B), the Attorney
General is authorized to bring a civil action under title IIl in any situation where a pattern or practice of
discrimination is believed to exist or where a matter of general public importance is raised. In
consideration of this Agreement as set forth above, the Attorney General agrees to refrain from
undertaking further investigation or from filing civil suit under title III in this matter.

17. The Department may review compliance with this Agreement at any time. If the Department
believes that this Agreement or provision thereof has been violated, it may institute a civil action in the
federal district court for the District of Columbia, or any other appropriate federal district court,
following written notice to Avis of the possible violation and a period of ten (10) days in which Avis has
the opportunity to cure the alleged violation. The Attorney General is authorized to seek civil penalties
pursuant to 42 D.S.C. § 12188 (b) (2) (C).

18. A violation of this Agreement shall be deemed a subsequent violation of the ADA. 42 D.S.C.
§ 12188 (b) (3) and 28 C.F.R. § 36.504(b).

19. This Agreement is a public document. A copy of this Agreement or any information
contained herein may be made available to any person. Avis or the Department shall provide a copy of
this Agreement to any person upon request.

20. This Agreement shall become effective as of the last signature below. The Agreement shall
be binding and its successors in interest. The owners and operators have a duty to so notify all such
successors in interest. The owners and operators of Avis have a duty to so notify all such successors in
interest.

21. The Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties on the matters raised
herein, and no other statement, promise, or agreement, either written or oral, made by either party or
agents of either party, that is not contained in this written Agreement shall be enforceable. This
Agreement is limited to the facts as set forth in paragraphs 1 through 4, and it does not purport to remedy
any other potential violations of the ADA or any other federal law. This Agreement does not affect Avis'
continuing responsibility to comply with all aspects of the ADA.

22. A signatory to this Agreement in a representative capacity for a partnership, corporation, or
other such entity represents that he or she is authorized to bind such partnership, corporation, or other

entity to this Agreement.

For the United States:
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Deval L. Patrick
Assistant Attorney General for Civil Rights

By:

John L. Wodatch

Joan A. Magagna

Mary Lou Mobley

Public Access Section

Civil Rights Division

U.S. Department of Justice
P.O. Box 66738

Washington, D.C. 20035-6738
(202) 307-0663

For Avis, Inc.:

By:

John J. Lynch

Vice President

Avis, Inc.

900 Old Country Road
Garden City, New York 11530
(516) 222-3790
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APPENDIX A
1. Hand controls will be provided for the following categories of vehicles. Vehicle groups:

(two-door compact)

(four-door compact)

(two-door full size)

(four-door full size), and
(luxury).

o o o0 o e
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2. For Avis at all locations, Avis adopts the following notice provisions:

a. Avis will not require more than twenty-four (24) hours advance notice for reservations
of vehicles equipped with hand controls for rental locations open until 11:00 p.m., seven days a
week, as well as those with longer hours.

b. Avis will not require more than forty-eight (48) hours advance notice for reservations
of vehicles equipped with hand controls for all other rental locations.

3. Notwithstanding paragraph 2, for the Avis locations listed below, Avis will not require more
than eight (8) hours advance notice for reservations of vehicles with hand controls, provided that the
request is received between 8:00 a.m. and 2:00 p.m., Monday through Friday:

JFK Airport

LGA Airport

Newark International Airport

Boston Logan Airport

Washington National Airport

Dulles International Airport Baltimore/Washington International
Airport Atlanta Hartsfield Airport
San Francisco International Airport
San Jose International Airport
Seattle-Tacoma International Airport
Phoenix Sky Harbor Airport
Orlando International Airport
Tampa International Airport

Miami International Airport

Palm Beach International Airport
O'Hare International Airport

Detroit Metro Airport

Houston Intercontinental Airport
Stapleton International Airport

~ YOO TBOBECRFTER MO AL TS

4. The notice requirements described are subject to the availability of an Avis mechanic or other
qualified employee who has been trained in hand controls.

5. Avis will use its best efforts to satisfy a request for a vehicle with hand controls which is
received with less notice than is set forth in paragraphs 2 and 3.

1
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6. A signatory to this Agreement in a representative capacity for a partnership, corporation, or
other such entity represents that he or she is authorized to bind such partnership, corporation, or other
entity to this Agreement.

For the United States:

Deval L. Patrick
Assistant Attorney General for Civil Rights

By:

John L. Wodatch

Joan A. Magagna

Mary Lou Mobley

Public Access Section
Civil Rights Division

U.S. Department of Justice
P.O. Box 66738
Washington, D.C.

(202) 307-0663

For Avis, Inc.:

By:

John J. Lynch

Vice President

Avis, Inc.

900 Old Country Road
Garden City, New York
(516) 222-3790
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SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT
UNDER THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT OF
BETWEEN THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA AND
AVIS RENT A CAR, INC.
FOR COMPLAINT DJ 202-37-60

A. Background

1. This matter was initiated by a complaint filed with the United States Department of Justice
(Department) against Avis Rent A Car, Inc. The complaint was investigated by the Department under the
authority granted by section 308(b) of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA), 42 U.S.C.
§§12101 et seq. The complaint alleges that Avis violated the ADA by denying individuals who use
wheelchairs access to the shuttle service that Avis operates between the Detroit Metro Airport terminal
and Avis' rental car service center.

2. To avoid unnecessary and costly litigation, the parties have agreed to resolve this action as set
forth below.

3. The parties to this Settlement Agreement (Agreement) are the United States of America and
Avis Rent A Car, Inc. (Avis). "Avis" shall mean and refer to Avis Rent A Car, Inc., and its agents,
employees, parents, subsidiaries, affiliates, assignees, and/or successors-in-interest.

4. Avis is a public accommodation, as defined in section 301(7) (e) of the ADA, 42 U.S.C. §
12181(7) (e), and it implementing regulation, 28 C.F.R. § 36.104. With respect to the shuttle bus system
Avis operates at the Detroit Metro Airport (the "Detroit Airport"), Avis is also a private entity, as defined
in section 301(6) of the ADA, 42 U.S.C. § 12181(6), and its implementing regulations, 28 C.F.R §
36.104 and 49 C.F.R.

§ 37.3, which is not primarily engaged in the business of transporting people.

5. Based on its investigation, the Department concluded that Avis operates its shuttle system at
the Detroit Airport as a fixed route system, as such term is defined in section 301(4) of the ADA, 42
U.S.C. § 12181(4), and its implementing regulation, 49 C.F.R. § 37.3. The ADA imposes certain
obligations on private operators of fixed route systems, as more particularly set forth in section 302 (b)
(2) (B) of the ADA, 42 U.S.C. § 12182 (b) (2) (B), and its implementing regulation, 49 C.F.R. § 37.101.

6. In addition, as a public accommodation, Avis is subject to certain obligations set forth in title
IIT of the ADA, 42 U.S.C. §§ 12181 through 12189, and the Department's regulation implementing title
III, 28 C.F.R. Part 36, including, but not limited to, the obligation to remove architectural barriers to
access in existing facilities and transportation barriers in existing vehicles, when such barrier removal is
readily achievable. See section 302(b) (2) (A) of the ADA, 42 U.S.C. § 12182(b) (2) (A), and its
implementing regulations, 28 C.F.R. § 36.304 and § 36.310(b).

7. By letter dated April 24, 1996 (the "Notice Letter"), the Department notified Avis that, based
on its investigation and the information Avis provided in response to the Department's request, Avis was,
in general, providing an acceptable level of service to individuals who use wheelchairs. However, in its
letter, the Department also informed Avis that it had concluded that Avis was in violation of certain of
the provisions of the ADA cited above relating to (i) the acquisition of accessible shuttle vehicles, (ii) the
provision of curbside service to individuals who use wheelchairs, (iii) the existence of architectural
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barriers that the Department believed should have been removed under Avis' obligation to engage in
readily achievable barrier removal, and (iv) the provision of effective communication for individuals who
are deaf or hard of hearing. Since that time, Avis and the Department have engaged in negotiations in an
effort to resolve this matter without resort to litigation. During this period Avis has taken action to
eliminate most of the violations identified by the Department in the Notice Letter by, for example,
acquiring and deploying accessible shuttle vehicles and removing architectural barriers at the Detroit
Airport and other Avis rental car facilities nationwide.

8. The original purpose of this Agreement was to set forth the agreement between the parties
regarding the remaining violations at the Detroit Airport. However, in the course of negotiations, Avis
determined that it would prefer to enter into a nationwide settlement in order to establish its obligation to
acquire, modify, and deploy shuttle vehicles at its’ corporately operated airport rental car facilities
nationwide (the "Airport Facilities"), whether currently or hereafter operated by Avis. In addition, the
parties desire to reach a comprehensive agreement regarding the actions Avis has taken and will take
nationwide to establish policies and procedures for providing curb-side service to individuals with
mobility impairments and/or those who are deaf or hard of hearing.

9. Avis does not admit that it is in violation of any of the provisions of the ADA with respect to
the operation of its shuttle services at the Detroit Airport or any of its other Airport Facilities.

10. Therefore, in order to avoid further investigation and possible litigation, and in consideration
of the mutual promises and covenants contained in this Agreement, the Department and
Avis have entered into this Settlement Agreement.

B. Actions Regarding Shuttle Vehicles

11. In the Notice Letter the Department informed Avis that it had concluded that the shuttle
system Avis operates at the Detroit Airport is a fixed route system, as such term is defined in section
301(4) of the ADA, 42 U.S.C. § 12181(4), and its implementing regulation, 49 C.F.R. § 37.3. The ADA
imposes certain obligations on private operators of fixed route systems, as more particularly set forth in
section 302(b) (2) (B) of the ADA, 42 U.S.C. § 12182(b) (2) (B), and its implementing regulation, 49
C.F.R. § 37.101. Based on its investigation and the information provided by Avis, the Department
concluded that two GMC/RTS shuttle vehicles acquired by Avis in 1992 and 1994, respectively, and
deployed at the Detroit Airport were required to be readily accessible to and usable by individuals who
use wheelchairs, but were not. To remedy this alleged violation, the Department proposed that Avis make
these vehicles accessible or replace them with new, accessible vehicles of the same capacity and design.
As of the Effective Date of this Agreement (as hereafter defined), both of these vehicles have been
refurbished and equipped with wheelchair lifts. Avis has also deployed an additional accessible shuttle
vehicle of the same model at its Detroit Airport Facility. However, as set forth in paragraph 8 above, the
parties have also agreed to address this .issue on a nationwide basis.

12. In order to resolve this matter, Avis and the Department have agreed to treat all shuttle
systems at Avis' Airport Facilities, whether currently or hereafter operated by Avis, as fixed route
systems, as defined in section 301{4) of the ADA, 42 U.S.C. § 12181{4), and its implementing
regulation, 49 C.F.R. § 37.3. Avis does not concede that such systems are fixed route systems and the
Department has not investigated the manner in which such shuttle systems other than the system at the
Detroit Airport are operated, in order to make a determination as to the type of system being operated in
each location.

4
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13. As noted in paragraph 7 above, Avis has already taken actions to eliminate most of the
violations alleged by the Department in the Notice Letter. Avis hereby represents and warrants to the
Department that all shuttle vehicles that Avis has purchased or leased for use at any Airport Facility
beginning on February 16, 1996, and continuing through the Effective Date of this Agreement, which
have a capacity of over 16 passengers, including the driver (hereinafter, "Large Capacity Vehicles"), are
accessible to individuals with disabilities including those who use wheelchairs. Avis agrees that,
following the Effective Date of this Agreement, all Large Capacity Vehicles purchased or leased for use
at any Airport Facility, whether the facility is currently operated by Avis or first operated by Avis after
the Effective Date of this Agreement, shall also be accessible regardless of whether an accessible shuttle
vehicle would otherwise be required by the ADA or its implementing regulations.

14. With respect to the shuttle systems at all Airport Facilities operated by Avis as of the
Effective Date of this Agreement, except for the systems at Las Vegas and Los Angeles, Avis hereby
agrees that, on or before December 31, 2000, all such systems will be in full compliance with the
regulations governing the acquisition of shuttle vehicles for fixed route systems. The parties hereby agree
that the shuttle systems at Las Vegas and Los Angeles, which were acquired by Avis after the
Department began this investigation, must be in full compliance on or before December 31, 2003. For
purposes of this Agreement, full compliance shall mean that all vehicles for which a solicitation for
purchase or lease was made after August 25, 1990, for use at one of the Airport Facilities (whether
currently or hereafter operated by Avis) and which have a capacity of over 16 passengers, including the
driver, shall be readily accessible to and usable by individuals with disabilities, including individuals
who use wheelchairs. See 49 C.F.R. §§ 37.101 (a) and (b). Avis agrees to meet this goal by either
removing or refurbishing all non-complying vehicles currently part. of such shuttle systems. Avis further
agrees that such removal and refurbishment shall be completed in accordance with the schedule set forth
in the document entitled "Avis Shuttle Bus Listing" and dated 3/29/99, which is attached hereto as
Exhibit A and hereby made a part of this Agreement. Following the date the shuttle system at any Airport
Facility is brought into full compliance with the ADA, Avis may transfer one or more of the shuttle
vehicles at that facility, as listed on Exhibit A, to other Airport Facilities so long as such transfer does not
result in a reduction in the number of accessible vehicles at any Airport Facility.

15. With respect to the shuttle systems at all Airport Facilities acquired by Avis after the
Effective Date of this Agreement, Avis hereby agrees that all such systems will be in full compliance
with the regulations governing the acquisition of shuttle vehicles for fixed route systems within two (2)
years of the date of acquisition. Avis agrees to meet this goal by either removing or refurbishing all
non-complying vehicles currently part of such shuttle systems.

16. Avis further agrees that, on or before December 31, 2000, the shuttle systems at all Airport
Facilities operated by Avis on the Effective Date of this Agreement will each contain at least one
accessible shuttle vehicle, regardless of whether an accessible shuttle vehicle is required by the ADA or
its implementing regulations. The shuttle system at Miami International Airport shall be exempt from the
requirements set forth in this paragraph because a height-restricted tunnel along the shuttle route
precludes the use of lift-equipped vehicles. Avis agrees that the deployment of such accessible vehicles
shall be completed in accordance with the schedule attached hereto as Exhibit A. Avis further agrees that,
within sixty (60) days of its acquisition of any new Airport Facility with a shuttle system, whether that
system could be considered a fixed route or demand responsive system, the shuttle system at that facility
shall contain at least one accessible shuttle vehicle regardless of whether an accessible shuttle vehicle
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would otherwise be required by the ADA or its implementing regulations. Avis agrees that from and after
the date it is required by this paragraph to deploy an accessible vehicle in the fleet at a given Airport
Facility, it will ensure that at least one accessible shuttle vehicle will be permanently deployed and fully
operational at that location at all times. This obligation is binding upon Avis and its successors and
assigns for as long as any shuttle system, whether fixed route, demand responsive, or of any other nature,
is operated at that Airport Facility.

17. Avis hereby represents and warrants to the Department that the information set forth in
Exhibit A is true, complete, and correct as of the Effective Date of this Agreement. Any breach of this
representation and warranty shall constitute a breach of this Agreement and the Department, at its sole
option, may exercise its remedies under this Agreement, including the remedies set forth in paragraph 28.

C. Curbside Service

18. In order to provide equivalent service to it customers at Detroit Airport with disabilities,
including those who use wheelchairs, Avis currently provides curbside pick-up and drop off services
using regular Avis fleet vehicles. Avis hereby agrees to transport such customers to and from its rental
car service center in either (i) a van equipped with a wheelchair lift, or (ii) an accessible shuttle vehicle
from its Detroit fleet. Any vehicle used to comply with the requirements of this paragraph shall meet the
Accessibility Specifications for Transportation Vehicles set forth in 49 C.F.R. Part 38, Subpart B. The
service provided pursuant to this paragraph must meet the equivalent service standard set forth in 49
C.F.R. § 37.105. Avis may meet the equivalency requirement by means such as sharing or pooling
accessible vehicles among entities with similar obligations, or by contracting with third-party
transportation service providers, as long as Avis ensures the provision of equivalent service.

19. In order to clarify the procedures used by Avis at Detroit Airport to provide equivalent
service to individuals with disabilities, including those who use wheelchairs, Avis has adopted the
policies and procedures set forth in the Statement of Policies and Procedures for the Provision of
Equivalent Service to Individuals Who Use Wheelchairs (Policy Statement), attached hereto as Exhibit B
and hereby made a part hereof. The Policy Statement was adopted by Avis and made effective as of May
10, 1996. Avis hereby reaffirms that it has adopted the Policy Statement and that it is in full force and
effect.

20. Avis has determined that it wishes to adopt the policies and procedures applicable to its
facilities at the Detroit Airport, as set forth in the Policy Statement, to all its Airport Facilities
nationwide, whether currently or hereafter operated by Avis. Within sixty (60) days of the Effective Date
of this Agreement, Avis agrees to adopt a policy statement for each Airport Facility it currently operates,
which shall be identical in form and substance to the Policy Statement for the Detroit Airport (Exhibit B),
except for any minor modifications necessary to address local conditions at a particular facility. Avis also
agrees that, within sixty (60) days after it begins serving customers at any new Airport Facility, it will
adopt such a policy statement for that facility.

21. Avis shall inform all employees who have contact with the public of the modification in
policies and procedures described above and shall disseminate copies of the Policy Statement to all such
employees. Employees at the Detroit Airport shall receive copies of the Policy Statement within fifteen
(15) days of the Effective Date of this Agreement. Employees at all other Airport Facilities shall receive
copies of the appropriate policy statement on or before the date Avis is require to adopt it. Further, Avis
shall remind all employees who have contact with the public of the policies and procedures set forth in
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the applicable policy statement on an annual basis for the five years following the latter of (i) the
Effective Date of this Agreement, or (ii) the date the Airport Facility was acquired. Avis shall incorporate
the new policies and procedures into all appropriate training manuals and programs for employees.

22. All prospective renters, upon request, shall be advised of Avis' policies and procedures as set
forth in the Policy Statement. A copy of the applicable policy statement shall be made available at each
airport rental car service center to all prospective renters, upon request, for a period of one year following
the latter of sixty (60) days after (i) the Effective Date-of this Agreement, or (ii) the date the Airport
Facility was acquired.

23. Avis shall notify all current licensees of the u.s. Avis Rent A Car system of the modification
in policies and procedures described above, shall provide such licensees with a copy of the Policy
Statement, and shall encourage current licensees to adopt such policies and procedures.

24. Avis shall require all contract or renewing an existing Effective date of this Agreement and
procedures described above.

D. Architectural Barriers

25. As Attachment A to the Notice Letter, the Department provided Avis with a list of physical
barriers to access at Avis' Detroit Airport Facility. In response, Avis informed the Department that access
improvements to its Detroit Airport facilities were planned as part of its nationwide program of barrier
removal. At the Department's request, Avis agreed to accelerate barrier removal at the Detroit Airport
and has provide evidence that barrier removal was completed as of December 16, 1998. Although Avis
has informed the Department, that it has engaged in substantial barrier removal efforts at its
corporately-operated sites nationwide, this Agreement addresses barrier removal at Avis' Detroit Airport
Facility only.

E. Effective Communication

26. Avis currently provides a direct telephone connection between the Airport terminal and its
service center that customers, including its customers who use wheelchairs, may use to request delivery
of their cars and to otherwise transact business with Avis; however no direct TDD service is provided.
Avis acknowledges that, pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 12182 (b) (2) (A) (ii1), 28 C.F.R. § 36.303 (c), it has the
obligation to ensure effective communication with individuals with disabilities. The Department has
informed Avis that its present method of communicating with the public at the Airport terminal does not
ensure effective communication with individuals who are deaf, hard of hearing, or otherwise unable to
communicate by telephone. Avis hereby agrees to develop and implement a system for providing
effective communication with its customers at the Detroit Airport. The system must be in operation by
the date that is six months from the Effective Date of this Agreement. At a minimum, Avis shall install
appropriate signage directing individuals to the location of airport TDD's and ensure that TDD's and
trained personnel are available to respond to calls from the airport terminal to its Detroit rental car
facility. Any proposed system must receive the prior written approval of the Department, which approval
shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed.

F. Implementation and Enforcement of the Settlement Agreement

27. The Attorney General is authorized, pursuant to section 308(b) (1) (B) of the ADA, to bring a
7
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civil action to enforce. Title III of the ADA in any situation where the Attorney General believes a
pattern or practice of discrimination exists or a matter of general public importance is raised. In
consideration of the terms of this Agreement, the Attorney General agrees to refrain from filing a civil
suit under title III with respect to the specific matters agreed to herein.

28. The Department may review compliance with this Agreement at any time. If the Department
believes that this Agreement or any portion of it has been violated, it will so notify Avis in writing and it
will attempt to resolve the issue or issues in good faith. If the Department is unable to reach a satisfactory
resolution of the issue or issues raised within thirty (30) days of the date it provides notice to Avis, it may
elect to either:

(i) institute a civil action in federal district court seeking to enforce the terms of this

Agreement. If the United States demonstrates in such a proceeding that Avis has failed to comply

with any portion of this Agreement, Avis shall be liable to the United States for a civil penalty in

an amount of $50,000.00 or such other amount as the court may determine is appropriate. If the

United States demonstrates that any individual has been aggrieved by the violation, Avis shall

compensate each such individual in an amount of no less than $ 5,000. The United States may

also seek other appropriate relief as authorized by the ADA; or

(i1) notify Avis that the Agreement is no longer operative and reopen its investigation of
Department of Justice Complaint # 202-37-60 and/or commence litigation under title III of the
ADA in federal district court.

29. The parties agree that in the event the Department seeks enforcement of this Agreement in
federal district court or initiates litigation under title III in federal district court, the United States Court
for the District of Columbia shall have personal and subject matter jurisdiction over such litigation, in all
respects.

30. Failure by the Department to enforce this entire Agreement or any provision thereof with
regard to any deadline or any other provision herein shall not be construed as a waiver of its right to do
so with regard to other deadlines and provisions of this Agreement.

31. This Agreement is a public document. A copy of this document or any information contained
herein may be made available to any person. Avis or the Department shall provide a copy of this
Agreement to any person upon request.

32. This Agreement shall become effective as of the date of the last signature below (the
"Effective Date") and shall expire on the date that is seven (7) years from the Effective Date. This
Agreement shall be binding on Avis and its successors and assigns. The owners and operators of Avis
have a duty to so notify all such successors in interest.

33. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties on the matters raised
herein, and no other statement, promise, or agreement, either written or oral, made by either party or
agents of either party, that is not contained in this written Agreement shall be enforceable. This
Agreement does not purport to remedy any other violations of the ADA or any other federal law other
than those specifically addressed herein. This Agreement does not affect Avis' continuing responsibility
to comply with all aspects of the ADA.
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34. A signatory to this document in a representative capacity for a partnership, corporation, or
other such entity represents that he or she is authorized to bind such partnership, corporation, or other
entity to this Agreement.

For the United States:
Bill Lann Lee
Acting Assistant Attorney General for Civil Rights

By:

John L. Wodatch, Chief

L. Irene Bowen, Deputy Chief

Anne Marie Pecht, Attorney Disability Rights Section
Civil Rights Division

U.S. Department of Justice

P.O. Box 66738

Washington, DC 20035-6738

(202) 307-2891

For Avis Rent A Car. Inc:

By: F. Robert Salerno

President and Chief Operating Officer
Avis Rent A Car System, Inc.

900 Old Country Road

Garden City, New York 11530
(516) 222-3325
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Exhibit C
FTC Consent Order Regarding Budget Rent-A-Car System, Inc.
(See attached)



UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
BEFORE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION

COMMISSIONERS:  Robert Pitofsky, Chairman
Mary L. Azcuenaga
Janet D. Steiger
Roscoe B. Starek, III
Christine A. Varney

In the Matter of ) DOCKET NO. C-3674

)

BUDGET RENT A CAR SYSTEMS, INC,, )
a corporation. )

The Federal Trade Commission having initiated an investigation of certain acts and practices of the
respondent named in the caption hereof, and the respondent having been furnished thereafter with a copy of
a draft of complaint which the Seattle Regional Office proposed to present to the Commission for its
consideration and which, if issued by the Commission, would charge respondent with violation of the
Federal Trade Commission Act; and

The respondent, its general counsel, and counsel for the Commission having thereafter executed an
agreement containing a consent order, an admission by the respondent of all the jurisdictional facts set forth
in the aforesaid draft of complaint, a statement that the signing of said agreement is for settlement purposes
only and does not constitute an admission by respondent that the law has been violated as alleged in such
complaint, or that the facts as alleged in such complaint, other than jurisdictional facts, are true and waivers
and other provisions as required by the Commission’s Rules; and

The Commission having thereafter considered the matter and having determined that it had reason
to believe that the respondent has violated the said Act, and that a complaint should issue stating its charges
in that respect, and having thereupon accepted the executed consent agreement and placed such agreement
on the public record for a period of sixty (60) days, now in further conformity with the procedure prescribed
in section 2.34 of its Rules, the Commission hereby issues its complaint, makes the following jurisdictional
findings and enters the following order:

1. Respondent Budget Rent a Car Systems, Inc., is a Delaware corporation with its principal
office and place of business located at 4225 Naperville Road, Lisle, Illinois 60532-3662.

2. The Federal Trade Commission has jurisdiction of the subject matter of this proceeding and
of the respondent, and the proceeding is in the public interest.

ORDER
Definitions
For purposes of this order:
A. “Turnback” means any preset price, premium, bonus, or formula that could result in

respondent receiving more than the vehicle’s fair market value upon repurchase by the
vehicle’s original vender, financer, or their designee.
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B. “Fair market value” means the vehicle’s price as listed in an industry-wide and generally
accepted publication or directory of used car values, or the resale price received in a
commercially reasonable sale.

C. “LDW” means any option that respondent offers that limits or eliminates a renter’s liability
to respondent for loss of or damage to the respondent’s vehicle during the pendency of the
rental agreement.

D. “Insurance” means the renter’s own standard vehicle insurance, and any alternative,
supplemental, or secondary coverage the renter possesses that provides coverage for rented
vehicles including, but not limited to, the coverage currently furnished by many credit card
companies.

IT IS ORDERED that respondent, its successors and assigns, and its officers, agents,
representatives, and employees, directly or through any partnership, corporation, subsidiary, division, or
other device, in connection with the promoting, offering for rental, or rental of any vehicle, in or for any
rental location where it seeks loss of turnback or turnback value in any form for vehicles rented in that
location, in or affecting commerce, as “commerce” is defined in the Federal Trade Commission Act, does
forthwith cease and desist from:

A. Failing to disclose, clearly and prominently, in connection with any
representation relating to the renter’s liability for loss of or damage to a rental vehicle,
including any representation about LDW, that in the event of loss of or damage to a vehicle
for which LDW was declined, respondent may charge the renter between $x and Sy
(specify range of dollar amounts Budget may seek) more than the cost of repairs or the fair
market value of the vehicle, that many insurance companies will not pay this charge, and
that the renter will have to pay it. This paragraph applies specifically to, but is not limited
to, Budget’s rental contracts and to any representation relating to the price or terms of
LDW made through respondent’s inputs in the “company-specific location” part of
third-party, computerized reservation systems, such as “Apollo”, “PARS”, “Sabre”, or
“System One”.

Provided, however, that if respondent uses a “short-form” rental contract or other
document or electronic form of agreement that makes it impractical to place the required disclosure
within the document or form, respondent shall devise other means to ensure that each renter receives the
substance of the disclosure before entering into the rental agreement. The other means could include, but
are not limited to, a separate disclosure document to be signed or initialed by the renter.

B. Failing to post at each Budget rental location a sign or placard clearly
and prominently containing the following language:

If you decline LDW and the rental car is damaged or stolen, we may charge you between
$x and $y (specify range of dollar amounts Budget may seek) more than the cost of repairs
or the fair market value of the vehicle. Many insurance companies will not pay this. If
yours does not, you will have to pay it.

The sign or placard shall be of a size, and posted in a manner, reasonably calculated to elicit prospective
renters' attention.

C. Failing to disclose in a clear and prominent manner in any communication
seeking payment of any charge for loss of or damage to a rental vehicle, any part of the
charge that is attributable to loss of turnback including, but not limited to, instances where
the vehicle is totaled or stolen and respondent is seeking compensation based in whole or
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part on any turnback amount. This disclosure shall include an explanation of what loss of
turnback means and how it was calculated.

IL.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that respondent, its successors and assigns, and its officers, agents,
representatives, and employees, directly or through any partnership, corporation, subsidiary, division, or
other device, in connection with the promoting, offering for rental, or rental of any vehicle, in or for any
rental location where it seeks loss of turnback or turnback value in any form for vehicles rented in that
location, in or affecting commerce, as “commerce” is defined in the Federal Trade Commission Act, does
forthwith cease and desist from misrepresenting, in any manner, directly or by implication:

1. the obligation of the renter to make any payment as the result of the loss of or damage to a
rental vehicle; and

2. the value of a vehicle that has been lost or damaged.
1L

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that no provision of this order is intended to preempt any state law,
regulation, or administrative interpretation that may limit or prevent respondent from collecting loss of
turnback from a renter.

Iv.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that respondent shall pay into an interest-bearing escrow account
designated by the Commission, under the control of the Commission’s designated agent, the sum of $75,000
on or before five days from the date of service of this order. This shall fully satisfy all monetary claims
asserted by the Commission in the complaint filed herein against this respondent and shall be used to
provide redress to consumers who made a payment to respondent and to pay any attendant expenses of
administration. if the Commission determines, in its sole discretion, that redress to consumers is wholly or
partially impracticable, any funds not so used shall be deposited into the United States Treasury. No
portion of respondent’s payment shall be deemed a payment of any fine, penalty, or punitive assessment.
Respondent shall be notified as to how funds are disbursed but shall have no right to contest the manner of
distribution chosen by the Commission.

V.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that respondent shall, for three years from the date of service upon it
of this order, distribute, or cause to be distributed, a copy of this order to all present and future division,
regional, branch, and subrogation managers who have management responsibilities relating to the collection
of collision or theft damages from renters.

VL

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that respondent shall, for three years from the date of service of this
order, maintain and upon request make available to the Federal Trade Commission for inspection and
copying all documents relating to compliance with this order.

VIL

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that respondent shall, for 10 years from the date of service of this
order, notify the FTC in writing at least 30 days prior to the effective date of any proposed change in its

3
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corporate structure, such as dissolution, assignment, or sale resulting in the emergence of successor
corporations, the creation or dissolution of subsidiaries, or any other changes in the corporation that may
affect compliance obligations arising out of this Order.

VIIL

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that respondent shall, within 60 days from the date of service of this
order, file with the Commission a report, in writing, setting forth in detail the manner and form in which it
has complied with this Order.

IX.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that this order will terminate on June 17, 2016, or twenty years from
the most recent date that the United States or the Federal trade Commission files a complaint (with or
without an accompanying consent decree) in federal court alleging any violation of the order, whichever
comes later; provided, however, that the filing of such a complaint will not affect the duration of:

A. Any paragraph in this order that terminates in less than twenty years; and

B. This order if the complaint is filed after the order has terminated pursuant to this paragraph.

Provided further, that if the complaint is dismissed or a federal court rules that the respondent did
not violate any provision of the order, and the dismissal or ruling is either not appealed or upheld on
appeal, then the order will terminate according to this paragraph as though the complaint was never filed,
except that the order will not terminate between the date the complaint is filed and the later of the deadline
for appealing the dismissal or ruling and the date the dismissal or ruling is upheld on appeal.

By the Commission.

Donald S. Clark
Secretary

SEAL

ISSUED: June 17, 1996
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UNITED STATES OF AMERCA
FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION

COMMISSIONERS: Deborah Platt Majoras, Chairman
Pamela Jones Harbour
Jon Leibowitz
William E. Kovacic
J. Thomas Rosch

In the Matter of
DOCKET No. C-4212
BUDGET RENT A CAR

SYSTEM, INC., DECISION AND ORDER

a corporation

The Federal Trade Commission having initiated an investigation of certain acts and practices of
Budget Rent A Car System, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as “Respondent’), and Respondent having been
furnished thereafter with a copy of the draft of Complaint which the Western Region proposed to present
to the Commission for its consideration and which, if issued by the Commission, would charge
Respondent with violations of the Federal Trade Commission Act, as amended, 15 U.S.C. 45; and

Respondent, its attorneys, and counsel for the Commission having thereafter executed an
agreement containing a consent order (“Consent Agreement”), containing an admission by the
Respondent of all the jurisdictional facts set forth in the aforesaid draft of Complaint, a statement that the
signing of said Consent Agreement is for settlement purposes only and does not constitute an admission
by Respondent that the law has been violated as alleged in such Complaint, or that the facts as alleged in
such Complaint, other than jurisdictional facts, are true and waivers and other provisions as required by
the Commission’s Rules; and

The Commission having thereafter considered the matter and having determined that it had
reason to believe that the Respondent has violated the said Act, and that Complaint should issue stating
its charges in that respect, and having thereupon accepted the executed Consent Agreement and placed
such Consent Agreement on the public record for a period of thirty (30) days for the receipt and
consideration of comments, now in further conformity with the procedure prescribed in Commission
Rule 2.34, 16 C.F.R. 2.34, the Commission hereby makes the following jurisdictional findings and issues
the following Order:

1. Respondent Budget Rent A Car System, Inc. is a corporation organized, existing, and doing
business under and by virtue of the laws of the State of Delaware, with its office and

principal place of business located at 6 Sylvan Way, Parsippany, New Jersey.

2. The Federal Trade Commission has jurisdiction of the subject matter of this proceeding and
of the Respondent, and the proceeding is in the public interest.

S7H3H22.27571131122.29



ORDER

DEFINITIONS

For purposes of this order, the following definitions shall apply:

Unless otherwise specified, “Respondent” shall mean Budget Rent A Car System, Inc., a
corporation, its successors and assigns, and its officers, agents, representatives, and
employees.

“Clearly and conspicuously” shall mean as follows:

a. In an advertisement communicated through an electronic medium (such as television,
video, radio and interactive media such as the Internet and online services), the
disclosure shall be presented simultaneously in both the audio and visual portions of the
advertisement. Provided, however, that in any advertisement presented solely through
visual or audio means, the disclosure may be made through the same means in which the
ad is presented. The audio disclosure shall be delivered in a volume and cadence
sufficient for an ordinary consumer to hear and comprehend it. The visual disclosure
shall be of a size and shade, and shall appear on the screen for a duration, sufficient for
an ordinary consumer to read and comprehend it.

b. In a print advertisement, promotional material (including, but not limited to counter
signs), or instructional manual, the disclosure shall be in a type size and location
sufficiently noticeable for an ordinary consumer to read and comprehend it, in print that
contrasts with the background against which it appears.

The disclosure shall be in understandable language and syntax. Nothing contrary to, inconsistent
with, or in mitigation of the disclosure shall e used in any advertisement or promotional material.

3.

“Commerce” shall mean commerce as defined in Section 4 of the Federal Trade Commission
Act, 15 U.S.C. 44.

“Fuel-related charge, fee, or cost” shall mean any charge, fee, or cost imposed by
Respondent on consumers in connection with the use of fuel or gasoline.

“Fuel-related option” shall mean any option, program, or a alternative offered by Respondent
in connection with how consumers will pay for fuel or gasoline or the method by which

Respondent will calculate fuel-related changes, fees, or costs.

“Renter” shall mean any person in any manner obligated under a contract for the lease or hire
of a passenger vehicle will be rented but before the renter signs the rental contract.

“At the time of rental transaction” shall mean the time after which a renter arrives at the
location from which the vehicle will be rented but before the renter signs the rental contract.

L

IT IS ORDERED that Respondent, directly or through any corporation, subsidiary, division, or

other device, in connection with the advertising, marketing, promotion, offering for rent, or renting of
any vehicle, shall not misrepresent, in any manner, expressly or by implication:

. the renters who return their vehicle with a full gas tank will not incur any fuel-related

charges;

6
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B. Any fuel-related charge, fee, or cost, or related requirement; or
C. Any charge, fee, or cost, or material term or condition, relating to the rental of any vehicle.
II.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Respondent, directly or through any corporation, subsidiary,
division, or other device, in connection with the advertising, marketing, promotion, offering for rent, or
renting of any vehicle, shall disclose clearly and conspicuously, at the time of rental transaction,

A. any fuel-related charges, fees, or costs, including any fuel-related charges, fees, or costs
which a renter who drives the vehicle less than any specified amount may incur;

B. any requirements related to fuel-related charges, fees, or costs, including any fuel-related
requirements which a renter who drives the vehicle less than any specified amount may need
to satisfy; and

C. the manner, if any, in which a renter can avoid such fuel-related charges, fees, or costs, or
related requirements.

II.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Respondent, directly or through any corporation, subsidiary,
division, or other device, in connection with the advertising, marketing, promotion, offering for rent, or
renting of any vehicle, shall not make, expressly or by implication, any representation about the benefits,
costs, or parameters of any fuel-related option, unless it discloses clearly and conspicuously, and in close
proximity to the representation, all material terms and conditions relating to the fuel option.

IV.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Respondent Budget Rent A Car System, Inc. and its successors
and assigns, for five (5) years after the last date of dissemination of any representation covered by this
order, shall maintain and upon request make available to the Federal Trade Commission for inspection
and copying:

A. All advertisements and promotional materials containing the representation:
B. All materials that were relied upon in disseminating the representations; and

C. All tests, reports, studies, surveys, demonstrations, or other evidence in its possession or
control that contradict, qualify, or call into question the representation, or the basis relied
upon for the representation, including complaints and other communications with consumers
or with governmental or consumer protection organizations.

V.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Respondent Budget Rent A Car System, Inc. and its successors
and assigns, for a period of three (3) years, shall deliver a copy of this order to all current and future
principals, officers, directors, and managers, and to all current and future employees, agents, and
representatives having responsibilities with respect to the subject matter of this order, and shall secure
from each such person a signed and dated statement acknowledging receipt of the order. Respondent
shall deliver this order to current personnel within forty-five (45) days after the date of service of this

7
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order, and to future personnel within forty-five (45) days after the person assumes such position or
responsibilities.
VL

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Respondent Budget Rent A Car System, Inc. and its successors
and assigns shall notify the Commission at least thirty (30) days prior to any change in the corporation(s)
that may affect compliance obligations arising under this order, including but not limited to a dissolution,
assignment, sale, merger, or other action that would result in the emergence of a successor corporation;
the creation or dissolution of a subsidiary, parent, or affiliate that engages in any acts or practices subject
to this order; the proposed filing of a bankruptcy petition; or a change in the corporate name or address.
Provided, however, that with respect to any proposed change in the corporation about which Respondent
learns less than thirty (30) days prior to the date such action is to take place, Respondent shall notify the
Commission as soon as is practicable after obtaining such knowledge. All notices required by this Part
shall be sent by certified mail to the Associate Director, Division of Enforcement, Bureau of Consumer
Protection, Federal Trade Commission, Washington, D.C. 20580.

VIL

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Respondent Budget Rent A Car System, Inc. and its successors
and assigns shall, within sixty (60) days after the date of service of this order, and at such other times as
the Federal Trade Commission may require, file with the Commission a report, in writing, setting forth in
detail the manner and form in which it has complied with this order.

VIIL
This order will terminate on January 2, 2028, or twenty (20) years from the most recent date that
the United States or the Federal Trade Commission files a complaint (with or without an accompanying
consent decree) in federal court alleging any violation of the order, whichever comes later; provided;
however, that the filing of such a complaint will not affect the duration of:

A. Any Part in this order that terminates in less than twenty (20) years;

B. This order’s application to any Respondent that is not named as a defendant in such
complaint; and

C. This order if such complaint is filed after the order has terminated pursuant to this Part
Provided, further, that if such complaint is dismissed or a federal court rules that the Respondent did not
violate any provision of the order, and the dismissal or ruling is either not appealed or upheld on appeal,
then the order will terminate according to this Part as thought the complaint had never been filed, except
that the order will not terminate between the date such complaint is filed and the later of the deadline for
appealing such dismissal or ruling and the date such dismissal or ruling is upheld on appeal.

By the Commission,

Donald S. Clark
Secretary

ISSUED: January 2, 2008
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Exhibit D
Confidentiality Agreement

This Confidentiality Agreement is made and entered into as of , 20 between
Payless Car Rental System, Inc., (“PAYLESS”) and ,a
(“PROSPECTIVE LICENSEE”).

WHEREAS, PROSPECTIVE LICENSEE desires to evaluate the purchase of a Franchise
from PAYLESS on the terms and conditions of PAYLESS’ License Agreement; and

WHEREAS, in connection with this evaluation, PROSPECTIVE LICENSEE desires to
review PAYLESS’ Manual, which may consist of several component parts (“MANUAL”) which

MANUAL contains, and is being maintained as, confidential information and trade secrets of
PAYLESS; and

WHEREAS, PAYLESS will permit inspection of its MANUAL prior to the execution of a
License Agreement only on the terms and conditions of this Confidentiality Agreement;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of being given access to the MANUAL,
PROSPECTIVE LICENSEE hereby agrees as follows:

1. All information contained in the MANUAL (the “Confidential Information’) shall be
used by PROSPECTIVE LICENSEE solely for the purpose of evaluating whether or not to enter into
a License Agreement with PAYLESS, and for no other purpose.

2. PROSPECTIVE LICENSEE shall not disclose the Confidential Information to any
person or entity other than Permitted Parties, as defined below.

3. Confidential Information does not include any item of information, which is either:
(a) known to PROSPECTIVE LICENSEE prior to its receipt of such information from PAYLESS; (b)
known to the public prior to PROSPECTIVE LICENSEE'S receipt of such information from
PAYLESS; (c) after such receipt, becomes available to the public generally other than by
contravention of this Agreement, any Permitted Party’s Confidentiality Agreement, or any other duty
to or agreement with PAYLESS; or (d) is obtained by PROSPECTIVE LICENSEE from a source with
the independent right to disclose it.

4. Upon completion of the evaluation process, PROSPECTIVE LICENSEE shall return
to PAYLESS all copies of the MANUAL and all other tangible embodiments containing any
Confidential Information, including any notes or analyses made by PROSPECTIVE LICENSEE or
any Permitted Party.

5. A breach of any provision of this Agreement will cause PAYLESS irreparable
injury. PAYLESS will be entitled to injunctive relief without bond to enjoin any actual or threatened
conduct in violation of this Agreement. If PAYLESS is successful in obtaining enforcement of this
Agreement, PAYLESS shall also be entitled to recover from PROSPECTIVE LICENSEE any and all
attorney’s fees, court costs and other expenses incurred by PAYLESS in connection with such
enforcement.

6. “Permitted Parties” shall mean:

a. Officers, directors and employees of PROSPECTIVE LICENSEE who have
previously executed a Confidentiality Agreement in favor of PAYLESS; and

9
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b. Attorneys, agents, consultants, advisors or other independent contractors of
PROSPECTIVE LICENSEE, but only if such party:

(1) Has previously executed a Confidentiality Agreement in favor of
PAYLESS; and

(1) Has previously required all individuals related to it who will have
access to the Confidentiality Information to execute a Confidentiality Agreement in
favor of PAYLESS.

All such Confidentiality Agreements shall be in a form satisfactory of PAYLESS, and a person or
entity shall not be a Permitted Party until and unless the Confidentiality Agreement executed by the
party has been delivered, duly executed, to PAYLESS.

7. This Agreement is intended to be a contract governed and construed under the internal
laws of the State of New Jersey. Jurisdiction and venue for any dispute arising out of or related to this
Agreement shall be in the federal or state courts sitting in New Jersey, and the parties hereto irrevocably
consent to the jurisdiction and venue of such courts.

8. The failure of PAYLESS to exercise any right hereunder against Prospective Franchisee
or any other party shall not be construed as a waiver or a novation. If any portion of this Agreement is
determined to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable under any present or future law by a final judgment
of any court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this Agreement will not be influenced thereby.
It is the intention of the parties hereto that if any such portion is so held illegal, invalid, or
unenforceable, that such portion be replaced by terms as similar to such portion as is possible to be
legal, valid, and enforceable.

9. This Agreement is the entire agreement between the parties as to its subject matter. Any
change to this Agreement must be signed by the PROSPECTIVE LICENSEE and acknowledged in

writing by PAYLESS.
PROSPECTIVE LICENSEE

By:

Its:

Accepted and Acknowledged:
PAYLESS CAR RENTAL SYSTEM, INC.

By:
Its:
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Exhibit E

List of Franchisees



Franchisees as of December 31, 2024

ADDRESS CITY STATE ZIP PHONE NUMBER LICENSEE OWNER
3355 ADMIRAL BOLAND WAY SAN DIEGO CA 92101 619-296-4966 GEORGE / SAM KHOULI
2700 1ST STREET BRADENTON FL 34208 941-741-4900 MARK VOLLENDORF
2300 N AIRPORT BLVD SPRINGFIELD MO 65802 417-450-4545 \l]\IEEFLIJ:ENSCHWANDER
2801 32ND AVE NW FARGO ND 58102 701-478-9890 BERNIE NESS
4090 MAIN AVE FARGO ND 58103 701-478-9889 BERNIE NESS
926 WEST HIGH STREET EBENSBURG PA 15931 814-471-1014 ROBERT GARDILL
2121 BEDFORD STREET JOHNSTOWN PA 15904 814-266-2115 ROBERT GARDILL
2 TERMINAL DRIVE MIDDLETOWN PA 17057 717-616-8372 SOLOMON CRAMER
1862 WEST HARRISBURG PIKE MIDDLETOWN PA 17057 717-616-8438 SOLOMON CRAMER
2075 BYBERRY ROAD PHILADELPHIA PA 19116 215-676-6764 SAM DEANGELIS
6975 NORWITCH DRIVE PHILADELPHIA PA 19153 215-492-5500 SAM DEANGELIS
2493 FOX HILL ROAD STATE COLLEGE PA 16803 814-237-9750 SOLOMON CRAMER

*1f you buy this franchise, your contact information may be disclosed to other buyers when you leave the franchise system.

537556595.9




Exhibit F
Franchisees Who Have Left the System
as of December 31, 2024

None
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Exhibit G
Financial Statements of Avis Budget Group, Inc.
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- Deloitte & Touche LLP
e o I e 30 Rockefeller Plaza
New York, NY 10112
USA

Tel: +1 212 492 4000
Fax: +1 212 489 1687
www.deloitte.com

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Stockholders and the Board of Directors of Avis Budget Group, Inc.
Parsippany, New Jersey

Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Avis Budget Group, Inc. and
subsidiaries (the "Company") as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the related consolidated statements of
operations, comprehensive income, stockholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2024, and the related notes and the schedule listed in the Index at Item 15
(collectively referred to as the "financial statements"). In our opinion, the financial statements present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2024 and 2023,
and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2024, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the Company's financial statements based on our audits. We are a public
accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be independent with respect to the
Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of
the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. Our audits included performing procedures
to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud,
and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test
basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also
included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audits provide
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Critical Audit Matters

The critical audit matters communicated below are matters arising from the current-period audit of the
financial statements that were communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee
and that (1) relate to accounts or disclosures that are material to the financial statements and (2) involved



our especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The communication of critical audit matters
does not alter in any way our opinion on the financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by
communicating the critical audit matters below, providing separate opinions on the critical audit matters
or on the accounts or disclosures to which they relate.

Vehicles - Depreciation Expense - United States Risk Vehicles - Refer to Notes 2 and 8 to the financial
statements

Critical Audit Matter Description

The Company records rental vehicles at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. The initial cost of the
vehicles is recorded net of incentives and allowances from manufacturers. Rental vehicles acquired by the
Company outside of the manufacturer repurchase and guaranteed depreciation programs are referred to
as risk vehicles and the carrying values of these risk vehicles are depreciated based upon the vehicles'
estimated residual values at their expected dates of disposition. The estimation of residual values for risk
vehicles requires the Company to make assumptions regarding factors which include, but are not limited
to, the anticipated age of the vehicles and market conditions for used vehicles at the time of disposal. The
Company regularly evaluates estimated residual values and adjusts vehicle depreciation rates as
appropriate. Any adjustments to depreciation are made prospectively.

Given the volume of risk vehicles in the United States and the significant estimation uncertainty and
judgments made by management to calculate the estimated residual values of these risk vehicles, auditing
the estimated residual values of the United States risk vehicles and related vehicle depreciation expense
required extensive audit effort to develop an independent expectation of residual values and depreciation
expense, and a high degree of auditor judgment was required when performing audit procedures and
evaluating the results of those procedures. The significant estimation uncertainty was primarily due to
management's assumptions regarding the impact of future consumer demand and general economic
conditions on expected pricing of used vehicles. Additionally, auditing the calculation of the estimated
residual values for United States risk vehicles was challenging due to the volume of data inputs utilized in
management's calculation, including historical sales data and data specific to the Company's current fleet.

How the Critical Audit Matter Was Addressed in the Audit

Our audit procedures to assess the reasonableness of the estimated residual values and vehicle
depreciation expense related to United States risk vehicles included the following, among others:

* We evaluated the appropriateness and consistency of the Company’s methods, significant
assumptions and judgments to calculate the estimated residual values of risk vehicles and the
expected dates of disposition.

* We tested the effectiveness of controls over vehicle depreciation expense related to risk vehicles and
management’s review of the significant assumptions and judgments to calculate the estimated
residual values of risk vehicles, including those over the Company’s monitoring of residual values and
used vehicle market conditions.

*  We assessed the reasonableness of the estimated residual values of risk vehicles by performing the
following procedures on a selection of risk vehicles:



- We tested the underlying historical data that served as the basis for the Company’s calculation of the
estimated residual values to evaluate the reasonableness of the inputs.

- We tested the mathematical accuracy of the Company’s calculation of the estimated residual values
and vehicle depreciation expense rates.

- We tested significant assumptions and judgments used in the Company’s calculation by developing
an independent expectation of residual values and compared them to the estimated residual values
calculated by the Company. Our independent expectation was calculated using our professional
judgment by reference to third-party data, information produced by the Company, subsequent vehicle
sales, and inquiries of management.

- We searched for contradictory evidence associated with the significant assumptions and judgments
made by management based on our knowledge of the industry and review of third-party industry
data.

* We developed an independent expectation of depreciation expense based on, but not limited to, the
vehicles’ age and results of our residual value testing and compared it to the amount recorded by the
Company as depreciation expense.

Self-Insurance Reserves - Public Liability and Property Damage Claims - United States - Refer to Note 2 to
the financial statements

Critical Audit Matter Description

The Company is self-insured for public liability and property damage claims. These self-insurance reserves
represent an estimate for both reported claims not yet paid and claims incurred but not yet reported. The
estimated reserve requirements for such claims are calculated on an undiscounted basis using actuarial
methods and various assumptions which include, but are not limited to, historical loss experience and
projected loss development factors. The required liability is subject to adjustment in the future based
upon changes in claims experience, including changes in the number of incidents for which the Company
is ultimately liable and changes in the cost per incident.

Given the volume of pubilic liability and property damage claims in the United States and the subjectivity
of estimating the related self-insurance reserves for reported claims not yet paid and claims incurred but
not yet reported due to the uncertain exposure and projected loss development, performing audit
procedures to evaluate whether these self-insurance reserves were appropriately recorded as of
December 31, 2024 required a significant degree of auditor judgment and an increased extent of effort,
including the need to involve our actuarial specialists.

How the Critical Audit Matter Was Addressed in the Audit

Our audit procedures related to United States public liability and property damage self-insurance reserves
included the following, among others:

*  We tested the effectiveness of controls over management’s review of significant assumptions, key
inputs and methods used to calculate the estimate of the reported claims not yet paid and claims
incurred but not yet reported.



*  We tested the underlying data that served as the basis for the Company’s actuarial analysis, including
historical claims, to test the reasonableness of the inputs to the actuarial estimate.

*  With the assistance of our actuarial specialists, we developed an independent estimate of the self-
insurance reserves, including assessment of loss data and claim development factors, and compared
our estimate to management’s estimate. In addition, we performed the following:

- Evaluated the reasonableness of the methodologies used in management’s estimate based on
actuarial methods followed in the insurance industry associated with such liabilities.

- Evaluated the reasonableness of the assumptions used in management’s estimate by comparing
prior-year assumptions of expected development and ultimate loss to actuals incurred during the
current year to identify potential bias in the determination of these liabilities.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets — United States Vehicles — Refer to Notes 2 and 8 to the financial
statements

Critical Audit Matter Description

The Company reviews long-lived assets for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate
the carrying value of these assets may exceed their current fair values. Recoverability of assets to be held
and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to the estimated undiscounted
future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. Assets are grouped at the lowest level of
identifiable cash flows. If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated future cash flows, an
impairment charge is recognized for the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the
fair value of the assets. In the current year, the Company changed their fleet strategy for the United States
and Canadian vehicles, to accelerate certain fleet rotations and shorten the useful life of the associated
vehicles. As a result, the Company performed a recoverability test by comparing the sum of undiscounted
cash flows expected to result from the use and eventual disposition of the impacted vehicles, to their
carrying value and concluded, that for certain vehicles, the carrying value exceeded the sum of
undiscounted cash flows expected to result from the use and eventual disposition of those vehicles. For
purposes of the recoverability test, the vehicles were aggregated into asset groups based on make, model
and year of the vehicles. The test was performed as of November 30, 2024. The Company used a market
approach to determine the fair value of the impacted vehicles, utilizing prices for similar assets in active
markets (Level 2). During the year ended December 31, 2024, the Company recorded a non-cash
impairment charge.

Given the volume of vehicles in the United States and the significant assumptions made by management
to evaluate vehicles for impairment, we performed audit procedures to (1) evaluate whether
management appropriately identified events or changes in circumstances indicating that the carrying
amounts of vehicle assets may not be recoverable; (2) evaluate management's determination of asset
groups at the lowest level of identifiable cash flows; (3) evaluate management’s recoverability test by
comparing the sum of undiscounted cash flows expected to result from the use and eventual disposition
of the impacted vehicles to their carrying value and, when applicable, (4) evaluate the fair value estimates
for the impacted vehicles. Those procedures required a high degree of auditor judgment and an increased
extent of effort, including the need to involve our fair value specialists and other professionals in our firm
with expertise in long-lived asset impairment.



How the Critical Audit Matter Was Addressed in the Audit

Our audit procedures related to impairment of long-lived assets of United States vehicles included the
following, among others:

*  We tested the effectiveness of controls over (1) management’s identification of events or changes in
circumstances that indicate that the carrying amount of vehicles may not be recoverable, including
management’s review of forecasted future cash flows, and (2) management’s review of the
methodology in determining the fair value estimate of vehicles.

*  We evaluated whether management appropriately identified events or changes in circumstances that
indicated that the carrying amounts of vehicle assets may not be recoverable.

*  We evaluated management’s determination of asset groups at the lowest level of identifiable cash
flows.

*  We tested management’s recoverability test by comparing the sum of undiscounted cash flows
expected to result from the use and eventual disposition of the impacted vehicles to their carrying
value by performing the following:

- Tested the mathematical accuracy of management’s analysis.
- Compared relevant information to historical data.

- Assessed management’s assumptions used when determining the expected rental revenue,
operating expenses and residual values expected at the time of disposition of vehicles as part of
their recoverability test.

*  We tested the fair value estimates for the impacted vehicles.

*  With the assistance of our fair value specialists, we evaluated the reasonableness of the valuation
methodology applied and fair value determined for vehicles by testing the methodology applied and
measurable inputs used, and the mathematical accuracy of the calculation.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP
New York, New York
February 14, 2025

We have served as the Company's auditor since 1997.



Revenues

Expenses
Operating
Vehicle depreciation and lease charges, net
Selling, general and administrative
Vehicle interest, net
Non-vehicle related depreciation and amortization
Interest expense related to corporate debt, net:
Interest expense
Early extinguishment of debt
Long-lived asset impairment and other related charges
Restructuring and other related charges
Transaction-related costs, net
Other (income) expense, net
Total expenses

Income (loss) before income taxes
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes
Net income (loss)
Less: Net income (loss) attributable to non-controlling interests
Net income (loss) attributable to Avis Budget Group, Inc.

Eamings (loss) per share
Basic
Diluted

Avis Budget Group, Inc.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
{In millions, except per share data)

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Year Ended December 31,
2024 2023 2022
3 11,789 § 12,008 $ 11,994
6,014 5,675 5,285
2,976 1,739 828
1,352 1,408 1,348
941 736 402
237 216 225
358 296 250
19 5 —_
2,470 — —
37 1 19
3 5 8
9 3 7)
14,416 10,094 8,358
(2.627) 1,914 3,636
(810) 279 880
(1.817) 1,635 2,756
4 3 (8)
$ (1821) $ 1,632 $ 2,764
$ (51.23) $ 4257 § 58.41
$ (51.23) $ 4208 $ 57.16




Avis Budget Group, Inc.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(In millions)

Year Ended D 31,
2024 2023 2022
$ (1,817) § 1635 $ 2,756
4 3

Net income (loss)
Less: Net income (loss) attributable to non-controlling interests (8)
Net income (loss) attributable to Avis Budget Group, Inc. (1,821) 1,632 2,764

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax

Currency translation adjustments:
Currency translation adjustments, net of tax of $(19), $7 and $(11), respectively (122) 27 (46)
Cash flow hedges:
Net unrealized holding gains (losses), net of tax of $(5), $(2), and $(20), respectively 15 5 57
Reclassification of cash flow hedges to earnings, net of tax of $7, $5, and $(2), respectively (21) {13) 7
Minimum pension liability adjustment:
Pension and post-retirement benefits, net of tax of $(4), $6, and $(4), respectively 10 {18) 11
Reclassification of pension and post-retirement benefits to earnings, net of tax of $(1), $(1), and $(2). respectively 4 4 3
(114) 5 32
Total comprehensive i (loss) attributable to Avis get Group, Inc. $ (1,935) $ 1637 $ 2,796

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Avis Budget Group, Inc.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
{in millions, except par value)

As of December 31,
2024 2023

Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents § 534§ 555

Recsivables (net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $36 and $87, respectively) 838 900

Other current assets 662 684
Total current assets 2,034 2,139
Property and equipment, net 697 719
Operating lease right-of-use assets 3,057 2,654
Deferred income taxes 1,786 1.868
Goodwill 1,071 1,008
Other intangibles, net 601 670
Other non-current assets 422 441
Total assets exclusive of assets under vehicle programs 9,668 9,580
Assets under vehicle programs:

Program cash 80 85

Vehicles, net 17,619 21,240

Receivables from vehicle manufacturers and other 386 443

Investment In Avis Budget Rental Car Funding (AESOP) LLC—related party 1,308 1,211

19,373 22,979

Total assets $ 29,041 $ 32,569
Liabilities and stockholdars’ equity
Current lial .3

Accounts payable and other curvent liabilities 3 2,700 $ 2,627

Short-term debt and current portion of long-term debt 20 32
Total current liabikties 2,720 2,659
Long-term debt 5373 4,791
Long-term operating lease Habilities 2,484 217
Other non-current liabilties 470 528
Total liabilities exclusive of kabikities under vehicle programs 11,047 10.095
Lisbilities under vehicle programs:

Debt 3,453 3,496

Debt due to Avis Budget Rental Car Funding (AESOP) LLC—related party 14,083 15,441

Deferred income taxes 2,442 3,418

Gther 333 462

20,311 22,817

Commitments and contingencies (Note 15)
Stockholders’ equity:

Preferred stock, $0.01 par value—authorized 10 shares; none issued and outstanding, in each period - -

Common stock, $0.01 par value—authorized 250 shares; issued 137 shares, in each period 1 1

Additional paid-in capital 6.620 6,634

Retained samings 2,029 3,854

Accumulated other comprehensive loss {210) (96)

Treasury stock, at cost—102 shares, In each period {10.767) {10,742)
Stockholders’ equity atiributable to Avis Budget Group, Inc. (2,327) (349)

Non-contralling interests 10 [
Total stockholders’ equity (2.317) (343)
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 29,041 32,569

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Avis Budget Group, Inc.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
{In millions)

Year Ended December 31,
2024 2023 2022
Operating activities
Net income (loss) $ {(1,817) $ 1,635 § 2,756
Adjustments to reconcile net income {loss) to net cash provided by operating activities:
Vehicle depreciation 2,658 2,228 1,709
Amortization of right-of-use assets 1,114 1,006 877
{Gain) loss on sale of vehicles, net 167 {656) (1,019)
Vehicle related reserves 436 348 234
Non-vehicle related depreciation and amortization 237 218 225
Deferred income taxes (805) 191 682
Stock-based compensation 19 30 25
Amortization of debt financing fees 46 40 34
Early extinguishment of debt costs 21 5 —
Long-lived asset impairment and other related charges 2470 — —
Net change in assets and liabilities:
Receivables 51 (43) {97)
Income taxes 45 (81) 8
Accounts payable and other current liabilities 63 (72} 217
Operating lease liabilities {1,007} {1,002) {879)
Cther, net (50) (17} {63)
Net cash provided by operating activities 3,518 3,828 4,707
Investing activities
Property and equipment additions (202) (273) (246)
Proceeds received on asset sales 3 3 2
Net assets acquired (net of cash acquired) 3) (85) 3)
Other, net 12 ] (33)
Net cash used in i ing activities of vehicle prog {190) (329) (280)
Veehicle programs:
Investment in vehicles (9.860) (15,185) (10,491)
Proceeds received on disposition of vehicles 7,394 8403 6,606
Investment in debt securities of Avis Budget Rental Car Funding (AESOP) LLC —related party (798) (541) {439)
Proceeds from debt securities of Avis Budget Rental Car Funding (AESOP) LLC —related party 701 308 305
(2,563) (7,017) (4,019)
Net cash used in investing activities (2,753) (7,346) (4,299)
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Financing activities

Proceeds from long-term borrowings
P on long-t i

Net change in short-term borrowings
Debt financing fees

Repurchases of comman stock
Dividends paid
s X

fromr

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

g
Net cash p by {used) in

Vehicle programs:
Proceeds from borrawings
Payments on borrowings
Debt financing fees

Net cash provided by (used in)

activities

of vehicie progl

Avis Budget Group, inc.

{In millions)

Effect of changes in exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents, program and restricted cash

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash

and

Cash and cash equivalents, program and restricted cash, beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents, program and restricted cash, end of period

Supplemental disclosure
interest payments
Income tax payments, net

cash

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Year Ended December 31,
2024 2023 2022

1,568 $ 936 $ 728

(939) (818) (24)

- — (1)

(28) (22) @)

(70) (@51) (3,329)

— (355) —

_ — 40

532 {1.210) (2,592)

21,335 23,980 17,419
(22,604) (19,220) (15,160)

(44) 44) 27)

(1,313) 4,716 2,232

{781) 3,506 (360)
(31) 14 (32)

(47) 2 16

644 642 626

597 § 644 § 642

$ 1273 § 988 $ 543
$ 50 § 169 § 192
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Balance at January 1, 2022

Gomprahensiva incorme:

Netncome

Qther comprehensive ncome

Total comprehensive income
‘Cantnbutiona from non-controling interests
Net activity refated to restncted stock unils
Repurchases of common stock

Balance at Decomber 31, 2022
Comprehansive income:

Net income

Other comprehensiva income

Tatal comprehensive income

Nt activit related to resiricted stock units
Repurchases of common stock
Divedends paid (§10.00 per shara)

Balance 3t December 31, 2023

Comprshensive income:

Nt income (foss)

Other camprehensive ncome (loss)

‘Total comprahensive incoms (loss}

Nt activity related to restricted stock units
Repurchases of comman stock *

Balance at December 31, 2024

1 Amount includes excise taxes due under the Inflation Reduction Act of 2022.

Avis Budget Group, Inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

{In millions)

Common Stock Accumulated Other Treasury Stack Stockholders® Equity N
Income to Avis Budget i
Shares Amount Capital (Accumulated Deficit) Shares Amount Group, Inc. Wnterests Total Stockhoiders’ Equity
Wy ¥ T 5678 RC) [EE) B2 3 [ w20 § T3 (]
- . - 2784 - - - 2784 @ 2756
— . - - 32 - - 32 ~ 2
2784 32 2,798 ®) 2,788
- - 2 - - - - % - 2
— - [ - - 03 @ @) (38)
= — - — - 16.7) (3.267) (3.267) (3.26T)
371§ L 2 8,868 2579 (101) 78 $ (0.848) § @03} § s (700)
- - - 1632 - - - 1632 3 1635
- - - — 5 - - 5 — 5
1832 5 1837 3 1840
- - @2) @ - 03 3 (<01 @1
- - - - “a) (®87) (897) (897}
— — = (a55) — - - (ass) (355)
171§ 18 6834 3854 (96) ols) § (10742 3 @9 s ) (343)
- — - (821 - - - 821 4 817
= - . — (14) - - (114) — (114
G T4y 838 T GESH
- = 14 @ - 0z 2 3 3
= — — — - (0.6) (a8} “8) (46)
1371 § 13 6820 2.029 {210} (1020) (10.787) § 2327y $ 10 3 {2,317}

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Basis of Presentation

Summary,_of Significant Accounting Policies

Leases

Earnings Per Share

Restructuring and Other Related Charges

intangible Assets

Vehicle Rental Activities

Income Taxes

Other Current Assets

Property and Equipment, net

Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities
Long-term Corporate Debt and Borrowing Arrangements
Debt Under Vehicle Programs and Borrowing Arrangements
Commitments and Confingencies

Stockholders' Equity

Related Party Transactions

Stock-Based Compensation

Employee Benefit Plans

Einancial Instruments
Segment Information

Subsequent Events
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Avis Budget Group, Inc.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unless otherwise noted, all dollar amounts are in millions, except per share amounts)

Basis of Presentation

Avis Budget Group, inc. provides mobility solutions to businesses and consumers worldwide. The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts and transactions of Avis Budget
Group, Inc. and its subsidiaries, as well as entities in which Avis Budget Group, Inc. directly or indirectly has a controfting financial interest (collectively, “we,” “our,” “us,” or the “Company”).

We operate the following reportable business segments:

. Americas - consisting primarily of (i) vehicle rental operations in North America, South America, Central America and the Caribbean, (i) car sharing operations in certain of these markets, and (iii)
licensees in the areas in which we do nat operate directly.

. International - consisting primarily of (i) vehicle rental operations in Europe, the Middle East, Africa, Asia and Australasia, (il) car sharing operations in certain of these markets, and (jii} licensees in
the areas in which we do not aperate directly.

We have completed the business acquisitions discussed in Note 6 — Acquisitions to these Cor
accompanying Consolidated Financial ts fram the dates of acquisition.

d Financial ts. The operating results of the acquired businesses are included in the

We present separately the financial data of our vehicle programs. These programs are distinct from our other activities since the assets under vehicle programs are generally funded through the issuance of
debt that is collateralized by such assets. The income generated by these assets is used, in part, to repay the principal and interest associated with the debt, Cash inflows and outflows relating to the
acquisition of such assets and the principal debt repayment or financing of such assets are classified as activities of our vehicle programs. We believe it is appropriate to segregate the financial data of our
vehicle programs because, ultimately, the source of repayment of such debt is the realization of such assets.

2, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

The Consolidated Financial St have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP") and include the accounts of our Company
and all entities in which we have a direct or indirect controlling financial interest and variable interest entities for which we have determined we are the primary beneficiary. We consolidate joint venture
activities when we have a controlling interest and record non-controlling interests within stockholders’ equity and the statement of comprehensive income equal to the percentage of ownership interest
retained in such entities by the respective non-controlling party. Intercompany transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estil and A

The use of estimates and assumptions as determined by management is required in the preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with GAAP. These estimates are based on
management's evaluation of historical trends and other information available when the Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared and may affect the amounts reported and related disclosures. Actual
results coutd differ from those estimates.

Revenue Recoghnition
We derive revenues primarily by providing vehicle rentafs and other related products and mobility services to commercial and leisure customers, as well as through licensing of our rental brands. Other related

praducts and mobility services include sales of collision and loss damage waivers, under which we agree to relieve a customer from financial responsibility arising from vehicle damage incurred during the
rental; additional/supplemental liability insurance or personal accident/effects insurance products which provide
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customers with additional protections for personal or third-party losses incurred; products for driving convenience such as fuel service options, roadside assistance services, electronic toll collection services,
access to satellite radio, mobile WiFi devices, GPS navigation and child safety seat rentals; and rentals of other supplemental items including automobile towing equipment and other moving accessories and
supplies. We also receive payment from customers for certain operating expenses that we incur, including airport concession fees that are paid by us in exchange for the right to operate at airports and other
locations, as well as vehicie licensing fees. In addition, we collect membership fees in connection with our car sharing business.

We combine alt lease and non-lease components of our vehicle rental contracts for which the timing and pattemn of transfer are the same and the lease component meets the classification of an operating
lease. Vehicle rentals and other related products and mobility services are recognized evenly over the period of rental, which is on average approximately five days (See Note 3 - Leases).

Licensing revenues principally consist of royalties paid by our licensees and are recorded as the licensees’ revenues are earned (over the rental period). We renew license agreements in the normal course of
business and occasionally terminate, purchase or sell license agreements. In connection with angoing fees that we receive from our licensees pursuant to license agreements, we are required to provide
certain services, such as training, marketing and the operation of reservation systems.

We exclude from the measurement of our transaction price any tax assessed by a governmental authority that is both imposed on and concurrent with a specific producing trar ion and
from a customer. As a result, revenue is recorded net of such taxes collected. Revenues and expenses associated with fuel, airport concessions and vehicle licensing are recorded on a gross basis within
revenues and operating expenses. Membership fees related to our car sharing business are generally nonrefundable, are deferred and recognized ratably over the period of membership.

Revenues are recognized under Leases (Topic 842) with the exception of royalty fee revenue derived from our licensees and revenue related to our customer loyalty program, which were $246 million, $187
million, and $165 million for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

The following table presents our revenues disaggregated by geography:
Year Ended December 31,

2024 2023 2022
Americas $ 9111 § 9347 § 9,474
Europe, Middle East and Africa 2,045 2,014 1,927
Asia and Australasia 633 647 593
Total revenues $ 11,789 § 12,008 $ 11,994

The following table presents our revenues disaggregated by brand:
Year Ended December 31,

2024 2023 2022
Avis $ 6,775 $ 86,779 $ 6,519
Budget 4,271 4,478 4,701
Other® 743 751 774
Total revenues $ 11,789 $ 12,008 $ 11,894

@ Other includes Zipcar and other operating brands.
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Deferred Revenue

We record deferred revenues when cash payments are received in advance of satisfying our performance obfigations, inciuding amounts that are refundable. In addition, certain customers earn loyalty points
on rentals, for which we defer a portion of our rental revenues generally equivalent to the estimated retail value of points expected to be redeemed. We estimate points that will never be redeemed based
upon actual redemption and expiration patterns. Loyalty points generally expire five years from when they were earned or after 12 months of member inactivity. Future changes to expiration assumptions or
expiration policy, or to program rules, may result in changes to deferred revenue as well as recognized revenues from the program.

The following table presents changes in deferred revenue associated with our customer loyalty program:
Year Ended December 31,

2024 2023
Balance, January 1 $ 67 $ &1
Revenue deferred 61 58
Revenue recognized (78) (52)
Balance, December 31 ® [ 50 $ 67
@ At December 31, 2024 and 2023, $27 million and $20 million was included in accounts. payable and other current liabilities, respectively, and $23 million and $47 million in other it liabilities, respecth Ne t amounts are expected to be

recognized as revenue within two to three years.
Currency Translation

Assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated at the rate of exchange in effect on the balance sheet date; income and expenses are translated at the prevailing monthiy average rate of exchange.
The refated translation adjustments are reflected in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) in the stockholders’ equity section of the Consolidated Balance Sheets and in the Consalidated
Statements of Comprehensive Income (See Note 16 — Stockholders' Equity). We have designated our euro-denominated Notes as a hedge of our investment in euro-denominated foreign operations and,
accordingly, record the effective portion of gains or losses on this net investment hedge in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) as part of currency translation adjustments.

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Program Cash and Restricted Cash

We consider highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Program cash primarily represents amounts specifically designated to purchase
assets under vehicle programs and/or to repay the related debt, as such we consider it a restricted cash equivalent. The following table provides a detail of cash and cash equivalents, program and restricted
cash reported within the Consolidated Balance Sheets to the amounts shown in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows:

As of D ber 31,

2024 2023
Cash and cash equivalents $ 534 § 555
Program cash 60 85
Restricted cash @ 3 4
Total cash and cash equivalents, program and restricted cash $ 597 $ 644

@ Included within other current assets.
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Property and Equipment

Property and equipment (including leasehold improvements) are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation (non-vehicle related) is computed utilizing the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the term of the lease or the estimated useful lives of the improvements. Useful lives
are as foliows:

Buildings 30 years
Furniture, fixtures & equipment 3to 10 years
Capitalized software 3to 7 years
Buses and support vehicies 4 t0 15 years

We capitalize the costs of software developed for internal use when the preliminary project stage is completed and management {i) commits to funding the project and (ii) believes it is probable that the project
wili be completed and the software will be used to perform the function intended. The software developed or abtained for internal use is amortized on a straight-line basis commencing when such software is

ready for its intended use. The net carrying value of soft ped or ined for internal use was $126 million and $143 million as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

dwill and Other gible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess, if any, of the fair value of the consideration transferred by the acquirer and the fair value of any non-controlling interest remaining in the acquiree, if any, over the fair values of
the identifiable net assets acquired. We do not amortize goodwill, but assess it for impairment at least annually and whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts of their
respective reporting units exceed their fair values. We perform our annual impairment assessment in the fourth quarter of each year at the reporting unit level. We assess goodwill for such impairment by
comparing the carrying value of each reporting unit to its fair value using the present value of expected future cash flows. When appropriate, comparative market multiples and other factors are used to
corroborate the discounted cash flow resuits.

Other intangible assets, primarily trademarks, with indefinite fives are not amortized but are evaluated annually for impairment and whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of this asset may exceed its fair value. If the carrying value of an other intangible asset exceeds its fair value, an impairment loss is recognized in an amount equal to that excess. Other intangible
assets with finite lives are amortized over their estimated useful lives and are evaluated each reporting period to determine if circumstances warrant a revision to these lives.

During our annual impairment assessment performed as of October 1, 2024, we determined that the carrying value of our Zipcar trademark, which is an unamortized intangible asset included within our
Americas reportable segment, exceeded its fair value. We determined the fair value of the Zipcar trademark using the relief-from-royalty method (Level 3), which is a form of the income approach. This
method applies a royalty rate to projected income to quantify the benefit of owning the intangible asset rather than paying a royalty for use of the asset. The significant assumptions used in the assessment of
the fair value of the trademark included future revenues, a discount rate and a royalty rate. As a result, we recognized an impairment of $28 million within long-lived asset impairment and other related
charges in the Consolidated Statement of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2024, There was no impairment to goodwill for the year ended December 31, 2024 and there were no impairments to
goodwill or other intangible assets during the years ended December 31, 2023 or 2022.
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Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

We review long-lived assets for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value of these assets may exceed their current fair values. Recoverability of assets to be held and
used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset fo the estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. Assets are grouped at the lowest level of

identifiable cash flows. If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated future cash flows, an impairment charge is recognized for the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the
fair value of the assets.

During the fourth quarter of 2024, we changed our fleet strategy, specific to United States and Canadian rental car vehicles, to accelerate certain fleet rotations in order to decrease the age of our fleet for
competitive reasons, and accordingly, we shortened the useful life associated with such vehicles. We considered this change in strategy fo be a triggering event that indicated the carrying amount of these
assets may not be recoverable, As a result, we performed a recoverability test by comparing the sum of undiscounted cash flows expected to result from the use and eventual disposition of the impacted
vehicles to their carrying value and concluded, that for certain vehicles, the carrying value exceeded the sum of undiscounted cash flows expected to result from the use and eventuai disposition of those
vehicles. For purposes of the recoverability test, the vehicles were aggregated into asset groups based on make, model and year of the vehicles. The test was performed as of November 30, 2024, and we
used a market approach to determine the value of the impacted vehicles, utilizing prices for similar assets in active markets (Level 2). During the year ended December 31, 2024, we recorded a $2.3 billion
non-cash impairment within long-lived asset impairment and other related charges in the Consolidated Statement of Operations within our Americas reportable segment. There were no impairments to long~
lived assets during the years ended December 31, 2023 or 2022. In the future, if events or market conditions affect the estimated fair value to the extent that a long-lived asset is impaired, we will adjust the
carrying vaiue of these long-lived assets in the period in which the impairment occurs.

Vehicles

Viehicles are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. The initial cost of the vehicles is recorded net of incentives and allowances from manufacturers. We acquire a portion of our rental vehicles
pursuant to repurchase and guaranteed depreciation programs established by automobile manufacturers. Under these programs, the manufacturers agree to repurchase vehicles at a specified price and
date, or guarantee the depreciation rate for a specified period of time, subject to certain eligibility criteria (such as car condition and mileage requirements). We depreciate vehicles such that the net book
value on the date of return to the manufacturers is intended to equal the contractual guaranteed residual values, thereby minimizing any gain or [0ss.

Rental vehicles acquired outside of manufacturer repurchase and guaranteed depreciation programs are depreciated based upon their estimated residual values at their expected dates of disposition, after
giving effect to anticipated conditions in the used car market. Any adjustments to depreciation are made prospectively.

The estimation of residuai values requires us to make assumptions regarding the age and miteage of the car at the time of disposal, as well as expected used vehicle auction market conditions. We regufarly
evaluate estimated residual values and adjust depreciation rates as appropriate. Differences between actual residual values and those estimated result in a gain or loss on disposal and are recorded as part
of vehicle depreciation at the time of sale. Vehicle-related interest expense amounts are net of vehicle-related interest income of $12 million, $34 million, and $1 million for 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

We classify vehicles as held for sale in the period in which they are available for immediate sale in their present condition and the sale is probable. Vehicles held for sale are separately presented at the lower
of the carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell in our Consalidated Balance Sheets and are no longer depreciated. We reassess their fair value each reporting period until disposed.

As of December 31, 2024, in connection with the change to our fleet strategy described above, we wrote down the carrying value of certain vehicles held for sale within our Americas reportable segment to
fair value (Level 2). For the year ended December 31, 2024, we recorded a charge of $180 million, which is included within long-lived asset impairment and other related charges in the Consolidated
Statement of Operations. We expect to complete the sale of these vehicles primarily through our standard disposition
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channels during the first quarter of 2025. There were no similar charges during the years ended December 31, 2023 or 2022. To the extent there are further changes in market conditions or the performance
of our fong-lived assets, there is a possibility that we could incur additional related costs in the future.

Advertising Expenses

Advertising and digital marketing costs are generally expensed in the period incurred and are recorded within seiling, general and administrative expenses in our Consolidated Statements of Operations.
During 2024, 2023 and 2022, advertising costs were $77 million, $86 million, and $64 million, respectively. In addition, during 2024, 2023 and 2022, digital marketing costs were $90 milfion, $86 mitiion, and
$71 million, respectively.

Taxes

We account for income taxes under the asset and liability method, which requires the recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of events that have been
included in the financial statements. Under this method, deferred tax assets and fiabilities are determined based on the differences between the financial statement and tax basis of assets and liabilities using
enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which the differences are expected to reverse. The effect of a change in tax rates on deferred tax assets and liabilities is recognized in income in the period that
includes the enactment date. As a result of the provisions of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act, we account for Global Intangible Low-Taxed Income (“GILTY") as a component of current period income tax expense in
the year incurred.

Wa record net deferred tax assets to the extent we believe that it is more likely than not that these assets will be realized. In making such determination, we consider all available positive and negative
evidence, including scheduled reversals of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxabie income, tax planning strategies and recent results of operations, In the event we were to determine that we would be
able to realize the deferred income tax assets in the future in excess of their net recorded amount, we would adjust the valuation allowance, which would reduce the provision for income taxes.

Fair Value Measurements

We measure the fair value of assets and liabilities and disclose the source for such fair value measurements. Financial assets and liabilities are classified as follows: Level 1, which refers to assets and
liabilities valued using quoted prices from active markets for identical assets or liabilities; Level 2, which refers to assets and liabilities for which significant other observable market inputs are readily available;
and Level 3, which are valued based on significant unobservable inputs.

The fair value of our financial instruments is generally determined by reference to market values resulting from trading on a national securities exchange or in an over-the-counter market (Level 1 inputs). In
some cases where quoted market prices are not available, prices are derived by considering the yield of the benchmark security that was issued to initially price the instruments and adjusting this rate by the
credit spread that market participants would demand for the instruments as of the measurement date (Level 2 inputs). In situations where long-term borrowings are part of a conduit facility backed by short-
term floating rate debt, we have determined that its carrying value approximates the fair value of this debt (Level 2 inputs). The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, available-for-sale securities,
receivables, program cash, and accounts payable and other current liabilities approximate fair value due to the short-term maturities of these assets and liabilities.

Our derivative assets and liabilities consist principally of currency exchange contracts, interest rate swaps, interest rate caps and commodity contracts, and are carried at fair value based on significant
observable inputs (Level 2 inputs). Derivatives entered into by us are typically executed over-the-counter and are valued using internal valuation techniques, as no quoted market prices exist for such
instruments. The valuation technique and inputs depend on the type of derivative and the nature of the underlying exposure. We principally use discounted cash flows to value these instruments. These
modets take inta account a variety of factors including, where applicable, maturity, currency exchange rates, our interest rate yield curves and counterparties, credit curves, counterparty creditworthiness and
commodity prices. These factors are applied on a consistent basis and are based upon observabie inputs where available.
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Derivative Instruments

Derivative instruments are used as part of our overall strategy fo manage exposure to market risks associated with fluctuations in currency exchange rates, interest rates and fuel costs. As a matter of policy,
derivatives are not used for trading or speculative purposes.

All derivatives are recorded at fair value either as assets or liabilities. Changes in fair value of derivatives not designated as hedging instruments are recognized currently in earnings within the same line item
as the hedged item. The changes in fair value of a derivative that is designated as either a cash flow or net investment hedge is recorded as a component of accumutated other comprehensive income (loss)
and reclassified into earings in the same period or periods during which the hedged transaction affects earnings and is presented in the same income statement line item as the earnings effect of the hedged
item. Amounts related to our derivative instruments are recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows consistent with the nature of the hedged item (principally operating activities).

Currency Transactions

Currency gains and losses resulting from foreign currency transactions are generally included in operating expenses within the Consolidated Statements of Operations; however, the net gain or loss of
currency transactions on intercompany loans and the unrealized gain or loss on intercompany {oan hedges are included within interest expense related to corporate debt, net.

Self-Insurance Reserves

The Consolidated Balance Sheets include $451 million and $397 million of liabilities associated with retained risks of liability to third parties as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. Such liabilities
relate primarily to public liability and third-party property damage claims, as well as claims arising from the sale of ancillary insurance products including, but not limited to, supplemental liability, personal
effects protection and personal accident insurance. These obligations rep 1t an estimate for both reported claims not yet paid and claims incurred but not yet reported. The estimated reserve requirements
for such claims are recorded on an undiscounted basis utilizing actuarial methodologies and various assumptions which include, but are not limited to, our historical loss experience and projected loss
development factors. The required liability is also subject to adjustment in the future based upon changes in claims experience, including changes in the number of incidents for which we are ultimately liable
and changes in the cost per incident. For the year ended December 31, 2024, we recorded an unprecedented adjustment to our self-insurance reserves for allocated loss adjustment expense. These
amounts are included within accounts payable and other current liabilities and other non-current fiabilities.

The Consolidated Batance Sheets also include liabilities of $50 million and $49 million as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively, refated to workers' compensation, heaith and welfare and other
employee benefit programs. The liabilities represent an estimate for both reported claims not yet paid and claims incurred but not yet reported, utilizing actuarial methodologies similar to those described
above. These amounts are included within accounts payable and other current liabilities and other non-current liabilities.

Stock-Based Compensation

Stock-based compensation cost is measured at the grant date, based on the fair value of the award, and is recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the vesting period. Our policy is to record
compensation expense for stock options, and restricted stock units that are time- and performance-based, for the portion of the award that vests. Compensation expense related to market-based restricted
stock units is recognized provided that the requisite service is rendered, regardless of when, if ever, the market condition is satisfied. We estimate the fair value of restricted stock units using the market price
of our common stock on the date of grant. We estimate the fair value of stock-based and cash unit awards containing a market condition using a Monte Carlo simutation model. Key inputs and assumptions
used in the Monte Carlo simulation model include the stock price of the award on the grant date, the expected term, the risk-free interest rate over the expected term, the expected annual dividend yield and
the expected stock price volatility. The expected volatility is based on a combination of the historical and implied volatility of our publicly traded, near-the-money stock options, and the valuation period is
based on the vesting period of the awards. The risk-free interest rate is derived from the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the
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time of grant and, since we do not currently pay or plan to pay a recurring dividend on our common stock, the expected dividend yield was zero.
Business Combinations

We use the acquisition method of accounting for business combinations, which requires that the assets acquired and liabilities assumed be recorded at their respective fair values at the date of acquisition.
Assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination that arise from contingencies are recognized if fair vatue can be reasonably estimated at the acquisition date. The excess, if any, of (i) the
fair value of the consideration transferred by the acquirer and the fair value of any non-controlling interest remaining in the acquiree, over (ii) the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded
as goodwill, Gains and losses on the re-acquisition of ficense agreements are recorded in the Consolidated Statements of Operations within transaction-related costs, net, upon completion of the respective
acquisition. Costs incurred to effect a business combination are expensed as incurred, except for the cost to issue debt related to the acquisition,

We record contingent consideration resulting from a business combination at its fair value on the acquisition date. The fair value of the contingent consideration is generally estimated by utilizing a Monte
Carlo simulation technique, based on a range of possible future results (Level 3). Any changes in contingent consideration are recorded in transaction-related costs, net.

Transaction-related Costs, net

Transaction-related costs, net are classified separately in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. These costs are comprised of expenses primarily related to acquisition-related activities such as due-
diligence and other advisory costs, expenses related to the integration of the acquiree’s operations with our own operations, including the imp ion of best practi and process improvements, non-
cash gains and losses related to re-acquired rights, expenses related to pre-acquisition contingencies and contingent consideration related to acquisitions.

Investments

We account for investments for which we have the ability to exercise significant influence, but do not have a controlling interest, using the equity method of accounting and record our proportional share of net
income or loss within operating expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. We assess equity method investments for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amounts of such investments may not be recoverable. Any difference between the carrying value of the equity method investment and its estimated fair value is recognized as an impairment charge if

the Ioss in value is deemed other than temporary. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, we had investments with a carrying value of $100 million and $93 million, respectively, recorded within other non-current
assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Aggregate realized gains and losses on equity method investments and dividend income are recorded within operating expenses on the Consolidated Statements of Operations. During 2024, 2023 and 2022,
we recorded net gains fram our equity method investments, including dividend income of $23 miilion, $12 million, and $12 million, respectively. See Note 17 — Related Party Transactions for our equity
method investment in our former subsidiary.

Divestitures

We classify long-lived assets and liabilities to be disposed of as held for sale in the period in which they are available for immediate sale in their present condition and the sale is probable and expected to be
completed within one year, We initially measure assets and liabilities held for sale at the lower of their carrying value or fair value less costs to sell, and we reassess their fair value each reporting pericd until
disposed. When the divestiture represents a sirategic shift that has, or will have, a major effect on our operations and financial results, the disposal is presented as a discontinued operation.
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in February 2022, we completed the sale of our operations in the United States Virgin Islands for $13 million, for the right to operate the Avis brand. During the year ended December 31, 2022, we recorded a
gain of $2 million within restructuring and other related charges. The United States Virgin islands operations were reported within our Americas reportable segment.

In March 2022, we completed the sale of our operations in the Netherlands for $15 million, for the right to operate the Avis and Budget brands. During the year ended December 31, 2022, we recorded a loss
of $7 million, net of impact of foreign currency adjustments, within restructuring and other refated charges. The Netherlands operations were reported within our Interationat reportable segment.

Variable interest Entity (“VIE")

We review our investments to determine if they are VIEs. A VIE is an entity in which either (i) the equity investors as a group lack the power through voting or similar rights to direct the activities of such entity
that most significantly impact such entity's economic performance or (i) the equity investment at risk is insufficient to finance that entity's activities without additional subordinated financial support. Entities
that are determined to be VIEs are consolidated if we are the primary beneficiary of the entity. The primary beneficiary possesses the power to direct the activities of the VIE that most significantly impact its
economic performance and has the obligation to absorb losses or the right to receive benefits from the VIE that are significant to it. We will reconsider our original assessment of a VIE upon the occurrence of
certain events such as contributions and redemptions, either by us, or third parties, or amendments to an entity’s governing documents. On an ongoing basis, we reconsider whether we are deemed to be a
VIE's primary beneficiary. See Note 17 ~ Related Party Transactions for our VIE investment in our former subsidiary.

N¢ le Equity

We classify investments without readily determinable fair values that are not accounted for under the equity method as nonmarketable equity securities. The accounting guidance requires nonmarketabie
equity securities to be recorded at cost and adjusted to fair value at each reporting period. We apply the measurement alternative, which ailows these investments to be recorded at cost, less impairment, if
any, and subsequently adjust for abservable price changes of identical or simitar investments of the same issuer. Any changes in value are recorded within operating expenses. As of December 31, 2024 and
2023, our nonmarketable equity securities within non-current assets on our Consolidated Balance Sheets were not material and no material adjustments were made to the carrying vajues of these securities
during the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 or 2022,

Reclassification

We reclassified certain items within operating activities on the Consclidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 to conform to the current year presentation. These
rectassifications had no impact on reported net cash provided by operating activities.

A ion of New A ting F t:

Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures

On January 1, 2024, as the result of a new accounting pronouncement, we adopted ASU 2023-07, “Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures,” which amends Topic 280 primarily through enhanced
disclosures about significant segment expenses. The adoption of this accounting pronouncement has resulted in incremental disclosures within the notes to our Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures

On January 1, 2025, as the result of a new accounting pronouncement, we adopted ASU 2023-09, “Improvements to income Tax Disclosures,” which amends Topic 740 primarily through enhanced income
tax disclosures, improving transparency into the factors affecting income tax expense. We expect to include certain additional income tax disclosures in the notes to our Consclidated Financial its as
a result of the adoption of this accounting pronouncement.

Disaggregation of Income Statement Expenses

In November 2024, the FASB issued ASU 2024-03, “Disaggregation of Income Statement Expenses,” which amends Topic 220 primarily through requiring disclosures, in the notes fo financial statements,
about certain costs and expenses. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2026 and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2027, with eary adoption permitted
on a prospective or retrospective basis. ASU 2024-03 becomes effective for us on January 1, 2027. We are currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of this accounting pronouncement on our
Consolidated Financiai Statements.

Reference Rate Reform

In January 2021, the FASB issued ASU 2021-01, “Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848),” which amends ASU 2020-04 and clarifies the scope and guidance of Topic 848 to allow derivatives impacted by the
reference rate reform to qualify for certain opti dients and ptions for contract modifications and hedge accounting. The guidance is optional and is effective for a limited period of time. in
December 2022, the FASB also issued ASU 2022-06, "Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848): Deferral of the Sunset Date of Topic 848," to defer the sunset date of ASC 848 from December 31, 2022 to
December 31, 2024. As of December 31, 2024, this guidance had no impact on our Consolidated Financial its.

3. Leases

Lessor

The following table presents our lease revenues disaggregated by geography:
Year Ended December 31,

2024 2023 2022
Americas $ 8970 §$ 9,261 § 9,401
Europe, Middle East and Africa 1,958 1,932 1,852
Asia and Australasia 615 628 576
Total lease revenues $ 11,543 § 11821 §$ 11,829

The following table presents our lease revenues disaggregated by brand:
Year Ended December 31,

2024 2023 2022
Avis $ 6,609 $ 6,660 $ 6,420
Budget 4,220 4,425 4,650
Other @ 714 736 759
Total lease revenues $ 11,543 % 11,821 § 11,829

& Other includes Zipcar and other operating brands.
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We have operating and finance leases for rental locations, corporate offices, vehicle rental fleet and equipment. Many of our operating leases for rental focations contain concession agreements with various
airport authorities that allow us to conduct our vehicle rental operations on site. In general, concessian fees for airport locations are based on a percentage of total commissionable revenue as defined by
each airport authority, some of which are subject to minimum annual guaranteed amounts. Concession fees other than minimum annual guaranteed amounts are not included in the measurement of operating
lease right of use (‘ROU”) assets and operating |ease liabilities and are recorded as variable lease expense as incurred. Our operating leases for rental locations often also require us to pay or reimburse

operating expenses.

We lease a portion of our vehicles under operating leases. As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, we have guaranteed up to $30 million and $52 million, respectively, of residual values for these vehicles at the
end of their respective lease terms. We believe that, based an current market conditions, the net proceeds from the sale of these vehicles at the end of their lease terms will equal or exceed their net book
values and therefore have not recorded a liability refated to guaranteed residual values.

The components of lease expense are as foilows:
Year Ended December 31,
2024 2023 2022

Property leases

Operating lease expense $ 935 $ 860 $ 703
Variable lease expense 343 402 520
Sublease income 6) (6) (5}
Total property lease expense ! $ 1272 § 1256 § 1,218
Vehicle leases
Finance lease expense:
Amortization of ROU assets $ 27§ 28 $ 29
Interest on lease liabilities © 7 6 3
Operating lease expense © 151 167 138
Total vehicle lease expense $ 185 § 201§ 170

@ primarily included in operating expenses and for the year ended Decamber 31, 2022, includes $(9) million of minimum annual guaranteed rent in excess of concession fees as defined in our rental concession agreements.
® Included in vehicie depreciation and lease charges, net.
© Included in vehicle interest, net.

F-23




ntent

Supplemental balance sheet information related to leases is as follows:

As of December 31,
2024 2023
Property leases
Operating lease ROU assets $ 3,057 § 2,654
Short-term operating lease liabilities © $ 628 $ 576
Long-term operating lease liabilities 2,484 2,117
Operating lease liabilities $ 3112 $ 2,693
Weighted average remaining lease term 8.0 years 8.1 years
Weighted average discount rate 4.98% 4.83%
Vehicle leases
Finance
Finance lease ROU assets, gross $ 228 $ 265
Accumufated amortization (43) (41)
Finance lease ROU assets, net ® $ 185 § 224
Short-term vehicle finance lease fiabilities $ 75 8 59
Long-term vehicle finance lease liabifities 68 113
Vehicle finance lease liabilities © $ 143 % 172
Weighted average remaining lease term 2.1 years 2.8 years
Weighted average discount rate 5.07% 3.68%
Operating
Vehicle operating lease ROU assets @ $ 73 % 117
Short-term vehicle operating lease liabilities $ 58 §$ 83
Long-term vehicle operating lease liabilities 15 36
Vehicle operating lease liabilities © $ 73§ 119
Weighted average remaining lease term 1.3 years 1.5 years
Weighted average discount rate 5.20% 5.13%

@ |ncluded in accounts payable and other current kabiiities.

®  Included in vehicles, net within assets under vehicle programs.

© Included in debt within Kabilities under vehicle programs.

@ Included n from vehicle and other within assets under vehicle programs.
®  Included in other within fiabilities under vehicte programs.
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Supplemental cash flow information related to leases is as follows:

Cash payments for lease liabilities within operating activities:
Property operating leases

Vehicle finance leases

Vehicle operating leases
Cash payments for lease liabilities within financing activities:

Vehicle finance leases

Non-cash activities - increase in ROU assets in exchange for lease liabilities:
Property operating leases

Vehicle finance leases

Vehicle operating leases

Maturities of lease liabilities as of December 31, 2024 are as follows:

Within 1 year

Between 1 and 2 years
Between 2 and 3 years
Between 3 and 4 years
Between 4 and 5 years
Thereafter

Total lease payments
Less: Imputed interest
Total

4. Earnings Per Share

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share (“EPS”) (shares in millions):

Net income (loss) attributabie to Avis Budget Group, Inc. for basic and diluted EPS

Basic weighted average shares outstanding

Non-vested stock

Diluted weighted average shares outstanding

Earnings (loss) per share

Basic
Diluted
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Year Ended December 31,
2024 2023 2022

$ 947 838 $ 743
7 ] 3

151 167 137

$ 105 105 $ 181
$ 1,404 1079 $ 812
102 118 153

12 191 161

Property Operating Vehicle

Leases Finance Leases Vehicle Operating Leases

$ 766 75 $ 60
579 — 10

513 —_ 3

415 61 1

3N 7 1

1,221 — —

3,805 143 75
(693) = 2)

$ 3,112 143 § 73

N
Year Ended D ber 31,
2024 2023 2022

$ (1,821) 1632 § 2,764
355 38.3 47.3

—_ 0.5 1.1

35.5 38.8 48.4

$ (51.23) 4257 $ 58.41
$ (51.23) 4208 $ 57.16
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Diluted EPS was computed using the treasury stock method for non-vested stock. In computing diluted loss per share for the year ended December 31, 2024, our number of diluted weighted average shares
outstanding excludes the effect of non-vested stock as the effect would have been anti-dilutive. This occurs when a net loss is reported and the effect of using dilutive shares would be anti-dilutive.
The following table summarizes our outstanding common stock equivalents that were anti-dilutive and therefore excluded from the computation of diluted EPS (shares in millions):

As of December 31,
2024 2023 2022
Non-vested stock @ 04 0.1 0.2

@ The weighted average grant date fair value for anti-dilutive non-vested stock for 2024, 2023 and 2022 was $134.69, $198.92 and $177.70, respectively.
Restructuring and Other Related Charges

In 2024, we initiated a global restructuring plan to further right size our operations (“Global Rightsizing®). The costs associated with this initiative are primarily related to the operational scaling of processes,
locations, and lines of business. We expect further restructuring expense of approximately $70 million related to this initiative to be incued in 2025.

In 2022, we initiated a restructuring plan to focus on consolidating our global operations by designing new pr and img ting new syst (“Cost Optimization™). In 2021, we initiated a global
restructuring plan to focus on cost discipline by reviewing headcounts, facilities and contractor agreements. We transformed our business as we exited the COVID-19 crisis by controlling fixed costs and
matching variable costs to demand (T217). In 2020, we initiated 2 global restructuring plan to reduce operating costs, such as headcount and facilities, due to declining reservations and revenue resufting
from the COVID-19 outbreak (“2020 Optimization™. In 2019, we initiated a restructuring pian to exit our operations in Brazil by closing rental facilities, disposing of assets and terminating personnel (‘Brazil’).
We also initiated a restructuring plan in that same year to drive globat efficiency by improving processes and consclidating functions, and to create new objectives and strategies for our truck rental operations
in the United States by reducing headcount, large vehicles and rental focations (“T197). These initiatives are complete.
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The following tables summarize the changes to our restructuring-

utilizations:

Batance at January 1, 2022
Restructuring expense:
Cost Optimization
™
Brazil
Restructuring payment/utilization:
Cost Optimization
T
2020 Optimization
Brazil
T19
Balance as of December 31, 2022
Restructuring expense:
Cost Optimization
Brazil
Restructuring payment/utilization:
Cost Optimization
Brazil
Balance as of December 31, 2023
Restructuring expense:
Global Rightsizing @
Cost Optimization
Restructuring paymentiutilization:
Globai Rightsizing @
Cost Optimization
Balance as of December 31, 2024

@  Other includes the disposition of vehicles.

Balance at January 1, 2022
Restructuning expense:
Cost Optimization
™
Brazil
Restructuring payment/utilization:
Cost Optimization
T21
2020 Optimization
Brazil
T19
Balance as of December 31, 2022
Restructuring expense.
Cost Qptimization
Brazil
Restructuring paymentutilization:
Cost Optimization
Brazil
Balance as of December 31, 2023
Restructuring expense:
Glabal Rightsizing
Cost Optimization
Restructuring payment/utilization:
Global Rightsizing
Caost Optimization
Balange as of December 31, 2024

refated liabilities and identify the amounts recorded within our reportable segments for restructuring charges and corresponding payments and

Personnel Facility
Related Related Other Total
73 2 3 T8 10
9 — — 9
3 — - 3
- — 1 1
(6) — [0 o]
®) ) et 9
(1} - - 1)
e et {1 M
= [3)] - (1)
4 3 - — 3 4
8 -— 2 10
. — 1 1
) - 2) (19)
N — () (e}
43 - 8 - 3 4
19 e 17 36
— - 1 1
(12 = 8) 20)
{1 fnd @) @
10§ - 3 7 8 17
Americas Total
$ 2 8 g 3 10
2 7 9
1 2 3
1 - 1
2) 3) n
@ ) (9}
- (1} )
] - m
= (O] [0]
1 3 4
7 3 10
i - 1
(8) @ (10)
) = )
2 2 4
19 17 38
1 b 1
(12) ®) (20)
(1} @) @
$ 9 § 8 3 17
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Other Rolated Charges

in April 2022, we announced the departure of Veresh Sita as Executive Vice President and Chief Digital and Innovation Officer effective May 13, 2022. In connection with Mr. Sita’s separation, we recorded
other related charges of approximately $1 million, inclusive of accelerated stock-based compensation expense, for the year ended December 31, 2022.

6. Acquisitions

McNicoll Vehicle Hire

In September 2023, we pleted the acquisition of McNicoll Vehicle Hire, a vehicle rental company in Scotland specializing in van and car rentals, for approximately $17 million, net of acquired cash. The
investment enabled us to expand our footprint of vehicle rental services in Scotland. The excess of the purchase price over preliminary fair value of net assets acquired was allocated to goodwill, which was
assigned to our International reportable segment. In connection with this acquisition, approximately $10 miltion was recorded to goodwill, $4 million was recorded to trade names, and $1 million was recorded
to customer relationships. The trade names and customer relationships will be amortized over a weighted average useful life of approximately 10 years. The goodwill was not deductible for tax purposes. In
2024, we finalized our accounting for this acquisition. As a result, we recorded an additional $2 million to the goodwiil connected to this acquisition during the year ended December 31, 2024, which
represents the additional excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired.

Licensees

plus approximately $20 million for acquired fleet. In October 2023, we completed the acquisition of a

In June 2023, we completed the acquisition of a licensee in North America for approximately $14 million,
d fleet. These investments were in-line with our strategy to re-acquire licensees when advantageous

second licensee in North America for approximately $10 miltion, plus approximately $4 miltion for acquire:
to expand our footprint of Company-operated locations. The acquired fleet for each acquisition was financed under our existing financing arrangements. In connection with these acquisitions in June 2023 and
October 2023, approximately $14 million and $10 miilion, respectively, was recorded to other intangibles related to license agreements, which are being amortized over weighted average useful lives of
approximately five years and three years, respectively. Differences between the preliminary allocation of purchase prices and the final allocations for these acquisitions were not material,

7. Intangible Assets

intangible assets consisted of:

As of December 31, 2024 As of December 31, 2023
Gross Carrying Accumulated Net Carrying Gross Carrying Accumulated Net Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount
Amortized Intangible Assets B
License agreements @ $ 306 $ 244 $ 62 $ 316 $ 234§ 82
Customer relationships ® 244 221 23 253 221 32
Other 52 47 5 56 46 10
Total 3 602§ 512§ 90 $ 625 § 501§ 124
Unamortized Intangible Assets
Goodwill 3 1,071 3 1,099
Trademarks 3 511 $ 546

@ Pnmarily amortized over a period ranging from 0 to 40 years with a werghted average life of 15 years,
®  Primarily amartized over a period ranging from 1 to 20 years with a weighted average life of 11 years,
©  Primarily amortized over a period ranging from 3 to 10 years with a weighted average fife of 8 years.
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During 2024, we recorded an impairment related to our unamortized Zipcar trademark of $28 miltion. See Note 2 -~ Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.

Amortization expense relating to all intangible assets was as follows:

License agreements
Customer relationships
Other

Total

Based on our amortizable intangible asst
million for 2029 excluding effects of currency exchange rates.

The camrying amounts of goodwill and related changes are as follows:

Goodwill as of January 1, 2023
Accumulated impairment losses as of January 1, 2023
Goodwill as of January 1, 2023
Acquisitions
Currency translation adjustments and other
Goodwill as of December 31, 2023
Acquisitions
Currency translation adjustments and other
Goodwiil as of December 31, 2024

8. Vehicle Rental Activities

The components of vehicles, net within assets under vehicle programs are as follows:

Rental vehicles @
Less: Accumulated depreciation

Vehicles held for sale
Vehicles, net investment in lease ®
Vehicles, net

@ For the year ended December 31, 2024, reflects long-lived asset impairment and other related charges,

Palicies.
® See Note 17 —Related Party Transactions.

ots at December 31, 2024, we expect amortization expense of approximately $22 million for 2025, $21 million for 2026, $15 million

Year Ended December 31,
2024 2023 2022
$ 17 3 14 8 29
9 9 10
4 8 5
$ 30 $ 29 § 44

for 2027, $9 million for 2028 and $7

Americas inter 1] Total Company

$ 2137 % 1,051 $ 3,188
(1,587) (531) {(2,118)

550 520 1,070

—_ 10 10

1 18 19

551 548 1,099

— 2 2

3) 27) (30)

$ 548 § 523 § 1,071

As of December 31,
2024 2023

$ 20,094 $ 23,114
(3,143) {2,639)

16,951 20,475

594 734

74 31

$ 17619 § 21,240

which reduced the carrying value of our rental vehicles and vehicles held for sale to fair value. See Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting
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9.

The components of vehicle depreciation and lease charges, net are summarized below:

Year Ended December 31,

Depreciation expense $
Lease charges
{Gain) toss on sale of vehicles, net

Vehicte depreciation and lease charges, net $

2024 2023 2022
2658 $ 2228 $ 1,709
151 167 138
167 (656) (1,019)
2,976 § 1739 $ 828

At December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, we had payables related to vehicle purchases included in liabilities under vehicle programs - other of $203 million,
ers and other of $287 million, $237 million,

hl

receivables related to vehicle sales included in assets under vehicle programs - rec i

from vehicle mant

Income Taxes

The provision for (benefit from) income taxes consists of the following:

$287 million, and $265 million, respectively, and
and $212 million, respectively.

Year Ended December 31,
2024 2023 2022
Current
Federal $ 14 $ - —
State 1 45 137
Foreign 70 43 61
Current income tax provision 95 88 198
Deferred
Federal (644) 77 622
State (211) 47 (22)
Foreign {50) 67 82
Deferred income tax provision (905) 191 682
Provision for (benefit from) income taxes $ (810) $ 279 880
Income (loss) before income taxes is comprised of the following:
Year Ended December 31,
2024 2023 2022
United States (U.S.) $ (2.642) $ 1,418 3,114
Foreign 15 496 522
Income (loss) before income taxes $ (2,627) $ 1,914 3.636
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Deferred income tax assets, net is comprised of the following:

As of D ber 31,
2024 2023
Deferred income tax assets:
Net tax loss carryforwards 983 $ 1,373
Long-term operating lease liabilities 807 703
Tax credits 405 323
Deferred interest expense 358 179
Accrued liabilities and deferred revenue 157 169
Depreciation and amortization 24 22
Provision for doubtful accounts 19 18
Other @ 28 34
Valuation allowance ®© (83) (103)
Deferred income tax assets 2,698 2,718
Deferred income tax liabilities:
Operating lease right of use assets 793 693
Depreciation and amortization 74 17
Prepaid expenses 32 33
Other 13 7
Deferred income tax liabilities 912 850
Deferred income tax assets, net 1,786 $ 1,868
& For the year ended December 31, 2023, we reclassified $179 million of deferred interest expense to conform to the current year presentation. This reclassification had no impact to our reported deferred income tax assets.
®  The valuation allowance at December 31, 2024 relates to tax Joss carryforwards and certain defemred tax assets of $80 million and $3 million, respect The valuation at December 31, 2023 ralates to tax Joss carryforwards and certain
deferred tax assets of $100 million and $3 million, respectively. The valuation will be reduced when and if we determine it is more fikely than not that the related deferred income tax assets will be realized.
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities related to vehicle programs are comprised of the following:
As of D ber 31,
2024 2023
Deferred income tax assets.
Depreciation and amortization 73 8 80
Other 20 28
Deferred income tax assets 93 108
Deferred income tax liabilities:
Depreciation and amortization 2,513 3,497
Other 22 29
Deferred income tax liabilities 2,535 3,526
Deferred income tax liabilities under vehicle programs, net $ 2442 $ 3,418

At December 31, 2024, we had U.S. federal net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $3.0 billion. The net operating loss carryforwards have an indefinite utilization period pursuant to the Tax Act.
Such net operating loss camryforwards are primarily related to accelerated depreciation of our U.S. vehicles. Currently, we do not record valuation allowances on the majority of our U.S. federal tax loss
carryforwards as there are adequate deferred tax liabilities that could be realized within the carryforward period. At December 31,
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2024, we had foreign net operating ioss carryforwards of approximately $890 million, the majority of which has an indefinite utilization period.

At December 31, 2024, we had undistributed eamings of certain foreign subsidiaries of approximately $1.6 billion that we have indefinitely reinvested, and on which we have not reco!

gnized deferred taxes.
Estimating the amount of potential tax is not practicable because of the complexity and variety of assumptions necessary to compute the tax.

The reconciliation between the U.S. federal income tax statutory rate and our effective income tax rate is as follows:

Year Ended D ber 31,
2024 2023 2022
U.S. federal statutory rate 210 % 210 % 21.0%
Adjustments to reconcile to our effective rate:
State and local income taxes, net of federal tax benefits 8.0 4.0 39
Changes in valuation allowances 0.2 — (1.3}
Taxes on foreign operations at rates different than U.S. federal statutory rates (0.9) 2.8 12
Tax credits @ 36 (11.7) (0.4)
Stock-based compensation 0.1 {1.1) (0.5)
Other non-deductible (non-taxable) items 0.2) 0.7 04
Other @ 1.0 {1.1) {0.1)
30.8 % 14.6 % 24.2 %

@ For the year ended December 31, 2022, we reclassified (0.4%) of certain tax credits to conform te the current year presentation. This reclassification had no impact to our reported effective income tax rate.
The Organisation for Economic Cooperation and Development ("OECD") published a proposal for the establishment of a global minimum tax rate of 15% (the “Piltar Two rule”), effective for fiscal 2024, We are

closely monitoring developments of the Pillar Two rule as the OECD continues to refine its technical guidance and member states implement tax laws and regulations based on Pillar Two proposals. Pillar
Two did not have a material impact on our Consolidated Financial Statements for 2024,

The following is a reconciliation of the gross amount of unrecognized tax benefits:

2024 2023 2022

Balance, January 1 $ 63 $ 53 § 58
Additions for tax positions related to current year 4 5 4
Additions for tax positions related to prior years — 5 3
Reductions for tax positions related to prior years 2) — (5)
Settlements —_ —_ (5)
Statute of fimitations 4) {2) —_
Foreign currency translation (3) 2 (2)

Balance, December 31 $ 58 $ 63 § 53

We do not anticipate the gross amount of unrecognized tax benefits to<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>